
 MEETING: Cabinet 
DATE: Wednesday 28 June 2023 
TIME: 10.00 am 

 VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall 
 PUBLIC 

WEB LINK: 
https://barnsley.public-
i.tv/core/portal/webcasts  

 
AGENDA 
  
1.   Declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests   

  
2.   Leader - Call-in of Cabinet decisions   

  
Minutes 
  
3.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 June 2023 (Cab.28.6.2023/3)   

(Pages 3 - 6) 
  

Items for Noting 
  
4.   Decisions of Cabinet Spokespersons (Cab.28.6.2023/4)   

  
Petitions 
  
5.   Petitions received under Standing Order 44  (Cab.28.6.2023/5)   

  
Items for Decision/Recommendation to Council 
  

Children’s Spokesperson 
  

6.   Barnsley's Children and Young People's Plan (2023-26)  (Cab.28.6.2023/6)  
(Pages 7 - 38) 
RECOMMENDATION TO FULL COUNCIL ON 27 JULY 2023 
  
Regeneration and Culture Spokesperson 
  

7.   Asset Management Strategy 2023/24 to 2027/28  (Cab.28.6.2023/7)   
(Pages 39 - 62) 
RECOMMENDATION TO FULL COUNCIL ON 27 JULY 2023 
  

8.   Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF) Wave 2 Acceptance of Funding  
(Cab.28.6.2023/8)  (Pages 63 - 158) 
  

9.   Exclusion of Public and Press   
It is likely that the public and press will be excluded from this meeting during 
consideration of the items so marked because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined by the specific paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 as amended, subject to the public interest test. 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

https://barnsley.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts
https://barnsley.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcasts


 

  
Regeneration and Culture Spokesperson 
  

10.   Goldthorpe Housing Retrofit Project (Towns Fund Project M)  (Cab.28.6.2023/10)  
(Pages 159 - 298) 

 Reason restricted:  
Paragraph (3) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)  
  

11.   Town Centre Improvements Update (Cab.28.6.2023/11)  (Pages 299 - 310) 
 Reason restricted:  

Paragraph (3) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information)  

 
 
To: Chair and Members of Cabinet:- 
 

Councillors Houghton CBE (Chair), Cain, T. Cave, Franklin, Frost, Higginbottom, 
Howard, Makinson and Newing 
 
Cabinet Support Members: 
 
Councillors Bellamy, Bowser, Cherryholme, Moyes, Osborne, Peace and Sheard 
 
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Chair of Audit Committee 
 
Sarah Norman, Chief Executive 
Wendy Popplewell, Executive Director Core Services 
Carly Speechley, Executive Director Children's Services 
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Place Health and Adult Social Care for Barnsley 
Matt O'Neill, Executive Director Growth and Sustainability 
Julia Burrows, Executive Director Public Health and Communities 
Neil Copley, Director of Finance (S151 Officer) 
Sukdave Ghuman, Service Director Law and Governance (Monitoring Officer) 
Michael Potter, Service Director Business Improvement, HR and Communications 
Katie Rogers, Head of Communications and Marketing 
Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer 
 
Corporate Communications and Marketing 
 

 
Please contact Sukdave Ghuman by email governance@barnsley.gov.uk 
 
Tuesday 20 June 2023 
 



MEETING: Cabinet 
DATE: Wednesday 14 June 2023 
TIME: 10.00 am 

 VENUE: Council Chamber, Barnsley Town Hall 
 

 
1 

 
MINUTES  
 
Present  Councillors Houghton CBE (Chair), Cain, Franklin, 

Frost, Higginbottom, Howard, Makinson and Newing  
 

Members in Attendance:  Councillors Bellamy, Bowser, Moyes, Osborne, Peace 
and Sheard 
  

 
18. Declaration of pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests  

 
Councillor Newing declared a non-pecuniary interest in respect of Minute Number 33 
as she had actively participated in the Task and Finish Group. 
 

19. Leader - Call-in of Cabinet decisions  
 
The Leader reported that no decisions from the previous meeting held on 31 May 
2023 had been called in. 
 

20. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 31 May 2023 (Cab.14.6.2023/3)  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 31 May 2023 were taken as read and signed by 
the Chair as a correct record. 
 

21. Decisions of Cabinet Spokespersons (Cab.14.6.2023/4)  
 
The Record of Decisions taken by Cabinet Spokespersons under delegated powers 
during the week ending 02 June 2023 were noted. 
 

22. Petitions received under Standing Order 44 (Cab.14.6.2023/5)  
 
It was reported that no petitions had been received under Standing Order 44. 
 

23. Outcomes of the Ofsted Focused Inspection of the Experience and Progress of 
Young People Leaving Care (Cab.14.6.2023/6)  
 
RECOMMENDATION TO FULL COUNCIL ON 27 JULY 2023 
  
RESOLVED that Cabinet notes the outcomes of the recent Ofsted focused visit on 
the experience and progress of young people leaving care in Barnsley, together with 
the next steps; and that the report be submitted for consideration at the meeting of 
Full Council, on 27th July 2023. 
 

24. Response to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) Task and Finish 
Group (TFG) Report on Customer Experience (Cab.14.6.2023/7)  
 

Page 3

Cab.28.6.2023/3



 
2 

RESOLVED that Cabinet endorses the responses, conclusions, and 
recommendations set out in the report, following the Task and Finish Group’s report 
on Customer Experience in Barnsley. 
 

25. Quarter 4 (2022/23) Corporate Performance Report (Cab.14.6.2023/8)  
 
The performance reports at items 25 to 28 were considered in tandem.  
  
RESOLVED that Cabinet:- 
  

1.    Reviews, challenges and scrutinises the contents of the Corporate 
Performance Report in relation to the delivery of the Corporate Plan priorities 
and outcomes; and 
  

2.    Agrees that the Performance Report is shared with the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to inform and support their ongoing work programme. 

 
26. Corporate Finance Performance Report Year End 2022/23 (Cab.14.6.2023/9)  

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet:- 
  

1.    Notes the final position for the General Fund which shows cumulative cost 
pressures for the year of £10.5M (after adjusting for statutory balances, 
scheme slippage & known expenditure commitments in 22/23 – detailed in 
Appendix 1), an improvement of approximately £2.0M on the position reported 
at Q3; and 
  

2.    Approves the release of £10.5M of reserves previously earmarked to mitigate 
these cost pressures and deliver a balanced budget in line with the Medium-
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS); and 
  

3.    Notes the final position on the Housing Revenue Account, which shows 
cumulative cost pressures of £0.665M funded from a transfer from reserves; 
and 
  

4.    Approves the write-off of historic bad debts totalling £1.1M as detailed in 
Section 4 of the report; and 
  

5.    Notes that an updated MTFS and mitigating efficiency plans will be submitted 
to Cabinet in due course in lieu of the significant ongoing financial challenges 
faced by the Council. 

 
27. Capital Programme Performance Year End 31 March 2023 (Cab.14.6.2023/10)  

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet:- 
  

1.    Notes the final financial position on the 2022/23 Capital Programme; and 
  

2.    Approves scheme slippage totalling £37.3M (paragraph 2.6 and Appendix B 
refer); and 
  

Page 4



 
3 

3.    Approves scheme re-phasing totalling £3.8M (paragraph 2.7 and Appendix B 
refer); and  
  

4.    Notes the total net increase in scheme costs in 2022/23 of £1.1M (paragraph 
2.8 and Appendix B refer); and 
  

5.    Receives an updated 2023/24 indicative Capital Programme position (as part 
of the Quarterly Finance Monitoring update).  

 
28. Annual Report on Treasury Management Activities 2022/23 (Cab.14.6.2023/11)  

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet:- 
  

1.    Notes the latest expectations for interest rates (as outlined at paragraph 2.6); 
and  
  

2.    Notes the activities undertaken during the year to support the Council’s 
borrowing and investment strategies; and 
  

3.    Notes the Prudential and Treasury Indicators set out in Appendix 1. 
 

29. Employee Notice Periods (Giving Of) (Cab.14.6.2023/12)  
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet:- 
  

1.    Agrees the revised arrangements for notice periods for all new employees as: 
  
         Grades 1 – 6 four weeks’ notice period. 
         Grades 7 – 11 eight weeks’ notice period. 
         Grades 12 and above – twelve weeks’ notice period. 

  
2.    Agrees to existing employees in grades 7 - 11 being asked to accept the 

revised notice period of eight weeks on a voluntary basis. 
 

30. Acceptance of grant from Museum Estate and Development Fund (MEND) for 
repairs to the roof at Cannon Hall Museum (Cab.14.6.2023/13)  
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet:- 
  

1.    Accepts the offer of £0.898m; and 
  

2.    Approves the delivery of the agreed programme of works. 
 

31. EPC C Retrofit Kickstart Programme (Cab.14.6.2023/14)  
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet:- 
  

1.    Approves the £500,000 EPC C Kickstart programme to be delivered via the 
PRIP contract during 2023/24; and  
  

2.    Notes the programme of planned condition and energy performance surveys 
to be undertaken across stock on an accelerated basis up to March 2024. 

Page 5



 
4 

These surveys were to be used by Berneslai Homes to produce a robust asset 
data strategy which would inform the wider Retrofit Programme from 2024-
2030 and produce an overlying wider asset management strategy. 

 
32. Guidelines for Commissioning Art in Public Places (Cab.14.6.2023/15)  

 
RESOLVED that Cabinet agrees to the adoption and dissemination of the guidance.  
 

33. Overview & Scrutiny Committee Sexual & Reproductive Health Task & Finish 
Group: Response Report (Cab.14.6.2023/16)  
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet endorses the responses to each recommendation. 
 

34. Exclusion of Public and Press  
 
RESOLVED that the public and press be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items, because of the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as described by the specific paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972 as amended, as follows:- 
  
Item Number             Type of Information Likely to be Disclosed 
  
35                                Paragraph 2 
 

35. Review and Refresh of the Placement and Sufficiency Strategy for Children in 
Care and Care Leavers (2023-2026) (Cab.14.6.2023/18)  
 
RESOLVED that Cabinet approves the Barnsley Placement and Sufficiency Strategy 
as the basis for enabling the Local Authority’s continued compliance with its statutory 
duty for meeting the accommodation needs of children requiring care and young 
people leaving care. 
 
 
 
 
 ……………………………. 
 Chair 
 

Page 6



 

 

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT OF THE: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (CHILDREN’S SERVICES) 
 
TITLE: BARNSLEY DRAFT CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S 

PLAN (2023-2026) 
 
 
REPORT TO: CABINET 

 
Date of Meeting 
 

28 JUNE 2023 

Cabinet Member Portfolio 
 

CHILDREN’S SERVICES  

Key Decision 
 

Yes  

Public or Private Public  
 

 
 

 
Purpose of report 
 
To seek Cabinet’s endorsement for the publication of the new Barnsley Children 
and Young People’s Plan as the basis for complying with our ongoing statutory 
duty for promoting the overall wellbeing of children and young people in the 
Borough 
 
Council Plan priority 
 
By enabling Barnsley to become a more children-centric Borough, the Children 
and Young People’s Plan (2023-2026) will support all the priorities of the Council 
Plan, particularly through the following: 
 
• Healthy Barnsley – Children and young people are safeguarded from all forms 

of harm and are enabled to live healthy, happy and independent lives. 
• Learning Barnsley – Firstly, that children and young people obtain a good 

start in their early lives, together with a quality education and achieve their 
potential. Secondly, that young people are equipped with the skills and 
attributes that will enable them to participate in the employment market and 
progress in their chosen vocations 

• Growing Barnsley. Firstly, that all providers of services for children, young 
people and families, including local small and medium enterprises, are enabled 
to flourish as part of making our communities more inclusive, cohesive and 
sustainable. Secondly, that the Local Plan enables Barnsley to develop as a 
friendly and supportive place where children, young people and families can 
live, work and visit.    

• Sustainable Barnsley – Through enabling children and young people, 
together with providers of children’s services to support the sustainability of the 
Borough for future generations and for them to be proud of and be active in the 
place where they live   

Page 7

Cab.28.6.2023/6



 

 

 
Recommendations 
 
1. That Cabinet endorses the new, draft Barnsley Children and Young  
    People’s Plan (2023-2026)  
 
2. That the draft Children and Young People’s Plan be submitted for approval  
     and adoption at the meeting of Full Council on 27th July 2023.    
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Role and Remit of a Children and Young People’s Plan   
 
1.2 In 2003, the Government published a Green Paper entitled “Every Child 

Matters” on proposed reforms to children’s social care, following the tragic 
death of Victoria Climbie and the subsequent investigation led by Lord 
Laming. During the following year, the Children Act (2004) was passed 
conferring a statutory, lead responsibility upon local authorities to co-ordinate 
effective local partnership arrangements in safeguarding and promoting the 
overall wellbeing of children and young people within the context of the 
following 5 key outcomes, reinforced during Professor Eileen Munro’s review 
of child protection arrangements which culminated in 2011: 

 
• Being Healthy 
• Staying Safe 
• Enjoying and Achieving 
• Making a positive contribution  
• Achieving economic wellbeing 

 
1.3 By the time of the Health and Social Care Act (2012) which gave rise to the 

publication of statutory health and wellbeing strategies for local areas, 
underpinned by joint strategic needs assessments (JSNAs) together with the 
Children and Families Act (2014) in which local authorities came under a 
statutory duty to publish a local ‘offer’ for children and young people aged 0 to 
25 years with special educational needs (SEND) there was no longer a 
statutory duty to publish a children and young people’s plan. 

 
1.4 However, the statutory duty to promote the overall wellbeing of children and 

young people in a local area has remained and therefore, given the 
prescribed scope of responsibilities for bodies such as health and wellbeing 
boards and local statutory arrangements for safeguarding children, it is still 
permissible for local areas to maintain non-statutory partnerships and publish 
plans to promote this statutory duty among all children and young people 
irrespective of their characteristics. 

 
1.5 As a result, a significant majority of areas in England continue to produce 

medium-term strategic plans which give pre-eminence to this prevailing 
statutory duty and for improving the 5 seminal outcomes indicated in 
Paragraph 1.2 of this report.      

Page 8



 

 

2. PROPOSAL 
 
2.1 Barnsley Children and Young People’s Plan (2023-2026) 
 
2.2 Our new and refreshed Children and Young People’s Plan, is attached as 

Appendix 1 to this report. The Plan sets out the proposed ‘Vision’ for 
improving the range of outcomes for all children and young people in Barnsley 
and to promote their overall wellbeing, based upon evidence such as the 
Barnsley Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. The Plan is currently depicted as 
a series of slides but, upon publication, on the Council’s Web site, it will be 
developed as an interactive document. 

 
2.3 The new Plan has been co-produced with our local statutory partners and is 

significantly informed by the insight of children, young people and families in 
the Borough, either directly or through bodies, including the Barnsley Youth 
Council and Care4Us Council into the challenges they face; on the issues 
which matter most in their lives and what local multi-agency partners can do to 
help them become more resilient to these challenges and achieve their hopes 
and aspirations. 

 
2.4 The Plan has been developed in the aftermath of the greatest challenge to   

public health in living memory and in the current context of widespread, 
deepening disparities in health, attainment and income which have been 
further impacted by global events and the rising costs of living 

 
2.5 Our Eight ‘Ambitions’ for Children and Young People in Barnsley     
 

2.6 The strategic objective of the new Plan is to help enable Barnsley in being a 
children-focused community as part of our overall vision for shaping the 
Borough as a Place of Possibilities. Notwithstanding the financial uncertainty 
which the country faces it is right that we aim high and want the very best for 
all children and young people in the Borough in ways which provide value for 
money and the effective use of resources. 

 
2.7  In a further demonstration of its commitment to the lives, particularly of 

vulnerable groups of children, Cabinet has recently agreed to a series of 
significant one-off and recurring investments to strengthen children’s services 
notably, in enhancing our early help offer; the commissioning of places for 
looked after children; improving the capacity and resilience of the children’s 
services workforce, together with other improvements in the quality of practice 
and provision. 

 
2.8 Therefore, taking into consideration our recent plans and strategies, including 

the Education Improvement Strategy, SEND Strategy and Early Help Strategy 
for children, young people and families, together with the Barnsley ‘Supporting 
Families’ Programme, Family ‘Hubs’ and ‘Start for Life’ initiative, the Barnsley 
Children and Young People’s Plan serves as the over- arching ‘vision’ for 
improving the range of outcomes for all young people in the Borough as well 
as the narrative “bridge” between this vision and our ambitions for shaping the 
Borough 

 

Page 9



 

 

2.9 As part of this, we have identified 9 ambitions within the Plan which closely 
align with the priorities of our Council Plan. These, together with the 
underlying priorities for each ambition are to be detailed in the Plan itself 
(Please see Appendix 1) and are summarised as follows: 

 
Healthy Barnsley 
 
Ambition 1:  Children, young people and their families lead healthy and  

happy lives 
 
Ambition 2: Children and young people are safe and protected from all forms 

of harm 
 
Learning Barnsley  
 
Ambition 3: Children and young people get a good education, are ambitious 

and able to reach their potential  
 
Ambition 4: Children and young people are ready for work and are enabled 

to make progress in their employment  
 
Growing Barnsley 
 
Ambition 5: All providers of children and family services are valued and 

supported to thrive 
 
Ambition 6: Barnsley is a child, young people and family friendly place in 

which to live, work and visit 
 
Sustainable Barnsley   
 
Ambition 7: To help protect our place and planet for future generations 
 
Ambition 8: For children, young people and families to be proud of and 

active where they live 
 
Enabling Barnsley 
 
Ambition 9: That the Council and its partners on the Barnsley Children and 

Young People’s Trust will work strategically and seamlessly to 
achieve more and better outcomes for children, young people 
and families in the Borough.      

 
2.10 Our progress against these ambitions will be overseen by the multi-agency 

partners which form the Barnsley Children and Young People’s Trust 
Executive Group, together with the newly formed Children’s Services 
Development Board. The Board’s responsibility will be to ensure that progress 
is achieved against the priorities for investment highlighted in the recent 
‘Strengthening Children’ Plan of immediate actions.  

 
 

Page 10



 

 

2.11 Moreover, our statutory responsibilities concerning the protection of children 
and promoting their health and overall wellbeing will form an important 
element within the South Yorkshire Integrated Care System and the Barnsley 
Place-Based Plan. 

 
2.12 Subject to Cabinet’s endorsement and Full Council approval for the new Plan, 

work will begin to develop a Borough Children, Young People and Families 
Outcomes Framework, based upon the ten outcomes linked to Barnsley’s 
Supporting Families Programme. These outcomes are noted below: 

 

  
 
3. IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION  
 
3.1 Financial and Risk 
 
3.2 There are no direct financial implications emerging through consideration of this 

report. However, it should be noted that the new CYP Plan has been developed 
within the context of significant demand pressures (for example. rising demand 
for support and staff caseloads) and financial challenges (for example, rising 
LAC placement costs) facing Children Social Care in Barnsley.  

 
3.3 The demand and financial pressures are being addressed by the Council 

through significant one-off and recurring investments in enhancing our early 
help offer; the commissioning of places for looked after children; improving the 
capacity and resilience of the children’s services workforce. 

 
3.3 Legal  
 
3.4 There are no legal implications emerging through consideration of this report.  

Page 11



 

 

 
3.5 Equality  
 
3.6 An equality impact assessment has been completed in support of the new 

Children and Young People’s Plan and is appended to this report. 
 

3.7 Sustainability 
 
3.8 As part of the co-production of our new Children and Young People’s Plan, 

young people in Barnsley either directly or via channels such as the British 
Youth Council’s annual Make Your Mark Survey stated the importance of the 
Environment and tackling climate change not only geopolitically but also 
locally. Young people are determined to play their part in helping promote 
sustainability in the Borough and this is reflected as one of the ambitions in 
the new Plan.    

 
3.9 Employee  
 
3.10 Cabinet’s recent approval of significant investment for strengthening children’s  

services will support enhanced capacity and resilience, particularly in many 
parts of the children’s social care workforce and develop relationship-based 
practice that will help vulnerable families with children for the better. This will 
also include the continuation of the Supporting Families Programme, Family 
‘Hubs’ and the Start for Life initiative. This investment builds upon the 
outcomes and recommendations concerning the workforce, emerging from 
the Independent Review of Children’s Social Care as well as improving the 
quality of early years’ practice and teaching standards, outlined in the recent 
Barnsley Education Improvement Strategy  

 
3.11 Communications 
 
3.12 Subject to approval by Full Council, the new Children and Young People’s 

Plan will be published on the Council’s Web site and widely promoted via a 
range of channels and among partners in the Borough.    

 
3.13 In promoting the new Plan, partners in the Barnsley Children and Young 

People’s Trust will use our engagement principles to ensure children, young 
people and families are fully aware of what we are doing to improve outcomes 
and life chances in language which is meaningful to them.   

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 The Plan has been developed in consultation with children, young people and 

families in the Borough, together with partner organisations on the Barnsley 
Children and Young People’s Executive Group and other stakeholders 
including the Barnsley Youth Council. The Draft Plan has also been endorsed 
by the Council’s Senior Management Team 

 
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
5.1 As indicated earlier in the report, whilst it is no longer statutory to publish a 

Page 12



 

 

children and young people’s plan it is still permissible to do so and these 
plans provide the best basis upon which the prevailing statutory duty to 
promote the overall wellbeing of all children and young people, irrespective of 
their characteristics, can be achieved in a significant majority of areas in the 
country, via a strategic partnership approach.  

 
5.2 The Plan will act as the nucleus for all other local strategies and plans for 

children and young people in the Borough and as a ‘bridge’ between our 
ambitions for young people and our overall ambitions for Barnsley as a Place 
of Possibilities. 

 
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1 Please see Paragraphs 2.6 – 2.11 of this report. The Barnsley Children and 

Young People’s Plan and its underlying programme of activity will perform an 
integral role in ensuring children and young people benefit through our 
ambitions for “levelling up” Barnsley and enable them to contribute to the 
social and economic prosperity of the Borough, including culture, heritage and 
the arts. 

 
7. GLOSSARY 
 
7.1 None, applicable. 
 
8. LIST OF APPENDICES 
 
8.1 Appendix 1: ‘Barnsley 2030: A Place of Possibilities for Children, Young  

People and Families’ (Children and Young People’s Plan 2022-
2025)  

 
Appendix 2: Barnsley Children and Young People’s Plan (2022-2025):  

Equality Impact Assessment 
 

9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
9.1 If you would like to inspect background papers for this report, please email 

governance@barnsley.gov.uk so that appropriate arrangements can be made 
 
10. REPORT SIGN OFF 
 

Financial consultation & 
sign off 

Senior Financial Services officer consulted 
and date 
Joshua Amahwe 08/06/2023 
 

Legal consultation & sign 
off 
 

Legal Services officer consulted and date 
Anthony Harold 09/06/2023 

 
Report Author:  Carly Speechley 
Designation:  Executive Director (Children’s Services) 

Page 13

mailto:governance@barnsley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



The place of possibilities for 
children, young people and 
families Plan (2023-26)

P
age 15



Welcome

Welcome to the latest edition of the Children, Young 
People’s and Families Plan, prepared by the Children 
and Young People’s Trust. 
The purpose of this plan is to set out the Trusts  8 
ambitions and identified priorities to contribute to the 
vision set out in Barnsley 2030, the borough’s long 
term plan.
The last couple of years have been marked by the 
global pandemic and we know that the impact on 
children, young people and families has been 
significant. This next period will also bring challenges, 
including the impact of the cost of living crisis on 
people and businesses, ongoing health inequalities, 
pressure on public sector budgets and workforce 
shortages. 
These 8 ambitions are the Trusts commitments to the 
children, young people, parents, carers, staff and 
volunteers that make up our communities, that we 
will continue to work together to improve outcomes. 

We are so proud that our children’s workforce has 
shown passion, commitment and dedication and 
despite the challenges the sector has continued to 
deliver tremendous work every day in our 
communities, to change the lives of children for 
the better. 
By working together we have laid solid foundation 
for system based on early help, with improved 
access to services including mental health 
services; and a stronger systems for coordinated 
support for the children and families who need 
our help most.  
The children’s workforce is our strongest asset and 
we will continue to support the sector to 
champion inclusivity, innovation and collaboration 
to make Barnsley the place of possibilities. 

In Barnsley, we want everyone to start their life well, have the opportunity to learn, 
develop new skills, achieve their personal potential and have a good life. This means 

everything from a quality place to call home, good physical and mental wellbeing, 
access to the best possible local facilities, and a sense of self-worth through diverse 

education and secure employment opportunities.  (Barnsley 2030)

The Children and Young People’s Trust
 brings together partners from across health, social care, criminal justice, safeguarding, education, and the 

community and voluntary sector.

P
age 16

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/barnsley-2030/


Current position 
Data from Barnsley Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

P
age 17



What Matters Most to Young People in Barnsley? 
Every year our Youth Council helps to facilitate Barnsley’s contribution to Make Your Mark so that young people 

can have a say and be heard.  The results from 2022 identify the top 3 issues in Barnsley for young people are:

1. Jobs, Money, Homes and Opportunities 

2. Health & Wellbeing
3. Environment 

In addition to the results of Make Your Mark, the Director of Public Health Annual Report (2021) presents 
the voices of children and young people in ‘What matters to me, now’ showcasing the prioritise identified 
by young people pre and post pandemic.  The importance of family, home, friendship and belonging came 

out strong, as did being active, out door space and the environment. 

Now more than ever young people told us that 
they valued having fun, being creative and 
enjoying experiences, holidays and celebrations. 

P
age 18

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/21807/bmbc-dph-report-2021.pdf


Our Engagement Promise
Sharing information and involving children, young people and families in what we do and how we do it is key to improving 
outcomes.  This is why as a Trust we are committed to ensuring we: 

• Make sure information is accessible and jargon free
• Include everyone, and we listen and learn from our staff and communities
• Use age appropriate and creative ways to engage children and young people. 
• Keep it simple and be honest about what you can influence 
• Value equality and the diversity of local communities
• Are open and transparent with what we know and what we have done and why

For the families we work with we will work hard to involve you as much as possible, building on your strengths to shaping 
support plans and approaches that are best for you. 

P
age 19



CYPT Ambition (1)

Children, young people and 
their families lead healthy 

and happy lives

Our Priorities (for Ambition 1) 
I. To provide Families with the Know How – so they can find the 

information they need to look after themselves and make the most of 
opportunities and services available. 

II. To provide opportunities to build resilience – so that our children, young 
people and their families can connect, have fun and thrive together. 

III. To embed our Early Help Approach – so that children, young people and 
their families are supported on a whole range of social, health and 
educational issues, as soon as problems emerge or re-emerge, to 
reduce inequalities.

IV. To strengthen our education, health and care partnerships – so that our 
systems and services, informed by the voice of children, young people 
and families, work seamless together. 

Boards 
Responsible for 

Delivery

Starting Well, Growing Well and Moving On

Special Educational Needs & Disabilities Oversight Board

CYP Emotional Health & Wellbeing Group

This ambition will contribute to the 
work of Barnsley Health & Wellbeing 

Board, Barnsley Place Partnership and 
the Mental Health, Learning 

Disabilities and Autism Partnership

P
age 20



CYPT Ambition (2)

Children and young people 
are safe and protected.

Our Priorities (for Ambition 2)
I. To learn from national and local reviews to deliver safer outcomes for children and 

young people

II. To keep children and young people safe inside home – by addressing domestic abuse, 
parental substance misuse, parental mental health and child neglect. 

III. To keep children and young people safe outside home – by tackling bullying, online 
harm, stalking and harassment, child exploitation.

IV. To intervene swiftly when children need help and protection, with high quality 
interventions to improve outcomes and reduce harm 

V. To offer young people alternatives to crime and anti-social behaviour to divert young 
people away from criminal justice system

VI. To keep children, young people and families stay together. When this is not possible 
we will develop new models of accommodation through the strengthening of our 
commissioning arrangements, in order to place children locally.

Boards 
Responsible for 

Delivery

Strengthening Children’s Services Development Board 

Combatting Drugs Partnership Board, Domestic Abuse 
Partnership Board, Youth Crime and Anti-social Behaviour 

Board, CYP Emotional Health & Wellbeing Group

This ambition will contribute to the 
work of Barnsley’s Children’s 

Safeguarding Partnership, Safer 
Barnsley Partnership and the Mental 

Health, Learning Disabilities and 
Autism Partnership

P
age 21



Our Priorities (for Ambition 3)
I. To champion world class education opportunities for all CYPF, ensuring that we meet 

the needs of vulnerable and disadvantaged groups

II. To secure high quality provision, widen local opportunities and promote equalities

III. To support families to provide an enriching home learning environment

IV. To help young people aim high by championing high quality careers education and 
guidance that raises their aspirations, skills, qualifications, and aptitudes so that they 
fulfil their full potential.

V. To  provide access to high quality cultural, sporting and social opportunities and 
expand horizons and international experiences. 

VI. To support every young person to be digitally, culturally and financially literate. 

CYPT Ambition (3)
Children and young 
people get a good 

education, are ambitious 
and able to reach their 

potential

Boards 
Responsible for 

Delivery

Barnsley Schools Alliance 

Starting Well, Growing Well and Moving On

Special Education Needs & Disabilities Oversight Board

Inclusive Economy Board

This ambition will contribute to the 
work of the Inclusive Economy Board, 

Barnsley Place Partnership and the 
Mental Health, Learning Disabilities 

and Autism Partnership

P
age 22



Our Priorities (for Ambition 4)
I. To strengthen the links between the borough’s employers and learning 

providers to help young people understand more about the world of work 

II. To promote and encourage lifelong learning by enhancing post-16 and post-
19 education, volunteering, employment, and training provision

III. To improve employment opportunities for our young people that are care 
leavers and those who have additional needs. 

IV. To promote inclusion and provide support to young person at risk of 
becoming NEET (not in education, employments or training)

CYPT Ambition (4)
Children and young people are 
ready for work and are able to 

gain and progress in work.

Boards 
Responsible for 

Delivery

Barnsley Schools Alliance 

Special Education Needs & Disabilities Oversight Board

Starting Well, Growing Well and Moving On

Inclusive Economy Board

This ambition will contribute to the 
work of the Inclusive Economy Board, 

Barnsley Place Partnership and the 
Mental Health, Learning Disabilities 

and Autism Partnership’s

P
age 23



Our Priorities (for Ambition 5)

I. To develop and grow the Children and Young People’s Provider Network

II. To increase the level of funding brought into Barnsley to build the 
children and family sector.

III. To grow, support and shape the sector to deliver service integration and 
meet workforce development needs. 

IV. To develop a stronger digital offer to promote all our children, young 
people and family services. 

CYPT Ambition (5)
All providers of Children 
and Family Services are 

valued and supported to 
thrive 

Boards 
Responsible for 

Delivery

Voluntary Sector Strategy Group, 

Starting Well, Growing Well and Moving On

Children & Young People’s Commissioning 

This ambition will contribute to the 
work of the Barnsley Place 

Partnership, Stronger Barnsley 
Partnership, and Partnership 

Workforce Development Plans.

P
age 24



Our Priorities (for Ambition 6)
I. To support young people to develop a sense of pride and place.

II. To embed the interests & needs of children, young people and families 
into Housing, Regeneration & Investment plans to maximise the impact 
of developments and positively contribute to outcomes.

III. To work with children, young people and families to make our urban and 
local town centre be safe and welcoming places as well as ensuring we 
have a wide mix of facilities and amenities available for CYP & families.

IV. To promote and increase opportunities and access to Barnsley’s art, 
sport, music, culture and heritage offer.

V. To influence and support a safe, reliable and accessible transport 
network.

CYPT Ambition (6)
Barnsley is a child, young 

person and family friendly 
place to live, work and 

visit

Boards 
Responsible for 

Delivery

Principal Towns Programme Board

Housing Board, Fusion Partnership 

This ambition will contribute to the 
work of the Principal Towns 

Programme Board, Housing Board, 
Fusion Partnership and Barnsley’s 

Travel Strategy. 

P
age 25



Our Priorities (for Ambition 7)

I. To promote initiatives and project across all partners, that contribution 
to the borough’s ambition to become net Zero Carbon by 2045.

II. To engage children, young people and their families to improve 
knowledge and understanding of climate change and to take action to 
reduce, reuse and recycle . 

CYPT Ambition (7)
To protect our place and 

planet for future 
generations

Boards 
Responsible for 

Delivery

Positive Climate Partnership 

This ambition will contribute to the              
ambition to be net Zero Carbon by 

2045

P
age 26



Our Priorities (for Ambition 8)

I. To influence and support the development of our parks, open and 
green spaces so children, young people and families can enjoy 
public outdoor spaces.

II. To influence, support and promote active travel programmes 
across the borough so that cycling and walking become part of 
everyday life. 

III. To support initiatives for developing community capacity and promoting 
community wealth building. 

IV. To work with the voluntary and community sector and support social 
action.

 

CYPT Ambition (8)
For children, young 

people and families are 
proud and active where 

they live

Boards 
Responsible for 

Delivery

Principal Towns Programme Board

Area Councils ,  Active in Barnsley Partnership 

This ambition will contribute to the 
work of the Stronger Communities 
Partnership and Barnsley Health & 

Wellbeing Board 

P
age 27



Our Priorities (for Ambition 9)

• To embed the Voice of stakeholders into all aspects of 
service development 
• To improve partnership data & intelligence gathering, 

and analysis to support all our delivery groups
• To increase capacity and develop the workforce to 

deliver a whole systems approach
• To identify barriers and challenges that hinders 

progress of delivery groups
• To develop improved ways to communicate across the 

trust to reduce duplication

CYPT Ambition (9)
The Trust will 

support the system 
to achieve more and 

better outcomes

P
age 28



Visual – To Be Developed
Healthy – Ambition 1 Children, young people and their Families lead 
healthy and happy lives
Strategic Delivery groups are: Starting Well, Growing Well and Next 
Oversight Board, CYP Emotional Health & Wellbeing Group, Special 
Educational Needs & Disabilities Oversight Board
Healthy – Ambition 2 Children and young people are safe and 
protected from all forms of harm 
Strategic Delivery Groups are:

P
age 29



Implementing & Delivering the plan  
This plan draws together the ambitions and priorities from across the 
system. Further background and details to the ambitions and priorities 
can therefore be found in the following: 

Updates from across the system will be 
collected periodically providing the 
opportunities to track progress and manage 
risks and challenges.  

Barnsley Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021 - 2030
Barnsley Place Health & Care Strategy (in development)
Early Help Strategy 2022-2027
Barnsley Mental Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2022-2026
Send Strategy 2022 - 2025
Autism Strategy (in development)
Carers Strategy 

Safer Barnsley Strategy 
Youth Justice Strategy 
Barnsley School Alliance Education Improvement 
Strategy-2022-2025
Employment and Skills Strategy - More and better jobs
MORE AND BETTER JOBS 2021-2024
Barnsley Transport Strategy
Climate Change
OTHERS>>>>>>>to be added

P
age 30

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/19957/barnsley-hwb-strategy-final-web.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/23380/children-and-young-peoples-early-help-strategy-2022-2027.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/22000/barnsley-mental-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-2022-26.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/our-strategies/send-strategy/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/22358/bsa-education-improvement-strategy-2022-2025.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/22358/bsa-education-improvement-strategy-2022-2025.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/16993/employment-and-skills-strategy.pdf
https://barnsleymbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s85028/BARNSLEY_V4.pdf
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/22023/barnsley-transport-strategy.pdf


Children’s Trust 
Executive Group 
(TEG)

Barnsley Health & 
Wellbeing Board

BPP Delivery Group

Barnsley 2030 Board

Children & Young People 
Emotional Health & 
Wellbeing Group

SEND Oversight 
Delivery Group

CAMHS Steering Group

Growing Well

Starting Well

Next Steps TBC

Strengthening 
Children’s Services 
Development 
Board

Active in Barnsley 
Alcohol Alliance
Tobacco Control Alliance

Barnsley Schools 
Alliance 

Stronger Communities 

Barnsley 
Safeguarding 
Partnership

VCS Strategy Group

Barnsley Safer 
Communities 
Partnership 

Barnsley 
Inclusive 
Economy  Board

Combatting 
Drug 
Partnership

Domestic 
Abuse 
Partnership 

Positive 
Climate 
Partnership

Housing Board

Principle Towns 
programme Board

Barnsley Place 
Partnership (BPP) 

So
ut

h 
Yo

rk
sh

ire
 In

te
gr

at
ed

 C
ar

e 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
Co

lla
bo

ra
tiv

e 
/ A

lli
an

ce
s:

 
§

M
at

er
ni

ty
 / 

CY
P 

Al
lia

nc
e 

/ M
HL

DA
 - 

CY
P 

LD
A

§
O

th
er

s:
 P

rim
ar

y 
Ca

re
, U

&
E 

Ca
re

, A
cu

te
, C

an
ce

r, 
VC

SE

Sufficiency

QA & Practice

Performance &  Data

Equality & 
Engagement

Workforce

Contextual 
Safeguarding Youth Crime 

& ASB

Fusion 
Partnership

System Diagram from the perspective of TEG
for the delivery of the Children & Young People’s Plan

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Equality Impact Assessment 

 

 

Stage 1 Details of the proposal 
 

Name of service 

Directorate 

Education, Early Start and Prevention (Commissioning 
and Partnerships) 

Children’s Services  

 

Name of officer responsible for EIA 

Name of senior sponsor 

Head of Education and Partnerships  

 

Description / purpose of proposal 

 

Barnsley Children and Young People’s Plan (2022-2025) 

 

Date EIA started 1st November 2022 

 

Assessment Review date 31st October 2023 

 

Stage 2 - About the proposal 
 

What is being proposed? 

 

 

The Borough’s latest Children and Young People’s 
Plan (CYPP) has been developed for approval and 
adoption by Full Council   

 
Why is the proposal required? 

 

 

The new Children and Young People’s Plan provides 
our ‘Vision’ for ensuring all children and young people 
in Barnsley should thrive and flourish as part of our 
overall ‘Vision’ for Barnsley as A Place of Possibilities.  

As a result, the CYPP outlines 8 ambitions for children 
and young people which closely align with the 
priorities of our Council Plan and our aspirations for 
achieving economic and social prosperity in the 
Borough  

Page 33



2 
 

 

The new Plan also acts as the basis for our prevailing 
statutory duty of promoting the overall wellbeing of 
children and young people in the Borough as we 
continue to recover and renew following the 
Pandemic.   

 

What will this proposal mean for 
customers? 

 

Please see above. 

 

Stage 3 - Preliminary screening process 

 
Use the Preliminary screening questions to decide whether a full EIA is required 

√ Yes - EIA required (go to next section) 
 No – EIA not required (provide rationale below including name of E&I Officer consulted with) 

 

 

Stage 4 - Scoping exercise - What do we know?  
 

Data: Generic demographics 

What generic data do you know? 

Underlying data used to ensure equality of provision will include the Borough’s Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment, our Borough Profile and the results of the Census (2021). This will be supported 
by internal data on the needs and characteristics of children and young people in the Borough.  

 

Data: Service data / feedback 

What equalities knowledge do you already know about the service/location/policy/contract?  
 
Please see above 

 

Data: Previous / similar EIA’s 

Has there already been an EIA on all or part of this before, or something related? If so, what were 
the main issues and actions it identified? 

Page 34



3 
 

This is the first EIA to be published in connection with the Barnsley CYPP  

 

Data: Formal consultation 

What information has been gathered from formal consultation? 

Information and data gathered for the purpose of developing the CYPP has included the experience of 
children, young people and families, together with bodies of representatives including the Barnsley Youth 
Council, Care4Us Council and SEND Youth Forum on the issues which matter most to their lives and those of 
their peers, together with what should be done to enrich and improve their lives so that they can achieve 
the best outcomes  
 
 

 

 

Stage 5 - Potential impact on different groups 
 

Considering the evidence above, state the likely impact the proposal will have on people with 
different protected characteristics 

(state if negative impact is substantial and highlight with red text) 

Negative (and potentially positive) impacts identified will need to form part of your action plan. 
 
Protected 
characteristic 

Negative 
‘ – ‘ 

Positive 
‘ + ‘ 

No 
impact 

Don’t 
know 

Details 

Sex 
 

    None anticipated 

Age 
 

    None anticipated  

Disabled 
Learning 
disability, Physical 
disability, Sensory 
Impairment, Deaf 
People ,invisible 
illness, Mental 
Health etc 
 

    This matter will be the focus of our developing 
local ‘offer’ to children and young people with 
special educational needs, including disabilities   

Race 
 

    Targeted support and intervention will continue 
to be provided to children and young people in 
need of additional help 

Religion &  
Belief 

    As above  

Sexual 
orientation 

    As above  

Gender 
Reassignment 

    As above  

Page 35



4 
 

Marriage / 
civil 
partnership 

  
N/A 

   

Pregnancy / 
maternity 

 N/A    

 

Other groups you may want to consider 

 Negative Positive No 
impact 

Don’t 
know 

Details 

Ex services 

  

  Targeted support and intervention will 
continue to be provided to children and 
young people in need of additional help as 
part of the Armed Forces Covenant  

Lower socio-
economic 

  

  Targeted system-wide support and 
intervention will continue to be provided 
to children and young people in need of 
additional help 
 

Other … 
  

   
- 

Stage 6 - BMBC Minimum access standards 

 

If the proposal relates to the delivery of a new service, please refer to the Customer minimum 
access standards self-assessment (found at ) 

If not, move to Stage 7. 

Please use the action plan at Stage 7 to document steps that need to be taken to ensure the new 
service complies with the Equality Act duty to provide reasonable adjustments for disabled people. 

 
 The proposal will meet the minimum access standards. 
 The proposal will not meet the minimum access standards. –provide rationale below. 

 
 

Stage 7 – Action plan 
 

To improve your knowledge about the equality impact . . . 

Actions could include: community engagement with affected groups, analysis of performance data, service 
equality monitoring, stakeholder focus group etc. 

Action we will take: Lead Officer Completion date 

Analysis and follow up action from annual 
reviews of the CYPP  

Head of Education and 
Partnerships 

October 2023 

Not yet live 

Page 36



5 
 

Engaging with all groups of young people and 
their families particularly the Youth Council, 
Care4Us Council and SEND Youth Forum, 
together with other specific initiatives including 
the annual Make Your Mark Survey and 
National ‘Takeover’ Challenge   

Head of Education and 
Partnerships  

October 2023 

   
 

To improve or mitigate the equality impact . . . 

Actions could include: altering the policy to protect affected group, limiting scope of proposed change, 
reviewing actual impact in future, phasing-in changes over period of time, monitor service provider 
performance indicators, etc. 

Action we will take: Lead Officer Completion date 

Pulse surveys and further consultation  Head of Education and 
Partnerships  

October 2023 

Identifying, disseminating and introducing best 
practice  

Head of Education and 
Partnerships 

October 2023 

   
 

To meet the minimum access standards . . .(if relevant) 

Actions could include: running focus group with disability forum, amend tender specification, amend 
business plan to request extra ‘accessibility’ funding,  produce separate MAS action plan, etc. 

 

Action we will take: Lead Officer Completion date 

   

   

   
 

Stage 8 – Assessment findings 

Please summarise how different protected groups are likely to be affected 

Summary of 
equality impact  

 

All children already benefit from universal education and health care. 
However, the promotion of inclusion and closing the gap in the range of 
outcomes between all disadvantaged and vulnerable groups of children 
compared to peers will be a centrepiece of the Plan as we recover and 
renew from the ending of Covid restrictions    

 

Not yet live 

Page 37



6 
 

Summary of next 
steps  

 

The CYPP will continue our commitment to ensuring the aspirations of 
children and young people are met. For those individual or groups of 
children who require additional help, targeted intervention will enable them 
to achieve their potential and enhance their life chances  

 

Signature (officer responsible for EIA) Date  

** EIA now complete ** 

Stage 9 – Assessment Review 

 

(This is the post implementation review of the EIA based on date in Stage 1 if applicable) 

What information did you obtain and what does that tell us about equality of outcomes for 
different groups? 

 
 

 

Page 38



 

 

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT OF: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR – GROWTH AND SUSTAINABILITY 
 
TITLE:  Asset Management Strategy 2023/24 to 2027/28 
 
 
REPORT TO: CABINET 

 
Date of Meeting 
 

28 June 2023 

Cabinet Member Portfolio 
 

Regeneration and Culture 

Key Decision 
 

Yes  

Public or Private Public  
 

 
 
Purpose of report 
 
The purpose of this report is to seek authority of Cabinet to adopt the Asset 
Management Strategy (AMS) for the next 5 years. The strategy sets out the 
Council’s direction of travel over this period, providing a framework that will allow 
the effective and efficient management of the diverse asset base, whilst 
demonstrating excellent service delivery and value for money (VFM). 
 
Council Plan priority 
 
Enabling 
 
Recommendations 
 
That Cabinet recommend to Council: 
 
1. Approval and adoption of the AMS covering the period 2023/24 to 

2027/28. 

2. Supporting the approach to adopt a 5-year strategic land disposal 
programme. 

 
3. Commitment to the approach identified to manage the asset base and 

support achieving the £5.5M efficiencies set out in the MTFS. 
 

4. Delegate authority to both the Executive Director of Growth and 
Sustainability and Director of Finance/S151 Officer to approve any 
investment required (against the £1m already set aside) to deliver the key 
actions of the AMS, within their delegated authority. Anything outside of 
this will be referred to Cabinet spokesperson/s and/or Cabinet as 
appropriate. 

 

Page 39

Cab.28.6.2023/7



 

 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Council holds a diverse portfolio with a wide range of assets that it either 

owns or occupies, with some operating commercially, all of which require 
consideration in terms of their management. The Asset Management Strategy 
will provide the appropriate governance arrangements to ensure these assets 
are effectively managed to support the Borough, its communities, and 
residents.  

 
1.2 Strategic asset management is vital in ensuring that assets are managed in a 

structured way, through the Asset Management Plan, whilst providing 
flexibility within the context of public sector and the changing environment.  

 
1.3 The Council adopted an Asset Management Plan in early 2010 which was 

subject to periodic reviews. The plan was last updated in 2017 taking delivery 
up to 2020. 

 
1.4 This strategy has now been refreshed to reflect the transformation programme 

already planned within the Council as well as wider potential changes to 
political, economic, and financial policies which impact on the property 
holdings of the Council. Officers have reviewed how its land and property 
assets can be best used to enable the delivery of the priorities identified in the 
Corporate Plan and 2023 ambitions.  

 
1.5 This revised strategy and plan covers the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 to 

ensure effective delivery of the Councils short-, medium- and long-term 
priorities. This programme of work has been aligned to the delivery of the 
£5.9M of efficiencies required (over the same period) to support the balancing 
of the Medium-Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).  

 
1.6  Given this covers a 5-year period the documents will be reviewed annually to 

ensure they still align with the organisation’s priorities.  
 
2. PROPOSAL 
 
2.1 This Asset Management Strategy seeks to demonstrate that the Council is 

employing good practice in the management of its assets and is supporting 
the Council strategic goals. The strategy sets a clear strategic direction for the 
use of assets over the next 5 years. 

 
2.2 The plan refers to the Council’s need to proactively generate its own capital 

through the identification and disposal of surplus assets. This will be done by 
maximising the opportunity to release the full potential of our assets that 
supports the goals of the corporate plan and other council strategies. 

 
2.3 Barnsley Council is a ‘place of possibilities’, working with partners from the 

public, private and voluntary sectors to create a place that grows ambition, 
enabling everyone to be the best they can be. We want our buildings and 
spaces to be positive places where people feel comfortable, welcome, and 
know they will have a good customer experience. Property assets are a key 

Page 40



 

 

corporate resource that supports delivery of our Barnsley 2030 ambitious 
goals and Council Plan priorities (Healthy, Learning, Growing and Sustainable 
Barnsley). Therefore, effective management of our diverse portfolio will 
enable delivery of services for our residents and communities.  

 
2.4 This strategy aligns our land and building assets to the Medium-Term 

Financial Strategy (MTFS) and council-wide transformational programme, 
contributing to the financial gaps identified within the MTFS. Work will be 
captured across a number of themes:  

 
a) improve the sustainability and energy consumption of the estate including 

managing the running and maintenance costs. 
b) maximising the commercial opportunities with the estate.  
c) undertake a review of the scale of the Council’s property portfolio is 

proportionate to the resources available and mange this through an asset 
rationalisation programme. 

 
2.5 The Council has also introduced new ways of working, bringing a combination 

of home-based, office-based, and site-based working. This has resulted in the 
reconfiguration of workspaces and a stronger focus on collaboration, team 
working and hybrid technologically. In addition, as services progress their 
transformation reviews and reimagine their delivery models it may lead to 
further asset rationalisation. To respond to the changing operational property 
requirements (hybrid and transformation) ongoing review and regular 
monitoring of the office accommodation portfolio will be required. This strategy 
takes account of these changes and has produced a plan to dispose of 
surplus operational assets. 

 
2.6 The objectives of this strategy are:  

Table 1: Strategic Objectives  
 

Objective 1 Delivering an efficient and fit for purpose estate, using assets 
innovatively whilst supporting service delivery 

Objective 2 Guarantee all statutory and legal obligations are discharged 

Objective 3 Supporting regeneration, housing, and economic growth 

Objective 4 Maximise income growth from commercial and non-operational 
activities 

Objective 5 Support leisure and cultural activities, contributing to Barnsley as a 
destination  

Objective 6 Maximising opportunities available with key stakeholders and 
partners (OPE) 

Objective 7 Contribute to the Councils environmental and sustainability agenda 
Objective 8 Enable strategic decision through appropriate governance  

 

 

Page 41

https://barnsleycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/CorpHome/FutureCouncil/Pages/Barnsley-2030.aspx
https://barnsleycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/CorpHome/FutureCouncil/Pages/Barnsley-2030.aspx
https://barnsleycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/CorpHome/FutureCouncil/Pages/Council-Plan.aspx


 

 

2.7 This Strategy has been revised with clear intent to: 
 

• Invest our capital in existing and new assets with the intent to reduce 
revenue running costs over the life of a building or to generate a 
sustainable income stream from rentals. 

 
• Provide the right assets in the right place at the right time from which to 

deliver our services. 
 

• Maximise the Estate’s value for money. 
 

• Capitalise on potential opportunities for a new investment-based 
approach to commercial property opportunities, which will deliver low 
risk, sustainable revenue income for the Council in the medium to long 
term. 

 
• Enable the objectives of Business units’ business plans to be met 

through the proper use of the asset base. 
 
2.8 There is a real opportunity to get added value from our asset base to support 

all these themes and at the same time there is a real danger if this is not 
prioritised in this way that our assets remain a liability and mean front line 
services need to be cut to maintain them. 

 
2.9 The Strategy is shaped by the need to further reduce overall expenditure, 

increase income, and provide digital tools and approaches to improve 
services and overcome the challenges facing the Borough.  

 
2.10 At the present time the Council holds an unsustainable number of buildings 

with a growing maintenance requirement. The current backlog maintenance is 
estimated to be £30m and over the next three years. This figure will continue 
to grow, and the Council does not have the financial resources to meet these 
requirements. 

 
2.11 The Strategy has been developed to ensure we manage our assets efficiently, 

effectively and they support the achievement of our priorities and plans and to 
meet our customers’ needs and expectations.  It builds on the progress 
already made because of our previous Asset Management Plans and has 
been developed in consultation with our Business Units and partner 
organisations 

 
2.12 The Asset Management Strategy is one of several strategies that are in place 

to continue to drive our journey of improvement through to 2030. 
 
2.13 The delivery cluster plans clearly set out the actions we will take to achieve 

the objectives of the Strategy. Progress against these plans will continue to be 
reported to and overseen by the Property Board and within the Councils 
Governance Arrangements.  

 
2.14  A working subgroup will undertake the focussed activities, all are supported by 

the Property Services team.   

Page 42



 

 

3.  IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION  
 
3.1 Financial and Risk 
 
3.1.1 This report has been discussed with representatives of the Director of Finance 

(S151 Officer). 
 
3.1.2 The Asset Strategy and its management is fundamental in helping deliver the 

Council’s Corporate Plan and Strategic Objectives and is a core tool in 
managing the Council’s MTFS. 

 
3.1.3 The current asset portfolio costs around £30M per annum to operate. In order 

to help address the current financial gaps in the MTFS, efficiencies need to be 
driven from the portfolio. 

 
3.1.4  The following key activities will be delivered as part of the AMS and are 

expected to deliver upwards of £5.9M in efficiency by 2026/27.  
 

Activity Target 
Efficiencies 

1. Maximising the commercial opportunities £0.250M 
2. Sustainability and Energy Management £1.960M 
3. Asset rationalisation - land £0.700M 
4. - Asset Rationalisation - operational estate £2.970M 

TOTAL £5.890M 
 
3.1.5 Further reports will be presented to cabinet to provide an update on progress 

against the on specific details with efficiency plans attached. 
 
3.2 Legal  
 
3.2.1 There are no direct legal implications arising at this point in time however 

once the Strategy has further evolved and specific Assets have been 
identified further consultation with legal colleagues will be required. Further 
reports will be prepared for Cabinet once detailed proposals are worked up 
from the Strategy. 

 
3.3 Equality  
 
3.3.1 No EIA has been completed at this stage; they will be completed for each 

induvial action that takes place. 
 
3.4 Sustainability 
 
3.4.1 No Decision-making wheel has been completed at this stage; they will be 

completed for each induvial action that takes place. 
 
3.5 Employee  
 
3.5.1 There are no employee issues arising from this report. 
 

Page 43



 

 

3.6 Communications 
 
3.6.1 Once adopted and approved the Asset Strategy will be published as a 

corporate document and will be made available with all the councils strategy 
documents. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Stakeholder engagement for adoption of this plan has led to creating good 

and established relationships between directorates and asset management 
will be built upon to ensure that assets are being used in the best and most 
appropriate way to enable achievement of targeted service outcomes. Key 
service areas where assets play a particularly important role are: 

 
• Internal: SMT, cabinet, Council Officers and employees, Elected 

Members. Key teams to be engaged include Finance, Regeneration 
and Culture, Public health, Communities, Children’s, and Core. 

 
• External: Tenants of our buildings, and businesses using our assets, 

residents, users of our assets, visitors, Community and Voluntary 
sector Partners, public sector partners (e.g., SY Police, NHS, etc).  

 
4.2 Once approved local ward members will be consulted through several 

workshops picking up wider property and asset issues 
 
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
5.1 Option 1 – Do nothing: If the Council did not prepare an Asset Management 

Strategy it would not be possible to either manage assets dynamically or 
demonstrate the rationale for investment, thereby exposing the Council to 
criticism that it had a weak approach to the management and use of its 
physical resources. 

 
5.2 Option 2 – Prepare Asset Management Strategy / Plan: The preparation of 

a Strategy enables the Council to establish some key principles / themes 
about managing assets both strategically and dynamically in the context of 
Councils Corporate Plan priorities. Having an Asset Management Strategy 
provides a clear programme to optimise property in a wider context. 

 
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1 The recommendations have been set out to ensure this Strategy is adopted 

and ensures that the Council is employing good practice in the management 
of its assets and is supporting the Councils strategic goals.  

 
7. GLOSSARY 
 
 AMS – Asset Management Strategy  
 OPE – One Public Estate  
 RICS – Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors 
 MTFS – Medium-Term Financial Strategy 

Page 44



 

 

 
8. LIST OF APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1: The Asset Management Strategy and Plan 
 
9. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Correspondence regarding this matter is held on the files in Asset 
Management – not available for inspection contains exempt information 

 
10. REPORT SIGN OFF 
 

Financial consultation & 
sign off 

Senior Financial Services officer consulted 
and date 
 
Steve Loach 25/05/2023 

Legal consultation & sign 
off 
 

Legal Services officer consulted and date 
 
Sukdave Ghuman  25/05/2023 
 

 
 
Report Author: Rachel Copley  
Post: Group Leader Facilities Management 
Date: May 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Asset Management 
Strategy 

Page 47



Executive Summary  
 
Barnsley Council has reviewed how its land and property assets can be best used to 
enable the delivery of the priorities identified in the Corporate Plan and 2023 
ambitions.  
 
The Council holds a diverse portfolio with a wide range of assets that it either owns or 
occupies, with some operating commercially, all of which require consideration in 
terms of their management. The Asset Management Strategy will provide the 
appropriate governance arrangements to ensure these assets are effectively 
managed to support the Borough, its communities, and residents.  
 
Strategic asset management is vital in ensuring that assets are managed in a 
structured way, through the Asset Management Plan, whilst providing flexibility within 
the context of public sector and the changing environment.  
 
This Asset management Strategy and Plan covers the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 to 
ensure effective delivery of the Councils short-, medium- and long-term priorities. This 
programme of work has been aligned to the delivery of the £5.5M of savings required 
(over the same period) to support the balancing of the Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS).  
 
Given this covers a 5-year period the documents will be reviewed annually to ensure 
they still align with the organisation’s priorities.  
  
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



Asset Management Strategy  
2023/24 to 2027/28 

 
Purpose  
This Asset Management Strategy (AMS) sets out the Council’s direction of travel for 
over the next 5 years. This framework will allow the effective and efficient management 
of the diverse asset base, whilst demonstrating excellent service delivery and value 
for money (VFM).  
 
Vision 
A Barnsley public estate, where all land and property assets support the achievement 
of the Council’s priorities and 2030 ambitions. 
 
Introduction 
Barnsley Council is a ‘place of possibilities’, working with partners from the public, 
private and voluntary sectors to create a place that grows ambition, enabling everyone 
to be the best they can be. We want our buildings and spaces to be positive places 
where people feel comfortable, welcome, and know they will have a good customer 
experience. Property assets are a key corporate resource that supports delivery of our 
Barnsley 2030 ambitious goals and Council Plan priorities (Healthy, Learning, Growing 
and Sustainable Barnsley). Therefore, effective management of our diverse portfolio 
will enable delivery of services for our residents and communities.  
 
This strategy aligns our land and building assets to the Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy (MTFS) and council-wide transformational programme, contributing to the 
financial gap identified within the MTFS. Consideration will be given to reduce the 
running and maintenance costs from a combination of asset rationalisation and 
efficiencies, whilst maximising the commercial opportunities with the estate. It is also 
important that the scale of the Council’s property portfolio is proportionate to the 
resources available. 
 
The Council has introduced new ways of working, bringing a combination of home-
based, office-based, and site-based working. This has resulted in the reconfiguration 
of workspaces and a stronger focus on collaboration, team working and hybrid 
technologically. In addition, as services progress their transformation reviews and 
reimagine their delivery models it may lead to further asset rationalisation. To respond 
to the changing operational property requirements (hybrid and transformation) 
ongoing review and regular monitoring of the office accommodation portfolio will be 
required. This strategy takes account of these changes. 
 
The strategic alignment of this work and the contribution it will make to other agendas, 
strategies, and plans has been documented below in Figure 1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49

https://barnsleycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/CorpHome/FutureCouncil/Pages/Barnsley-2030.aspx
https://barnsleycouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/CorpHome/FutureCouncil/Pages/Council-Plan.aspx


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Barnsley 2030 the place of possibilities   

Local Plan
Asset 

Management 
Strategy        

2022-2026

Asset Management 
Plan

Medium-term Financial 
Strategy  

Transformational 
Programme – Asset 

Rationalisation Theme  

Housing Strategy 
2014-2033 

Corporate Plan 

Procurement  

Economic Growth 
Strategy 

Transport 
Strategy / 

Active Travel 

Commercial 
Strategy  

Corporate Landlord Governance  

Disposal Policy & Plan 

Internal delivery of BMBC Capital 
Programme including Education

Management of BH district heating 
schemes 

Maintenance (planned and reactive) 

Statutory Compliance and H&S 

SLA’s & Service Plans 

Commercial Investment and 
Acquisitions  

Data Management 

Berneslai Homes Strategic Plan

Carbon Management Plan

Homeless and rough sleeping 

Private Rented Sector Strategy  

Major Projects and Regeneration 
Projects

Business Growth / Inward 
Investment 

Principal Towns 

Business Centres   

Town Centre and Markets

Employment and Skills 

Hybrid Policy - BIOO 

One Public Estate
Inc: Integrated Health Care Barnsley ICS

 

Digital   

Highways Asset Management Plan 
& Civils Work

People Strategy 

Digital Strategy 

Customer Strategy 

P
age 50



To achieve the objectives, set out above, the following 9 design principles will be 
embedded in the organisation: 
 
Table 1: Principles  
 
Principle 1 Council as Corporate Landlord  

The Corporate Landlord model centralises all estate related budgets, 
decision making and activities within Property Services based on a 
collegiate and inclusive governance structure.  
 

Principle 2 Asset Informed  
Decisions we make about our assets are governed by the ongoing 
maintenance requirements of the asset itself enabling us to take a 
holistic approach to managing the portfolio. 
 

Principle 3 Service-enabling 
All our assets exist to enable teams to deliver better services and 
outcomes, by taking an asset led approach we can ensure that they 
are fit for purpose for the services being delivered from the asset. 
 

Principle 4 Place based 
All our assets are in the towns, urban centres, villages, and rural 
areas of the borough. Often, we have several different assets in one 
place, so we need to take a strategic view of our assets in each 
location to ensure the appropriate services are being delivered from 
the right assets in the right location.  
 

Principle 5 Best use of resources  
The AMS will provide an effective management framework to actively 
maximise the value of existing assets and provide a strategic context 
for future investments / disinvestments. 
 

Principle 6 Delivered to Sector Standards  
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) guidelines are 
aimed at those engaged in property asset management and will 
support how we use data to support organisational objectives and 
inform the strategic management of assets.  
 

Principle 7 Digitally enabled 
The management of the AMS and Plan needs to be supported by 
advancements in technology and data analytics such as artificial 
intelligence, sensor technologies, the Internet of Things (IoT), 
Building Information Modelling (BIM), supporting the way in which we 
look at, understand, and manage our assets. 
 

Principle 8 Sustainability  
To improve and embed the operational efficiency of each building and 
their internal infrastructure to combat waste and minimise the carbon 
footprint / emissions.  
 
Establish ‘habitat banks’ by planting trees / etc so that we can sell 
carbon credits to developers. 

Page 51



Principle 9 Lifecycle approach  
Each asset goes through 5 main stages during its life: plan, acquire, 
use, maintain, and dispose.  Adopting this approach helps to achieve 
the 8 principles set out above. 
 

 
The objectives of this strategy are:  

Table 2: Strategic Objectives  
 
Objective 1 Delivering an efficient and fit for purpose estate, using assets 

innovatively whilst supporting service delivery 
Objective 2 Guarantee all statutory and legal obligations are discharged 

Objective 3 Supporting regeneration, housing, and economic growth 

Objective 4 Maximise income growth from commercial and non-operational 
activities 

Objective 5 Support leisure and cultural activities, contributing to Barnsley as a 
destination  

Objective 6 Maximising opportunities available with key stakeholders and 
partners (OPE) 

Objective 7 Contribute to the Councils environmental and sustainability agenda 

Objective 8 Enable strategic decision through appropriate governance  
 

 
 
These objectives have been mapped against the corporate priorities demonstrating 
the high-level outputs and associated actions that will be taken (Table 3). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52



Table 3: Corporate Actions and Outputs  

Corporate Priority AMS Objective Expected Outputs Action  Cluster 

> Contribute to the delivery of the Medium-Term 
Financial Strategy (MTFS) 

> Support the delivery of the Capital Strategy 

> Enable the Corporate, Service and 
Transformation Plans to be achieved 

The AMS will be aligned to the delivery of these Strategies and 
Plans to maximise how Property Services support the corporate 

ambitions 
All 

> Create a modern working environment Introduce consistent hybrid working practices across the whole of 
the portfolio All 

Healthy, Learning, 
Growing, Sustainable 

and Enabling  

Objective 
1 

Delivering an efficient 
and fit for purpose 

estate, using assets 
innovatively whilst 
supporting service 

delivery 

> Rationalised portfolio Review the asset base to determine if the stock should be retained 
or disposed All 

         

Enabling  Objective 
2 

Guarantee all 
statutory and legal 

obligations are 
discharged 

> Compliant, safe, and resilient estate. Introduce a comprehensive preventative and planned maintenance 
plan All 

         

Release of public sector sites for development. 

Development of Council owned sites 
  

Enabling and Growing  Objective 
3 

Supporting 
regeneration, 
housing, and 

economic growth 

> Provision of sites and developments that 
support delivery of this ambition 

Strategic acquisition of sites  

1, 4, 5 

         

Invest and maintain our portfolio All 

Maximise income generated through the council's commercial 
estate 1 

Commercialise services that could be externally traded 1 

Healthy, Learning, 
Growing, Sustainable 

and Enabling  

Objective 
4 

Maximise income 
growth from 

commercial and non-
operational activities 

> Bring a strategic and consistent approach to the 
management of the investment portfolio 

Identify income opportunities within operational estate 1, 4, 5 

         

P
age 53



Healthy and Enabling  

Objective 
5 

Support leisure and 
cultural activities, 

contributing to 
Barnsley as a 

destination  

> Protect and develop our heritage and cultural 
assets 

Introduce a strategic long-term plan for cultural delivery across the 
brough and map the property requirements 4 

        
 

> Colocation of public services to improve service 
outcomes Attend the relevant partner asset board 5 

Sustainable and 
Enabling  

Objective 
6 

Maximising 
opportunities 

available with key 
stakeholders and 
partners (OPE) 

> Produce revenue savings & capital receipts by 
releasing sites Alignment of strategies where possible All 

         

> Reduction of the carbon consumption to 
contribute to carbon neutral ambitions 

Introduce a carbon strategy for all assets and considered when 
acquiring or new builds 

Sustainable  Objective 
7 

Contribute to the 
Councils 

environmental and 
sustainability agenda 

> Reduction in utilities costs to support the MTFS Ensure all EPC and DECs are completed and maintained 

2 

         

> Effective decision making on the best use of 
property assets (new, existing, disposal) 

Introduce the Property Board with appropriate membership and 
TORs All 

Healthy, Learning, 
Growing, Sustainable 

and Enabling  

Objective 
8 

Enable strategic 
decision through 

appropriate 
governance  

> Embedding positive relationships between 
Property Services and the respective 

Services/Directorates, to support service delivery and 
ensuring that requirements are best met, wherever 

possible, through available resources. 

Creation of the cluster subgroups and ongoing forums for customer 
discussions N/A 

 

P
age 54



Overview of the portfolio  
Barnsley Council owns significant land and property assets across the borough, and 
we want to make best use of these assets to be an enabler of our ambitions.  The 
current corporate portfolio comprises of land and non-domestic property assets (2,598 
in total), with a net book value of £262M. The portfolio costs £30M to run per annum 
and it is likely that this cost will increase further due to rising inflation, utilities charges 
and the Governments property revaluation exercise in 23/24. 
 
A sensitivity analysis has taken place to illustrate the potential savings that could be 
achieved through the rationalisation programme. However, each asset varies based 
on age, condition, and usage, and has been considered in the round to provide an 
indicative saving target for the MTFS. Based on evidence in the sector, the Council is 
striving to achieve at least an 18% reduction (£5.5M) over a 5-year period. It is 
acknowledged that those assets that remain may require investment to ensure they 
are fit for purpose.  
 
This analysis has been converted in Table 4 to demonstrate how this is expected to 
be phased across the 5 years of this strategy; acknowledging that progress with asset 
disposals can take longer, the savings have been set on an incremental basis. This 
table has been reported in the MTFS Budget Papers approved at cabinet on February 
2023. 
 
Table 4: Saving profile 
 
 

 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 
  2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 
Current Operating 
Budget £30 £28 £24 

% Annual Saving £M £M £M 
10.00% £3.00 £2.84 £2.44 
9.00% £2.70 £2.55 £2.20 
8.00% £2.40 £2.27 £1.95 
7.00% £2.10 £1.98 £1.71 
6.50% £1.95 £1.84 £1.59 
6.00% £1.80 £1.70 £1.47 
5.50% £1.65 £1.56 £1.34 
5.00% £1.50 £1.42 £1.22 
4.50% £1.35 £1.28 £1.10 
4.00% £1.20 £1.13 £0.98 

Annual Savings £1.65 £2.27 £1.59 
Cumulative Saving £1.65 £3.92 £5.51 
Cumulative % Budget 
saving  5.50% 13.50% 20.00% 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 55



Reviewing the portfolio  
To deliver an effective rationalisation programme, all operational assets will need to 
be reviewed with a view to retaining, improving, or vacating. It’s acknowledged that 
the current asset portfolio offers significant opportunities for: 
 

• Improving efficiency of use, through increased occupation of buildings linked 
to hybrid working. 

• Front facing services to share space in community hubs and co-locate with 
partners (family hubs, youth hub, health, and wellbeing hub).  

• Energy efficiencies through technology and behavioural change. 
 

There are 1,640 assets that been categorised as out of scope and these include, 
reservoirs, easements, adopted highways etc (further detail can be provided on 
request). NB: These assets will be subject to an evidence-based investigation (VFM 
review) which will examine and report on whether economy, effectiveness and 
efficiency has been achieved in the use of public funds. The remaining 958 assets 
have been categorised into clusters and representatives from within the Council and 
wider partners have been identified for each. Each cluster has been determined by 
grouping together assets synergies such as commercial, leisure, place based and hero 
assets.  
 
To achieve the £5.5M saving, each cluster has been aligned to our strategic objectives 
and detailed action plans have been developed to explore various key lines of 
enquiries (KLOE) will form the basis, below is the high-level methodology (Table 5) 
that has been adopted: 
 
Table 5: Methodology 
 
Task 1:  
Verifying the 
baseline 
 

The number, condition, current purpose, and value of our assets 
that are in scope. Have a clear understanding of our assets and 
how they currently perform by creating a standard profile of 
characteristics including, income, expenditure, energy 
consumption, carbon emissions, size, number of rooms, floors, 
occupiers, etc. 
 

Task 2:  
Assessing the 
baseline 
 

Carry out an assessment of the requirements of the operational 
buildings over the short (1 to 2 years), medium (3 to 5 years) 
and long term (2029+), using the following criteria:  
➢ Operational/service need  
➢ Maintenance.  
➢ Running costs 
➢ The nature of the building (e.g., heritage and listed buildings)  
➢ Intensity of occupation; and  
➢ Locality and place-based specific issues.  
 

Task 3:  
Specific KLOE 
 

To capture all the specific areas that need to be considered that 
only relevant to each cluster group.  
 

Task 4:  
Options 
appraisal  
 

By undertaking tasks 1 to 3 it will allow the options appraisal 
Appendix 1 to be completed. These options are not mutually 
exclusive and could run in parallel in some instances. 
 

Page 56



Task 5: 
Business cases  
 

The outcome of these assessments will be presented in report 
format to the Strategic Property Board and will outline with the 
preferred options along with a clear rationale, considering, 
closure, demolition, replacement, disposal, investment, or 
transfer. 
 

Task 6: 
Implementation 
plans 
 

Following approval by the board the actions will be converted 
into an implementation plan and managed accordingly.  
 
 

The detailed plans for each cluster and membership of the subgroups can be 
provided on request. 
 

Page 57



Stakeholder engagement for adoption of this plan  
Established relationships between directorates and asset management will be built 
upon to ensure that assets are being used in the best and most appropriate way to 
enable achievement of targeted service outcomes. Key service areas where assets 
play a particularly important role are: 
 
Internal: SMT, cabinet, Council Officers and employees, Elected Members. Key 
teams to be engaged include Finance, Regeneration and Culture, Public health, 
Communities, Children’s, and Core. The influence of each stakeholder has been 
captured in Figure 2. 
 
Figure 2: Stakeholder influence 

 
External: Tenants of our buildings, and businesses using our assets, residents, users 
of our assets, visitors, Community and Voluntary sector Partners, public sector 
partners (e.g., SY Police, NHS, etc). The influence of each stakeholder has been 
captured in Figure 3. 
 
Figure 3: Stakeholder influence 

 

Page 58



Stakeholder engagement will be key for successful delivery of the AMS, and this will 
be undertaken in phases, starting internally first to build a baseline position and then 
overlayed with external viewpoints. The engagement will take place as follows:  

 
• Online questionnaires / surveys  
• Focus groups sessions  
• Workshops  
• Presentations at Strategic Asset Board, BLT, DMTs, SMT, Cabinet, other 

relevant Boards / capital oversight board  
• Partner engagement 
• Dovetail with the Finance / Data and Energy workstreams 
• Including the wider consultation as and when appropriate. 

 
Governance 
The development of the AMS action plan will be overseen by the Strategic Property 
Board, with Service Directors Regeneration and Finance appointed as co-chairs. The 
membership will be made up of representatives from Estates, Core Services, and each 
Business Unit. The TOR for this group will be developed for the group and outcomes 
will be reported directly into SMT and Cabinet.  

A working subgroup will undertake and oversee the key focussed work. Both teams 
will be supported throughout by the Property Services team. 

The Cabinet member for Regeneration and Culture will be regularly updated and 
Cabinet and member briefings will form part of the ongoing work of the SD 
Regeneration and Culture and SD Finance, who will collectively lead the process. 

These governance arrangements have been captured in Figure 4. 

Figure 4: Governance arrangements  

 
 

Page 59



NB: All property decisions must always go through the SPB, SMT and DMT. 

 
Performance Management  
To further enhance this knowledge and to provide a full range of information upon 
which to base future planning and decision making a range of key indicators will be 
used to assess performance on an annual basis. Effective Performance Management 
will help to improve performance through measurement and review. This will be 
implemented to ensure the successful delivery of this Strategic Asset Management 
Plan through a series of key performance indicators (KPIs). These will be developed 
based on the activities below: 

 
• Office accommodation - a decrease in office accommodation of 20% (15 

buildings) by March 2029. 
• Condition of the property portfolio - Maintaining the retained estate - ratio 

of 70:30 on proactive v’s reactive maintenance spend 
• Revenue running costs. 
• Revenue income growth   
• Average cost of operating the office portfolio per FTE.  
• Service/tenant satisfaction level (annual sample survey).  
• m² of leased in space.  
• m² of rationalised space.  
• Carbon emission levels. 
• Capital receipts.   

 
 
Following adopting of the KPI’s for Property Services in 2023/24, they will be reported 
corporately and where appropriate analysed and challenged. Any poor performance 
will be acted upon to drive improvements and exemplar performance.  
 
In addition, benchmarking activity will take place so that the outputs can be compared 
against similar organisations. Any learning will be incorporated into ways of working, 
driving innovation and commercial approach to Asset Management.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



Appendix 1: Options appraisal  
 

Option Impact Challenges 
1. Retain assets for 
employees to work 
from and deliver 
services 
Short to Medium 
term 
 

• Improves the officer experience by 
having fewer but higher quality 
assets 

• Investment through a proper 
lifecycle plan 
 

• Co-locating the right services 
together 

• Hybrid is in its infancy  
• Financial restraints to improve 

the working environment / 
space   

2.  Divest of surplus 
assets by sale or 
lease surrender  
Medium to long 
term 
 

• Lower running costs 
• Mitigate further energy rises  
• Reduce carbon footprint  
• Reduce capital funding to maintain 

the assets 

• Current market conditions  

3. Income 
generation from the 
commercial 
portfolio  
Medium term 
 

• Maximise opportunities where sale 
is not an option 

• Review service charge recovery 
 

• Current market conditions 
• Condition of the building stock 
• Political dynamics  

4. Retain and 
explore One Public 
Estate opportunities 
Long term 

• Improve integration with local 
services e.g., police and health 

• Shared costs 
• Improved customer offer / 

experience   
 

• Difficult to achieve when multi 
agencies are involved  

5. Community asset 
transfer 
Ongoing  
 

• Generates a revenue saving 
• Supports corporate priorities  

 

• Identifying suitable 
organisations 

• Political dynamics 

6. Acquisition / New 
build  
Ongoing 
 

• Full feasibility study to make sure all 
options are fully explored  

• Financial viability 
• Market availability  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BARNSLEY METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
REPORT OF: Executive Director of Growth & Sustainability  
 
TITLE:  Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund Wave 2.1 
 
 
REPORT TO: Cabinet 

 
Date of Meeting 
 

28 June 2023 

Cabinet Member Portfolio 
 

Regeneration & Culture 

Key Decision 
 

Yes 

Public or Private Public 
 

 
 

 
Purpose of report 
 
This report seeks approval to accept funding under Wave 2.1 of the Government’s 
Social Housing Decarbonisation scheme and sets out recruitment requirements to 
enable this and other energy efficiency schemes to continue to be delivered. 
 
Council Plan priority 
 
This report addresses the following Barnsley 2030 priorities. 
 
Healthy Barnsley:  Fewer people live in poverty 
Growing Barnsley:  People have a wide choice of quality, affordable and 
sustainable housing 
Sustainable Barnsley:  People live in communities with reduced carbon emissions 
 
Recommendations 
 
That Cabinet:- 
 
1. Approves the acceptance of £1,797,150 awarded as part of the SHDF 2.1 

consortium bid via the Northeast and Yorkshire Energy Hub to install energy 
efficiency measures to 148 council properties 

2. Approves the recruitment of a Warm Homes Project Manager (Grade 10) to 
oversee delivery of this, and other energy efficiency programmes currently in 
delivery by the Warm Homes Service. 
 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 The Department for Business, Energy, and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) – now 

Page 63

Cab.28.6.2023/8



 

 

the Department for Energy Security and Net Zero (DESNZ) - launched Wave 
2.1 of the SHDF programme to improve the energy efficiency of social 
housing stock in September 2022. 

 
1.2 The Council joined the Local Energy Hub Consortium bid to apply for this 

funding to raise the energy performance of 148 council houses to a minimum 
of EPC Band C, to take homes out of fuel poverty and help to achieve the 
move towards the Country’s net zero carbon target for 2050 and the Council’s 
own Zero 40/45 ambitions. 

 
1.3 BEIS were asking social housing providers to bid for funding to treat 5% of 

their total housing stock, with a 50% match funding request.  Following 
conversations with the Energy Hub and other Authorities, this was not an 
approach that could be taken at that time, due to the amount of match funding 
that this would require.   

 
1.4 The decision was taken to adopt a partnership approach to developing the bid 

and delivering the works via an Energy Supplier, to allow access to other 
sources of external funding that could be utilised to deliver similar works to 
privately owned and rented properties. 

 
1.4 Notification was received on the 22nd March 2023 that the Consortium bid was 

successful and Barnsley’s full allocation had been awarded. 
 
1.5 Tees Valley Combined Authority are the administrative body for the Northeast 

and Yorkshire Energy Hub and will be issuing grant agreements and award 
packs for review and signature. 

 
2. PROPOSAL 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet accept the grant funding. By accepting the 

awarded funding allocation, the Council can upgrade a number of its council 
stock to provide warmer homes and lower bills for tenants.  The scheme will 
run until March 2025 and there will be an opportunity during this time to review 
the availability of match funding and scale up the project, where this is 
possible. The works will be complementary to the retrofit pilot programme 
being delivered by Berneslai Homes as part of the PRIP (Property Repairs 
and Improvement Programme) contract and the 1000pv scheme (providing 
solar arrays on c.1000 council house roofs) being delivered in partnership with 
Energise Barnsley. 

 
2.2 Part of the funding allocation allows the Council to claim administrative and 

project management costs associated with the delivery of the works. To 
maximise both internal and external funding allocations and to ensure the 
effective delivery of all live retrofit projects, it is proposed that a Project 
Manager post is created to support the Programme Manager with contract 
and project delivery.  

 
3. IMPLICATIONS OF THE DECISION  
 

 3.1.1 Financial and Risk 

Page 64



 

 

 
3.1.1 Consultations have taken place with representatives of the Service Director – 

Finance (S151 Officer). 
 
3.1.2  This report seeks Cabinet approval for the acceptance of £1.797M grant 

funding from the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund, administered by the 
Department of Business, Energy an Industrial Strategy (BEIS). 

 
3.1.3 The grant funding will be matched with £1.797M of HRA reserves identified as 

part of the 2023/24 HRA budget process (Cab. refers), bringing the total 
scheme investment to £3.594M. 

 
3.1.4 The project will invest in 148 HRA properties identified by Berneslai Homes 

that are deemed to be of the greatest need and are within the EPC rating 
categories of band E & F. The tables below provide a breakdown of both 
tenure type and the EPC bandings selected. 

 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
3.1.5 The estimated capital costs have been set based on the overriding 

assumption that every property will require works for the full maximum value 
of the grant. It is expected however, that the majority of EPC ‘E’ rated 
properties will not require this level of works, particularly where the rating is 
towards the top of the ‘E’ band, in which such cases will only require low-cost 
measures such as loft or underfloor insulation to take them in to EPC ‘C’. 

 
3.1.6 In respect of the EPC ‘F’ rated properties, it is expected that more significant 

investment will be required at such properties, which is currently estimated at 
£16,000 per property. This estimate is based on the typical expenditure 
requirement which has been incurred on the Council’s other retrofit schemes 
on properties with EPC ‘F’ rating.   

 
3.1.7 In each case, the retrofit plans will be used to judge how best value can be 

achieved in terms of spend and carbon reduction, and these measures will be 
prioritised for installation. In cases where not all measures can be carried out, 
they will be identified in the medium-term plan and recorded on the PIMSS 
system for future investment opportunities. 

 
3.1.8 The grant funding bid also included an element of project support costs 

expected to be incurred through the management of the scheme, which totals 
£0.350M inclusive of £0.054M to fund the Warm Homes Project Manager 
(Grade 10). 

 
3.1.9 The table below provides a breakdown and analysis of how resources will be 

utilised on the scheme. 
 

Energy Efficiency Ratings Number of 
Properties 

EPC Rating D 60 
EPC Rating E 81 
EPC Rating F 7 

 148 

Page 65



 

 

Project Costs Breakdown  
Total Works Costs £3,244,000 
Project Support Costs  £350,000 
Total Social Housing Decarb Investment £3,594,000 

 
 
3.1.10 The funding provided by BEIS can only be used for the purposes specified in 

the grant bid. If the funding was to be used for any other purpose, then BEIS 
can reclaim the relevant amount of funding paid. The Council plans to mitigate 
the risk of claw back by implementing an agreed specification for the 
appointed contractors to work to. 

 
3.1.11 Again, as per the grant conditions, the SHDF funding must be spent by 31st 

March 2025.  
 
3.1.12 The financial implications of these proposals are summarised in the attached 

Appendix A. 
 
3.2 Legal  
 
3.2.1 The Council will be required to sign a Grant Agreement and/ or Memorandum 

of Understanding with Tees Valley Combined Authority to accept the funding 
award.  These will be similar in nature to the copies at Appendix B and will be 
issued to Legal for review before signature. 

 
3.2.2 The Council has entered into a Managed Service Agreement with OVO 

Energy Services who will deliver the works under this scheme. 
 
3.2.3  The new UK subsidy control regime commenced from 4 January 2023. The 

new regime enables public authorities, including devolved administrations and 
local authorities, to deliver subsidies that are tailored for local needs. Public 
authorities such as DESNZ giving subsidies must comply with the UK’s 
international subsidy control commitments. A subsidy refers to a grant, a tax 
break, a loan, or other form of financial assistance paid from public resources. 
A “subsidy” is defined as financial assistance which is given directly or 
indirectly from public resources by a public authority (such as DESNZ), and 
which: 

 
• Confers an economic advantage on one or more enterprises; 
• Is specific insofar as it benefits one or more enterprises over other 

enterprises in respect of the production of goods or the provision of 
services; and 

• Has, or is capable of having, an effect on: 
• competition or investment within the UK; 
• trade between the UK and a country or territory outside the UK; or 
• investment as between the UK and a country or territory outside the UK. 

 
3.2.4 The UK Subsidy Control regime permits the recipient such as this Council to 

rely on the minimal financial assistance (MFA) exemption, provided the 
recipient does not receive more than £325,000 over a rolling three-year 

Page 66



 

 

period.  Where a subsidy falls under this MFA exemption, it will not have to be 
assessed against the seven subsidy control principles otherwise a public 
authority will have to consider the seven subsidy control principles set out in 
Schedule 1 to the UK Subsidy Control regime before deciding to give a 
subsidy.  

  
3.3 Equality  
 
3.3.1 A full Equality Impact Assessment has been completed.  Key findings of this 

show that the scheme will have a positive impact on protected groups living in 
council properties as they are most likely to be at risk of living in fuel 
poverty.  It also highlights the need to promote other fuel poverty programmes 
underway so that those who live in privately owned and rented properties also 
have the opportunity to upgrade the insulation levels in their home.  

  
3.4 Sustainability 
 
3.4.1 The sustainability decision-making wheel has been produced for this project 

and the overall impacts are positive, particularly around reducing carbon 
emissions, reducing poverty, and improving health and well-being of 
residents.  

  
3.4.2 Pollution from the insulation manufacturing process along with embedded 

carbon in the supply chain are highlighted as areas of negative 
impact.  However, work is on-going with the procurement team to address 
how we can build a more sustainable supply chain going forwards.  

 

 
3.5 Employee  
 
3.5.1 There is an allocation within the funding award to recruit a Project Manager to 

oversee delivery and report on progress to the Energy Hub.  This is a new 

Page 67



 

 

position within the Warm Homes structure as per the HR report at Appendix 
C. 

 
3.5.2 Resource from legal will be required to review the final version of the Grant 

Agreement/ MOU, once available. 
 
3.5.3 Resource from Information Governance will be required to review the data 

sharing arrangements and agreements, once available. 
 
3.6 Communications 
 
3.6.1 The programme will consist of a pre-defined property list and so no promotion 

or marketing of the scheme is required by the Council’s comms team. 
 

3.6.2 Engagement and communication with tenants will be undertaken by Berneslai 
Homes. 

 
4. CONSULTATION 
 
4.1 Consultations have taken place with Berneslai Homes, the Northeast and 

Yorkshire Energy Hub, OVO Energy Services, Turner & Townsend, 
procurement, finance and legal. 

 
5. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
5.1 The Council does not accept the funding allocated - This is not recommended 

given that tackling fuel poverty and reducing carbon emissions from housing 
stock are key priorities for the Council in seeking to address the 
disproportionate impact that the Cost-of-Living crisis is having across our 
borough. 

 
5.2 That the Council does not approve recruitment of a Warm Homes Project 

Manager -This is not recommended as this post will be key in liaising between 
the funders, delivery partner and Berneslai Homes to ensure that funding 
spend is maximised and the scheme achieves its targets. 

 
6. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1 SHDF Wave 2.1 provides a further opportunity for the Council to maximise 

available external funding to help to increase the energy efficiency of its 
housing stock, which is one of its priorities towards achieving net zero carbon. 

 
6.2 Although the match funding requirement has increased from 30% under Wave 

1 to 50%, it is still beneficial to access this funding for the more expensive 
measures such as solid wall insulation which now costs upwards of £16,000 
per property. 

 
6.3 OVO Energy Services will sub-contract out delivery of the scheme which 

raises opportunities for the local supply chain to be involved in the delivery of 
retrofit works. In turn, this will help to grow jobs and skills for a local green 
economy. 

Page 68



 

 

 
6.4 Tackling fuel poverty is becoming more urgent as energy costs have doubled 

over the last 6 months and continue to rise.  This means many more 
households will struggle to keep their homes warm over the winter months.  
Upgrading the energy efficiency of properties is key to helping to reduce the 
amount of energy needed to maintain a warm home and therefore reduce 
energy costs. 

 
7. LIST OF APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A: Financial Implications 
 
Appendix B:  Sample MOU document 
 
Appendix C: HR Report 

 
8. REPORT SIGN OFF 
 

Financial consultation & 
sign off 

Senior Financial Services officer consulted 
and date 
 
See appendix A 

Legal consultation & sign 
off 
 

Legal Services officer consulted and date 
Martin Wong 26/05/23 

 
 
Report Author: Claire Miskell 
Post:   Programme Manager 
Date:   25/04/23 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A
Report of the Executive Director for Place

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund & Affordable Warmth Programme

2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 TOTAL
£M £M £M £M

Expenditure:

Installation Works 1,622 1,622 3,244
Project Support Costs 175 175 350

Total Expenditure 1,797 1,797 - 3,594

Resources:

SHDF Grant 0.899 0.899 1.797
HRA Reserves 0.899 0.899 1.797

Total Resources 1.797 1.797 - 3.594

Agreed by:
.............................................................

On behalf of the Service Director-
Finance, Section 151 Officer

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

 
 

SOCIAL HOUSING DECARBONISATION FUND WAVE 1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
Between the 

 
SECRETARY OF STATE FOR BUSINESS, ENERGY AND INDUSTRIAL STRATEGY 

 
And 

 
Barnsley Council 

 

 

  

Page 73



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

 
 

Changes/clarifications from version issued as part of the SHDF – Wave 1 

competition launch (August 2021)  

Section Paragraph Change 

Definitions 

 

- Funding Period end date changed to 31 

March 2023 

- Definition of ‘Monitoring Officer’ added 

- Amended wording of ‘project baseline’ to 

clarify this refers to the Baseline 

Milestone Schedule  

- SHDF Competition amended to SHDF – 

Wave 1 and conclusion date updated  

- SHDF – Wave 1 Projects definition 

added 

Background 7 Total funding amounts updated to 

‘approximately £178m’  

Added a sentence to reflect that a formal 

change control mechanism will be used 

in the case of any changes to the 

performance, cost and time envelope of 

projects, including potential extensions 

beyond March 2023 

The grant 10 Date of documentation return amended 

Scope of activity 15 Clarification added to reflect this is during 

the Funding Period and in line with the 

approved Proposal 

Use of third-party 

delivery partners 

23 f Added in sentence on complying with UK 

subsidy control rules 

Interaction with other 

funding 

27 Clarification added RE co-funding from 

other schemes 

Subsidy control 33 Further text added to provide clarification 

Suspension 50 Text updated to reflect that delivery may 

be suspended, rather than payment of 

the Grant 

Page 74



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

 
 

Governance 

 

 

 

54 Monthly report submission to be on the 

10th working day (prev. 20th working day) 

55 c Number of top risks changed to 5 (prev. 

10) 

55 Paragraph omitted – early indication of 

change requests to be submitted via 

email not via the Monthly Report (refer to 

paragraphs 64 – 68 for details) 

56 Clarification that any modification of data 

requirements will be communicated to 

the Authority 

57 Text added to reflect that the Authority 

should have a system to collect inputs 

from all consortium members if it is part 

of a consortium 

Clarification that ‘the data’ refers to the 

data set out in Annex 7: Data 

Requirements 

Change Requests and 

Variations 

64 - 68 Updated to reflect the current change 

control process  

Performance 

 

79 Monthly Report to be submitted on the 

10th working day of each month (prev. 

20th) 

80 b The review of progress will be against 

the Updated Baseline Milestone 

Schedule 

81 Clarification of baseline meaning 

82 Text in ‘Planned Milestone Date’ column 

updated to state ‘determined by Project 

Proposal’ 

83 Planned milestone date determined by 

the Updated Baseline Milestone 

Schedule 

86 Updated information on signing of the 

DSA 

Page 75



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

 
 

87 Further detail added around sharing the 

Privacy Notice  

Monitoring, evaluation 

and audit 

 

89 f Process for providing Monthly Report 

updated 

89 i Clarification added that the Authority’s 

privacy notice should mirror what is 

documented in the DSA 

Further detail added around sharing the 

Privacy Notice 

89 j Updated information on signing of the 

DSA 

89 l Added sentence on participation in 

regular Learning Community events 

Documents to be 

provided 

115 Updated Baseline Milestone Schedule to 

be provided 

Table 2 added to reflect updated DSA 

signing process and revised deadlines 

Table 3 added to reflect the updated risk 

register completion date 

Annex 2 - Text in Annex B of the Grant 

Determination updated to reflect that the 

conditions will be complied with (this 

previously stated that they had already 

been complied with) 

Annex 4 - Template for risk register updated and 

simplified 

Annex 5 - Data Sharing Agreement updated to 

Wave 1 DSA (competition documents 

contained Demo DSA) 

Annex 6 (a & b) - Annex 6 split into 6a and 6b to reflect the 

need for an Updated Baseline Milestone 

Schedule (Annex 6b) 

Page 76



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

 
 

Clarification added to Annex 6a to reflect 

that the Proposal is the application 

submitted as part of the competition 

Annex 7 - Revised to reflect monthly data to be 

supplied on the 10th working day of each 

month (prev. 20th) 

Additional data requirements added 

Annex 9 - Added in the AP1a form as Annex 9 

Annex 10 - Added in the Small Amounts of Funding 

Declaration as Annex 10 

- - Privacy Notice template moved to be 

Appendix F of the DSA 

 

 

Page 77



 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

SHDF – WAVE 1 

Table of Contents 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING .................................................................. 2 

Annex 1: Section 151 or Section 73 Officer Declaration .......................................... 28 

Annex 2: Grant Determination .................................................................................. 29 

Annex 3: Grant Claim Form ...................................................................................... 31 

Annex 4: Risk Register ............................................................................................. 32 

Annex 5: Data Sharing Agreement (DSA) ................................................................ 33 

Annex 6a: Approved Application Proposal (the Proposal) ........................................ 75 

Annex 6b: Updated Baseline Milestone Schedule .................................................... 76 

Annex 7: Data Requirements ................................................................................... 77 

Annex 8: Recovery Plan (draft – final template to be provided to the Authority) ...... 78 

Annex 9: AP1a form ................................................................................................. 79 

Annex 10: Small Amounts of Funding Exemption Declaration ................................. 80 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 78



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

2 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

DEFINITIONS 

In this MoU the following terms will have the following meanings: 

“The Authority”, the Local Authority with whom this MoU is signed by. In the case 
of a Consortium, means the local authority that is to sign this MoU and is the lead 
local authority to whom the Grant will be paid by the Secretary of State, subject to 
the provisions of this MoU. 

“BEIS” means the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. 

“Co-funding” means the amount of contributary funding that the Authority should 

provide in addition to the Grant (as confirmed in the approved Proposal (Annex 6a). 

The minimum co-funding contribution required from the Authority for SHDF – Wave 1 

Projects will be a third of total Eligible Expenditure.  

“Commencement Date” refers to [BEIS to insert date when signing] when the MoU 

is signed and therefore comes into effect. 

“Consortium” means a group of registered providers working together to deliver the 
Proposal set out in Annex 6a under the leadership of the Authority.  

“Eligible Installer” means contractors that are currently trading, are registered with 
TrustMark1 and compliant with “PAS 2035:2019 Retrofitting dwellings for improved 
energy efficiency. Specification and guidance.” RPs should ensure that their 
installers hold the appropriate certifications for the Eligible Measures that they are 
installing. PAS 2035:2019 requires that all energy efficiency measures within the 
scope of the PAS2030:2019 standards must be delivered by installers who are 
certified to this standard and all low-carbon heating measures must be installed by a 
Microgeneration Certification Scheme (MCS) certified2 installer. We expect all 
contractors to work safely as we recover from the pandemic, following Covid-19 
secure working practices.  

“Eligible Expenditure” means payments by the Authority during the Funding Period 
for the purposes of delivering the Proposal, as approved by BEIS, which comply in 
all respects with the rules set out in paragraphs 15 to 20 (Scope of Activity) of this 
MoU. 

“Eligible Household” means a household which meets the eligibility requirements 
to which Eligible Measures may be delivered on behalf of the Authority as set out in 
the Proposal i.e. all social homes below EPC Band C. If it makes sense for a small 
number of homes in a block or street that are at or above EPC Band C to be 
included in an application with a primary focus on below EPC Band C social homes, 
this is possible as long as it is justified in the application on an ‘infill’ basis, and at 
least 70% of homes across the application are below EPC Band C. Adoption of an 
'infill' approach to allow the scheme to deal with Mixed Tenure would allow certain 

 
1 Or a scheme that the Secretary of State is satisfied is equivalent. 
2 Or a scheme that the Secretary of State is satisfied is equivalent. 

Page 79



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

3 
 

non-social homes to receive communal fabric measures predominantly limited to 
external wall insulation (EWI) and ventilation through SHDF – Wave 1 as long as the 
application contains at least 70% social homes. 

“Eligible Measures” are any energy efficiency and heating measures compatible 
with the Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) that will help improve properties to 
the required performance standards. This includes, but is not limited to, energy 
efficiency measures (such as wall, loft, and underfloor insulation) and low carbon 
heating technologies. A list of SAP eligible measures can be found in Appendix T of 
the SAP 2012 guidance document. This is with the exception of heating systems 
which are solely fuelled by fossil fuels, such as the installation or repair of a fossil 
fuel-based heating system, or the replacement of an existing fossil fuel-based 
heating system with another fossil fuel-based heating system, which are not in 
scope. For more information on Eligible Measures please refer to Section 2.9 of the 
SHDF Competition Guidance document. 

“Funding Period” is the period for which the Grant is awarded starting on the 
Commencement Date to 31 March 2023.  

“The Grant” is the capital funding made available by the Secretary of State to the 
Authority under this MoU to deliver Wave 1 of the Social Housing Decarbonisation 
Fund as stated in paragraphs 9 to 14. 

“Mixed Tenure” means a building or a group of buildings which contain multiple 

tenure types. 

“Monitoring Officer” means the role of individuals from the Scheme Administrator, 
allocated to the Authority, who are the first point of contact for questions. They will 
assist the Authority with reporting requirements from BEIS and will submit the 
Monthly Report. They will also attend monthly update calls and site visits with each 
Authority as required. 

“Monthly Report” has the meaning given to it in paragraph 55. 

“The Parties” means the Secretary of State and the Authority together collectively.  

“Project Team” means the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund project team 
within BEIS responsible for the delivery of the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund 
Wave 1. 

“Programme Board” means the lead governing authority for the Social Housing 
Decarbonisation Fund Wave 1. 

“Proposal” means the Authority’s proposal set out in Annex 6a. This includes the 
Baseline Milestone Schedule submitted as part of the Authority’s proposal.  

“Registered Provider” means a registered provider (RP) of social housing, 
including private and Local Authority. 

“RHI” means the Renewable Heat Incentive, a government financial incentive 
scheme that promotes the deployment of renewable heating systems.  

Page 80

https://www.bre.co.uk/filelibrary/SAP/2012/SAP-2012_9-92.pdf
https://www.bre.co.uk/filelibrary/SAP/2012/SAP-2012_9-92.pdf


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

4 
 

“Scheme Administrator” are working on behalf of BEIS to help to launch the 

project, administer the project, monitor the projects progress, support the reporting of 

risks and associated mitigations and provide technical support to the SHDF Wave 1 

Project Team. The Scheme Administrator may also be referred to as the Delivery 

Partner. 

“Secretary of State” means the Secretary of State for Business, Energy and 
Industrial Strategy. 

“Services” are the services the Authority is expected to procure for delivery under 
the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund Wave 1 Competition. 

“SHRA” means the Social Housing Retrofit Accelerator which is the technical 

assistance facility that has been established to support applications to Wave 1 of the 

SHDF.   

“Spend” means any funding committed and accrued to an Eligible Expenditure, as 
long as such activity is due for completion within the Funding Period. 

“SHDF” means the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund. 

“SHDF - Wave 1” means funding via Wave 1 of the Social Housing Decarbonisation 
Fund which starts from the Commencement Date and concludes on 31 March 2023. 

“SHDF - Wave 1 Projects” means all Projects agreed through the competitive 
allocation process and their associated deliverables.  

 
PURPOSE 

1. To establish the way the parties to the Memorandum of Understanding 
(hereafter referred to as the “MoU”) will work together to deliver SHDF – Wave 
1 in England.  
 

2. To clarify the roles and responsibilities of the parties to the MoU.  
 

3. The Parties to this MoU are:  
 

a. The Secretary of State for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy 
(“Secretary of State”); and 

 
b. Barnsley Council known as “the Authority”. 

 

The Secretary of State and the Authority are known together collectively as “the 
Parties”. 

 

4. The Secretary of State has decided to grant capital funding through Wave 1 of 
the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund to the Authority. The Authority has 
committed to spend such funds to deliver Eligible Measures to Eligible 
Households, using Eligible Installers. 

Page 81



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

5 
 

 

5. The Parties wish to record their understanding regarding the Grant funding which 
are detailed in this MoU.  

BACKGROUND 

6. The Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF) is a £3.8bn 2019 

Conservative manifesto commitment over a 10-year period to improve the energy 

performance of social rented homes, on the pathway to Net Zero 2050. The 

SHDF will upgrade a significant amount of the social housing stock currently 

below, and on an ‘infill’ basis at or above, EPC Band C up to that standard; 

delivering warm, energy-efficient homes, reducing carbon emissions and fuel 

bills, tackling fuel poverty, and supporting green jobs.  

 

7. The SHDF will be delivered through a series of individual projects (‘waves’). The 

first wave of the programme is called Wave 1 and will provide around £178m to 

England only projects to support Registered Providers of social housing, 

including private and local authority providers, to improve the energy 

performance of their social housing stock by installing Eligible Measures. The 

£178m project is to be awarded in FY2021/22 and is expected to be delivered 

through to March 2023. Any changes to the performance, cost and time envelope 

of the projects will be the subject of a formal change control mechanism as set 

out in paragraphs 64-68, including potential extensions beyond March 2023. 

 

OUTCOMES 

8. The primary purpose of the SHDF is to raise the energy performance certificate 
(EPC) rating of social homes to a minimum of EPC Band C; or to EPC Band D 
where Band C is not possible for EPC Band F/G homes and justification has 
been provided. Wave 1 will look to improve a significant number of homes using 
a ‘worst first, fabric first’ approach. We expect the SHDF to result in the following 
outcomes: 

 

• Fuel Poverty: Reduce the numbers in fuel poverty by improving the energy 

efficiency rating of social homes below EPC Band C and reducing energy bills. 

On this basis, tenant energy bills should not increase for equivalent home 

warmth, and it is expected that bills will reduce.  

• Carbon: Deliver cost effective carbon savings to contribute to carbon budgets, 

and progress towards the UK’s target for Net Zero by 2050 by reducing CO2 

emissions from social housing.  

• Green Economy: Support economic resilience and a green recovery in 

response to the economic impacts of Covid-19, supporting thousands of jobs.  

• Tenants: Improve the comfort, health, and well-being of social housing tenants 

by delivering warmer and more energy-efficient homes. 

Page 82



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

6 
 

 

THE GRANT 

9. The Secretary of State grants the Authority capital funding of  
(“the Grant”) to deliver the outcomes in line with their Proposal. This funding is 
subject to the Authority providing the documentation and information in 
accordance with paragraph 10.  
 

10. The Authority will as soon as possible and by the 28th February 2022 at the 
latest provide the Secretary of State with the documentation and information 
listed in Paragraph 115, Table 1.  
 

11. Once BEIS is satisfied that the completed documentation and information listed 
in Paragraph 115, Table 1 has been received, it will arrange for the PO to be 
raised and for payments to be made. 
 

12. The Grant is made available for use during the Funding Period.  
 

13. At the Secretary of State’s sole discretion, the Secretary of State reserves the 
right to determine an extension beyond the Funding Period, should the 
Authority provide a request in writing to do so. It is expected that all works will 
be delivered by the end of the Funding Period. 

 

14. The Authority will ensure that any public communications it issues about SHDF 
– Wave 1 and SHDF – Wave 1 Projects, or the Proposal are not misleading as 
to the extent to which they are funded by the Secretary of State. 

 

SCOPE OF ACTIVITY 

 

15. The Authority will use the Grant in accordance with the provisions of this MoU to 
only incur Eligible Expenditure during the Funding Period, as provided for in the 
BEIS approved Proposal (Annex 6a).   

 
16. In delivering the Proposal, Eligible Expenditure are payments properly incurred 

in relation to: 
 

a. A recipient who is a ‘Registered Provider’; and 
 
b. Installation of ‘Eligible Measures’; and 

 

c. completed by an ‘Eligible Installer’; and 
 

d. Installation is completed during the ‘Funding Period’.  
 
17. Cost of upgrades for social homes: To further ensure value for money, there will 

be grant cost caps in place for each home. These cost caps will be scaled based 
on the starting EPC Band of a home, to ensure that the worst performing homes 
can be treated. Grant cost caps (with accompanying co-funding) are as follows: 

Page 83



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

7 
 

 

Starting 

EPC Band 

Maximum SHDF 

Grant Funding for 

Retrofit Works 

Minimum 1/3 RP 

Contribution (co-funding) 

(if maximum grant level 

applied for) 

Total Spend on 

retrofit works (if 

maximum grant 

funding utilised) 

D £10,000 £5,000 £15,000 

E £12,000 £6,000 £18,000 

F £16,000 £8,000 £24,000 

G £16,000 £8,000 £24,000 

 

18. Where the Grant includes capital funding, accounting standards permit, in certain 
circumstances, the capitalisation of costs incurred when delivering the capital 
assets for the Proposal (for example, administrative and ancillary). 
Administration and ancillary costs are expected to be as low as possible and 
comprise less than 15% of the total budget. It is expected the Authority will keep 
such costs incurred in delivering the Proposal below 15% of the SHDF – Wave 
1 total Grant provided by the Secretary of State. In all other cases capital funding 
must not be spent on revenue expenditure. 
 

19. The Authority will use Eligible Installers who are suitably certified as defined 
above.  
 

20. Without prejudice to any other provisions of this MoU, the Authority will not use 
the Grant for the following purposes: 

• For the provision of measures which are not Eligible Measures. 

• To fund the provision of any lending to third parties. 

• To replace funding for an existing project, including any staff costs for an 
existing project and any projects to deliver statutory obligations, although 
the Grant may be used to extend the geographical coverage, scope or scale 
of an existing project (and for additional staff costs attributable to the 
extension of the project). 

• Use for activities of a political or religious nature. 

• Use in respect of costs reimbursed or to be reimbursed by funding from 
public authorities or from the private sector. 

• Use in connection with the receipt of contributions in kind (a contribution in 
goods or services as opposed to money). 

• Use to cover interest payments (including service charge payments for 
finance leases). 

• Use for entertaining (entertaining for this purpose means anything that 
would be a taxable benefit to the person being entertained, according to 
current UK tax regulations). 

• Use to pay statutory fines, criminal fines or penalties. 

• Use to pay for Eligible Expenditure incurred before the date of this MoU. 

Page 84



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

8 
 

 

VALUE ADDED TAX 

21. This grant funding to the Authority falls out of scope of VAT. This is because the 
provision of the Grant is not a consideration of supply for VAT purposes.  
 

22. If the Authority enters into a third-party contractual relationship with a supplier 
(per the terms of Secretary of State issuing the Grant) and incurs non-
recoverable VAT on the supply provided, the Authority should ensure this does 
not exceed the total Grant award. This means recoverable VAT should not be 
included in the grant requested.  

 

USE OF THIRD-PARTY DELIVERY PARTNERS  

23. Where the Authority is not directly responsible for delivery and instead chooses 
to provide funding to other public bodies (e.g. local authorities), the Authority will 
ensure that funding provided:  
 

a. Addresses the primary objectives of SHDF – Wave 1.   
 

b. Is deliverable within the timescales set out for the Funding Period.  
 

c. Considers value for money with regard to the total number of homes 
upgraded by measure and the total administrative and management costs 
which will be borne by the third party.  

 
d. Identifies any additional value-adding elements which are aligned to the 

overall objectives of SHDF – Wave 1.  
 

e. Can be reported against in line with the KPIs and reporting arrangements 
as set out in this MoU.  

 

f. Complies with United Kingdom subsidy control rules. 
 

24. For the avoidance of doubt, where the Authority provides any funding to third 
parties for activities undertaken during the Funding Period, it will ensure that the 
provisions within this MoU are included in any arrangement with these third 
parties.  

 
25. The Authority is expected to work with these third parties to ensure that key risks 

are identified and managed.  
 

26. In the consideration of use of Consortia, the Secretary of State acknowledges 
that it may not be appropriate to implement commercial contractual 
arrangements between the Authority and other public bodies. However, the 
Authority will consider ways in which other public bodies’ performance during the 
Funding Period can be appropriately managed such that the Grant can be 

Page 85



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

9 
 

redistributed from poorly performing or slow to deliver third parties to those which 
are meeting their performance and delivery targets.  
 

INTERACTION WITH OTHER FUNDING 

27. Funding applications received from SHDF – Wave 1 can be blended with other 
government schemes such as the Energy Company Obligation (ECO), or 
the Sustainable Warmth competition (SW), to support works on the same home 
but cannot be used to fund the same individual measure. Funding received from 
other government schemes cannot be used to meet co-funding requirements of 
the SHDF – Wave 1 Grant. 
 

28. Applicants who have been successful under the SHDF Demonstrator may apply 
for funding under this SHDF – Wave 1 with different housing stock, subject to the 
Proposal complying with the eligibility criteria for this scheme, as set out in 
Section 2 of the SHDF Competition guidance document3.   

 
29. The Authority takes full responsibility for ensuring that any blending of funding is 

compliant with each individual scheme and the respective requirements and 
objectives for each fund is met.  

 

30. SHDF – Wave 1 is grant funding from public funds, therefore, for the purposes 
of the RHI any funding from SHDF – Wave 1 for low carbon heating measures 
must be declared to Ofgem (the RHI scheme administrator) when an 
accreditation application to the RHI is made. The SHDF – Wave 1 grant amount 
will then be deducted from the Authority’s RHI payments as per the RHI rules on 
grant funding. Potential applicants to the RHI should be aware of the RHI 
eligibility criteria and scheme rules. More information on the RHI can be found 
here and here. 

 

31. The Authority can, however, blend funding they receive from SHDF – Wave 1 
with third party finance or local authority budgets to deliver additional support to 
communities.   
 

32. The Secretary of State intends to utilise data matching between schemes in order 
to monitor that the same measure installed in the same home is not claimed for 
under different schemes. 
 

SUBSIDY CONTROL 

33. The Authority acknowledges that they must ensure that the funding awarded is 
compliant with all current Subsidy Control legislation applicable in the United 
Kingdom.  
 
Where the Grant will be passed from the Authority to a Private Registered 
Provider, for example a Housing Association as part of a consortium, this will be 

 
3 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/10
16303/shdf-wave-1-competition-guidance.pdf  

Page 86

https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/environmental-programmes/domestic-rhi/applicants/registered-social-and-private-landlords
https://www.ofgem.gov.uk/environmental-and-social-schemes/domestic-renewable-heat-incentive-domestic-rhi
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1016303/shdf-wave-1-competition-guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1016303/shdf-wave-1-competition-guidance.pdf


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

10 
 

considered a subsidy in accordance with the task of social housing under 
Services of Public Economic Interest. The requirements can be found within 
the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation agreement and the subsequent guidance 
from the department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS).   
 
In instances of the Authority using the Grant on their own social housing stock – 
this will not be considered a subsidy.  
 
Where leaseholder or freeholder (right to buy) properties are included in the 
Proposal, the Small Amounts of Funding Exemption4 applies. To receive funding 
under this exemption, landlords should declare to the Authority that the support 
they are receiving does not exceed 325,000 Special Drawing Rights5 threshold 
across three financial years from all public sources. A declaration has been 
provided at Annex 10 of this MoU. Subsidies below this amount are exempt from 
the application of the subsidy’s provisions of the TCA. 

 
34. To minimise the risk that a court of competent jurisdiction requires grant funding 

to be repaid, the Authority will: 
 

a. Comply with any applicable subsidy control regime in its use of the Grant 
and its delivery of the Proposal; and 

b. Ensure that use of the Grant in connection with the Proposal complies with 
any applicable subsidy control regime. 

 
35. The Authority must obtain and retain all declarations and information as may be 

required to enable both the Authority and the Secretary of State to comply with 
any applicable subsidy control regime, and to provide copies of such declarations 
and information to the Secretary of State when required to do so.  
 

PROCUREMENT AND OTHER BENEFITS TO THIRD PARTIES 

36. The Authority will, in delivering the Proposal:  
a. Comply with all relevant requirements of UK law relating to public procurement 

in force and applicable from time to time. 
b. The Authority will give due consideration to the use of Small & Medium 

Enterprises (SMEs) within the supply chain and ensure contracting and sub-
contracting opportunities are advertised as such to encourage participation of 
SME and local supply chains. BEIS has its own SME action plan6. 

c. When conducting procurement activities, the Authority will comply with the 
obligations under the Equality Act 2010 and its associated Public Sector 
Equality Duty. 

d. The Authority will comply with the Local Government Transparency Code 2015. 
 
 

 
4 See the ‘UK-EU Trade and Cooperation Agreement frequently asked questions’ in the BEIS 
guidance, available here. 
5 Public authorities should use the International Monetary Fund SDR convertor to determine the 
Stirling equivalent amount. 
6 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/beis-small-and-medium-enterprises-sme-action-plan 

Page 87

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/ukeu-and-eaec-trade-and-cooperation-agreement-ts-no82021
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fcomplying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities&data=04%7C01%7CMia.Jeannot%40beis.gov.uk%7C27f2df64f51a48f74b5308d93e22aef1%7Ccbac700502c143ebb497e6492d1b2dd8%7C0%7C0%7C637609140955800173%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=yPmJlDVa1utR0ILCRe%2BGhopqYP8XrVtUWpje%2BWjoegM%3D&reserved=0
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/complying-with-the-uks-international-obligations-on-subsidy-control-guidance-for-public-authorities/technical-guidance-on-the-uks-international-subsidy-control-commitments#section-5
https://www.imf.org/external/np/fin/data/rms_five.aspx
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fpublications%2Fbeis-small-and-medium-enterprises-sme-action-plan&data=04%7C01%7CLisa.Sharp%40beis.gov.uk%7Ce8d33bf4cbd94847555308d92c30919a%7Ccbac700502c143ebb497e6492d1b2dd8%7C0%7C0%7C637589409370496078%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=qmtY0Ajb7muyg8HF0olHTuoVk6gzoKSJF8YZATH0H2c%3D&reserved=0


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

11 
 

 
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT EXPECTATIONS 

37. The Authority acknowledges that when managing its supply chain it should 
expect its suppliers and subcontractors to meet the standards set out in the 
Government Supplier Code of Conduct published by the HM Government on best 
practise expectations7. 
  

PROMPT PAYMENT  

38. In delivering the Proposal, the Authority will, unless the Secretary of State agrees 
otherwise in writing, pay the person from whom any goods, works or services are 
purchased within 30 days of receiving a valid undisputed invoice from that 
contractor. 

a. The Authority will also ensure this payment timeline is included within any 
sub-contract arrangements of the contractor. 

 
39. The Authority will ensure that where it uses third-party delivery partners, in 

accordance with paragraph 24, that the funding provided is also paid within 30 
days of receiving a valid undisputed invoice from that contractor, or from 
receiving an acceptable proposal from a public body. 

a. When payment is made in accordance with Paragraph 39, the Authority will 
ensure that these payment timelines are included within any sub-
contractors of the third parties in accordance with Paragraph 24. 

 

MODERN SLAVERY, CHILD LABOUR AND INHUMANE TREATMENT 

40. The Authority acknowledges throughout the Grant Funding Period that it should 
maintain its own policies and procedures to ensure its compliance with the 
Modern Slavery Act 2015 and include in its contracts with its suppliers and 
subcontractors anti-slavery and human trafficking provisions. 

 
41. If the Authority becomes aware of any concerns that any part of the supply chain 

may have breached the Modern Slavery Act 2015 then this must be reported 
within the Risk Management procedure and the Project Team be informed 
instantly.  

 

COMMERCIAL USE OF THE GRANT 

42. The Authority will not use the Grant, or any asset financed wholly or partly by it, 
to generate revenue or make a capital gain, except to the extent agreed as part 
of the Proposal. If the Authority does so, it will: 

 
7 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/77
9660/20190220-Supplier_Code_of_Conduct.pdf 

 

Page 88

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/779660/20190220-Supplier_Code_of_Conduct.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/779660/20190220-Supplier_Code_of_Conduct.pdf


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

12 
 

a. Inform the Secretary of State immediately and in writing; and 
b. Agree that the Grant may be reduced by the amount of that revenue or gain 

(as the case may be). 
 

GRANT WITHDRAWAL AND REPAYMENT 

43. In accordance with paragraphs 43 to 49, it is the understanding of the Parties 
that the Secretary of State may request the Authority to repay all, or any 
proportion of, the Grant, together with interest (calculated in accordance with 
paragraph 47).  

 
44. The Authority accepts that the Secretary of State may exercise the options 

referred to in paragraph 43 where the Secretary of State: 
a. is required to cease grant funding or to recover all, or any proportion, of the 

Grant or any other amount by virtue of a decision of a court or other 
competent authority;  

b. Has reasonable grounds to consider that the payment of the Grant, or the 
Authority’s use of it, contravenes any requirement of law, in particular (but 
without limitation) law relating to subsidy control; or 

c. Has reasonable grounds to consider that the Grant was irregularly obtained 
or spent in a way that does not meet the SHDF – Wave 1 scope referred to 
in paragraphs 15 to 20.  
 

45. When exercising the options referred to in paragraph 43, the Secretary of State 
will notify the Authority of the grounds concerned and as far as possible, consider 
the Authority’s representations made within any reasonable timeframe required 
by the Secretary of State.  

 
46. A decision by the Secretary of State to ask the Authority to repay the Grant will 

be communicated by letter, and the Authority will make that repayment within 30 
days of the date of that letter or within any later reasonable timeframe agreed by 
the Secretary of State in writing. 

 

47. Where the Secretary of State requests repayment, interest will be calculated from 
the date of the Grant payment, in accordance with: 
a. the retail prices index over the relevant period (that index being taken as 0% 

for any period during which the index is negative); or 
b. any other rate required by law in the circumstances, including subsidy control, 

if it is higher. 
 

48. Where the Authority does not make the relevant payment within the timeframe 
specified in paragraph 46, further interest on the outstanding sum (inclusive of 
interest already charged under paragraph 47 will accrue, after that deadline, at 
the statutory rate of interest under Section 6 of the Late Payment of Commercial 
Debts (Interest) Act 1998 or any other rate required by law in the circumstances, 
if it is higher). 

 
49. Should the Secretary of State not exercise their options under paragraph 43 or 

delay in doing so, this will not constitute a waiver of those options unless the 

Page 89



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

13 
 

Secretary of State confirms such a waiver in writing. Furthermore, any such 
written waiver will not be taken as a precedent for any other, or subsequent, 
circumstances. 

 

SUSPENSION 
50. The Secretary of State may suspend delivery of the Proposal where: 

a. One of the grounds in paragraph 44 arises. 
b. The Secretary of State has reasonable cause to believe that one of those 

grounds may have arisen, or is likely to arise; or 
c. One of the provisions of the MoU is not met by the Authority. 

 
51. In the case of any suspension, unless the Secretary of State confirms a contrary 

agreement in writing:  
a. The Authority will continue to comply with the requirements of this MoU 

including any deadlines occurring during the period of suspension; but 
b. The Authority will not make any further use of the Grant until the Secretary 

of State has authorised continued use of the Grant in writing. 
 

52. The Authority will inform the Secretary of State in writing if it has any concerns 
that any of the grounds in paragraph 44 might arise or that it will not be able to 
meet the provisions of the MoU. If such concerns arise after the Authority has 
received the Grant, the Authority will not make any use of the Grant until the 
Secretary of State has authorised continued use of the Grant in writing.  
 

AGREED USE OF UNDERSPEND 

53. In the event that the Authority does not use all the Grant to secure delivery of the 
Proposal by the end of the Funding Period: 

a. The Parties will work together to agree how the Authority will spend any 
unspent Grant funding in line with the expected scope and outcomes of 
SHDF – Wave 1. Where this is the case, the Authority will notify the 
Secretary of State by 31st December 2022. 

b. The Secretary of State reserves the right to determine an extension to the 
Funding Period, should the Authority provide a request in writing to do so 
as per paragraph 13. 

c. If the Parties are unable to reach an agreement described in sub-paragraph 
(a), the Authority agrees to repay the unspent Grant within 30 days of the 
end of the Funding Period.  
 

GOVERNANCE 

54. On a monthly basis, the Authority will provide a monthly report to the Project 
Team acting on behalf of the Secretary of State on or before the 10th working day 
of each month (the “Monthly Report”) for the month prior. For example, the report 
covering the delivery period of 1 - 30 April 2022 will be required to be submitted 
on or before the 13th of May 2022. The Monthly Report will be submitted using a 
data management system created by the Project Team. All the data collected 
using the system will be compliant with UK GDPR, the Data Sharing Agreement 

Page 90



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

14 
 

and Privacy Notice that will be given to the Authority, as outlined in the 
Performance section. 
 

55. The Monthly Report should include, but is not limited to: 
a. An overview of monthly progress on the project. 
b. An update of the Authority’s progress against Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs) and project milestones (see paragraphs 82-83). 
c. Top 5 risks, issues and/ or concerns that could impact on the project (see 

paragraph 69). 
d. Any incidents of fraud. 
e. Specific per home information, including but not limited to requirements 

outlined in Annex 7. 
f. Any other items the Authority wishes to escalate to BEIS. 

 
56. A full breakdown of the data reporting requirements expected from the Authority 

can be seen in Annex 7. The Secretary of State reserves the right to modify data 
requirements if required and this will be communicated to the Authority.  

 

57. The Authority should put a system in place to enable the data (as set out in Annex 
7: Data Requirements) to be collected. Where the Authority is part of a 
consortium, the Monthly Report will need to include inputs from all local 
authorities, housing associations and delivery partners within the Authority’s 
consortium, through one consolidated Monthly Report.  

 

58. To achieve the data reporting requirements set out in Annex 7, the Authority is 
expected to include data collection requirements into all relevant agreements 
with their third-party delivery partners, collate the data across their project(s) on 
a routine basis, while checking the data for completeness and identifying any 
missing or erroneous data. 

 

59. Should the Project Team identify a significant variation in the Monthly Report 
performance of the project(s) against the targets stipulated in Paragraph 82 and 
83, or the Authority raises a risk or concern that could potentially undermine the 
delivery of their project(s), the Project Team, on behalf of the Secretary of State, 
may request a recovery plan. See Annex 8, detailing the interventions that may 
be required to help recover the project(s). 

 

60. The Project Team will determine if the interventions detailed in the recovery plan 
provide confidence of project recovery. If necessary, the Project Team will 
provide further recommendations to address areas of concern. The Project Team 
and the Authority will jointly agree a timescale to implement the interventions. 

 

61. The Monitoring Officer and the Authority will have a regular monthly meeting to 
discuss the progress of delivery of the Proposal and any issues arising from the 
Monthly Report. Where applicable, the Project Team will issue the agenda and 
relevant actions from these meetings. At a minimum, the Authority will provide 
everything listed in paragraph 55 to the Project Team. The Project Team and the 
Authority may agree to schedule ad-hoc meetings outside of the monthly 
meetings. These requests will be considered on a case-by-case basis and 

Page 91



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

15 
 

reasonable notice will be provided by the Project Team, as well as a proposed 
agenda. 
 

62. The Authority will take all reasonable steps to accommodate site visits to the 
project site(s) by the Project Team, the Secretary of State, other Ministers of State 
or approved contractors. The Monitoring Officer will work with the Authority to 
ensure relevant documents and personnel are available for the site visits.  
 

63. The purpose of the site visits will be to enable the Project Team, or approved 
contractors, to conduct a visual inspection of project progress, to discuss the 
progress and or future direction of the project and to conduct administrative 
checks on the project’s on-site audit trails. 

 

CHANGE REQUESTS AND VARIATIONS  

64. The Authority will notify the Project Team via email if there are any variations 
from the project Proposal in relation to delivery (time, cost or performance). If 
the Project Team consider the variation to the project Proposal to be 
substantive, the Project Team will confirm to the Authority that a formal Change 
Request is required via a standardised proforma, to be submitted to the Project 
Team via email.  
 

65. The Project Team will contact the Authority to conduct an initial review of the 
submitted change request to gather further information, including its impact on 
the project and overall programme.  
 

66. The Project Team will conduct an internal assessment on how to respond to the 
Change Request and advise the Authority whether the request has been 
accepted or rejected in writing within 5 - 30 working days (depending on the 
nature of the change).  

 

67. If the Authority disagree with the response, they should write to the SHDF 
Programme Director explaining their concerns with 5 working days of receiving 
the initial response.  

 

68. No variation of this MoU will be effective unless it is agreed in writing and signed 
by both Parties.  This does not prevent either Party making reasonable changes 
in relation to the administrative arrangements in the MoU (such as contact 
details) by notice in writing to the other Party, without such agreement in writing 
signed by both Parties. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

69. The Authority agrees to provide assurance that risks in relation to the Proposal 
have been identified and plans are in place to mitigate them. The Authority will 
complete the Risk Register in Annex 4 and return it to the Secretary of State as 
part of their MoU submission (please refer to Paragraph 115, Table 3 for details 
of when this should be provided). 

Page 92



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

16 
 

 

70. In providing assurance about the management of risks the Authority will identify 
risks and issues which arise from its own activities and those which arise from 
third parties, including those delivering measures or services under the scheme 
and those referring potential scheme recipients or otherwise publicising the 
scheme. 

 
71. The Authority will also include any other risks not included in the preceding 

paragraph 69 which it believes are relevant to the scheme. 
 

72. As part of the Monthly Report, the Authority will report the status of the risks 
and issues identified within the Risk Register, including on the implementation 
of mitigating actions, and whether any new risks or issues have emerged. The 
report will also provide a statement as to whether risk management is effective 
and whether any remedial action is necessary. The Authority will share both the 
risks it is managing, and risks raised by local authorities or any other third-party 
delivery partners. 

 

73. As soon as it becomes apparent to the Authority or the Project Team that a risk 
will significantly impact on the delivery of the Proposal, the Project Team and 
the Authority will together develop and work through recommendations to 
address each area of concern. 

 
FRAUD 

74. As part of the delivery of the Proposal, the Authority will be responsible for 
carrying out or arranging for the reasonable ongoing due diligence, controlling, 
monitoring, reporting, as well as managing any specific cases of suspected or 
identified fraud. 

 

75. The Secretary of State has specified that all Authorities funded through SHDF – 
Wave 1 should, at a minimum, have a robust fraud risk assessment in place, 
with mitigating counter fraud actions, to provide assurance about the 
management of fraud risks. The Authority agrees to provide a completed fraud 
risk assessment to the Secretary of State upon request.  

 

76. The Authority acknowledges it should implement controls to reduce the risk of 
fraud where possible, considering the following options when doing so: 

a. Implementing strategies regarding Counter Fraud, Bribery and 
Corruption. 

b. Staff awareness through training and educating all employees on fraud 
risk and appropriate action to take if fraud is suspected. 

c. Aiming to design fraud out of the Authority’s stages of the grant 
process. 

d. Through regular risk assessments throughout the Projects time frame. 
e. The use of the Authority’s Audit officer to proactively look for the 

potential fraud. 
f. Appropriate whistleblowing arrangements to support the reporting of 

fraud. 

Page 93



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

17 
 

g. Regular site visits in regard to oversight of the delivery implementation. 
 

77. In accordance with paragraphs 75 and 76, incidents of fraud will continue to be 
reported monthly throughout the Funding Period. 

 

78. The Authority will inform the Project Team at the earliest opportunity of any 
reports it has received or identified relating to any suspected fraudulent activity 
relating to the delivery of the Proposal and include a summary of investigative 
and/or corrective action. 

 
PERFORMANCE 
 
79. During the Funding Period, the Authority will submit a Monthly Report to the 

Project Team, as outlined under the Governance section, on or before the 10th 
working day of each month. 

 
80. The performance of the Authority will be determined in two ways.  

a) The KPIs within the Monthly Report will be reviewed against expected 
performance, see paragraph 82. 

b) A review of progress to achieve key project milestones, defined in 
paragraph 83, compared to the time forecasted to complete the 
milestones, as outlined in the Updated Baseline Milestone Schedule (see 
Annex 6b). 

 

81. The baseline referred to in the KPI description is the Updated Project Baseline 
Milestone Schedule as detailed in Annex 6b. 

 

82. Key performance indicators table: 
 

Ref KPI Title Definition Performance rating - monthly 

report (what have you 

completed within the reporting 

period) 

Forecast – end of the project 

(what do you forecast will be 

achieved by the end of the 

project) 

KPI 

1 

Number of 

properties 

completed the 

PAS2035 risk 

assessment stage 

(Milestone 2)  

The number of properties that 

have completed the PAS2035 risk 

assessment stage (Milestone 2) in 

month, and total cumulative all 

months. Performance targets for 

month and cumulative will be 

taken from the Project baseline.  

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

monthly target completed. 

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 

KPI 

2 

Number of 

properties 

completed 

PAS2035 

Dwelling 

Assessment stage 

(Milestone 3)  

The number of properties that 

have completed the PAS2035 

Dwelling Assessment stage 

(Milestone 3) in month, and total 

cumulative all months. 

Performance targets for month and 

cumulative will be taken from the 

Project baseline.  

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

monthly target completed. 

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

baseline plan to be achieved by 

the end of the project. 

Page 94



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

18 
 

KPI 

3 

Number of 

properties 

completed the 

design & 

coordination stage 

of the project 

The number of properties that 

have completed the design & 

coordination stage (Milestone 4) in 

month, and total cumulative all 

months. Performance targets for 

month and cumulative will be 

taken from the Project baseline.  

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

monthly target completed. 

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

baseline plan to be achieved by 

the end of the project. 

KPI 

4 

Number of privacy 

notices issued to 

tenants and 

installers 

The amount of privacy notices 

issued to tenants and installers 

outlining their right to opt in to take 

part in BEIS Monitoring & 

Evaluation activity in month, and 

total cumulative all months. 

Performance targets for month and 

cumulative will be taken from the 

Project baseline.  

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

monthly target completed. 

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

baseline plan to be achieved by 

the end of the project. 

KPI 

5 

Number of 

properties 

completed 

The number of properties that are 

deemed complete, i.e. completed 

the installation stage (Milestone 7) 

and have been registered in the 

TrustMark Data Warehouse, or 

equivalent, (Milestone 8) in month, 

and total cumulative all months. 

Performance targets for month and 

cumulative will be taken from the 

Project baseline.  

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
monthly target completed. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

monthly target completed. 

Green – 90% - 100% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Amber – 89% - 60% of the 
baseline plan to be achieved by 
the end of the project. 
Red – Less than 60% of the 

baseline plan to be achieved by 

the end of the project. 

KPI 

6 

Total project 

spend, including 

Grant Funding 

The amount of funding spent 

compared to the baseline project 

spend profile (+/-), including any 

co-funding, in month, and total 

cumulative all months.  Targets for 

month and cumulative will be 

taken from the Project baseline.  

Green – <10% under/overspend 
in the monthly reporting period, 
compared to baseline spend 
profile. 
Amber – Between 11% - 39% 
under/overspend in the monthly 
reporting period, compared to 
baseline spend profile. 
Red – >40% under/overspend in 

the monthly reporting period, 

compared to baseline spend 

profile. 

Green – <10% under/overspend 
by the end of the project 
compared to Cost Baseline. 
Amber – Between 11% - 39% 
under/overspend by the end of 
the project compared to Cost 
Baseline. 
project. 
Red – >40% under/overspend by 

the end of the project compared 

to Cost Baseline. 

 

83. Milestones table: 
 

Ref Title Description Planned 

Milestone Date 

Time Measurement (time taken to 

complete vs. time specified within 

Proposal) 

MS 
1 

Project Team 
Established 

Project Team, including 
Retrofit Coordinator, 
appointed and governance 
regime established and 
approved. 

Determined by 
Updated Baseline 
Milestone Schedule 

Green – delivered or on track to deliver less 
than 1 month late of Baseline plan date 
Amber - delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 1 month late but less 2 months later 
than of Baseline plan date  
Red – delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 2 month after Baseline plan date  

MS 
2 

PAS 2035 Risk 
Assessment stage 
completed 

All steps outlined under the 
PAS2035 Risk Assessment 
have been completed. 

Determined by 
Updated Baseline 
Milestone Schedule 

Green – delivered or on track to deliver less 
than 1 month late of Baseline plan date 
Amber - delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 1 month late but less 2 months later 
than of Baseline plan date  
Red – delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 2 month after Baseline plan date  

Page 95



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

19 
 

MS 
3 

Dwelling Assessment 
stage completed, 
including the 
Improvement option 
evaluation and mid-
term plan as 
appropriate to the risk 
assessment path 

All steps outlined under the 
PAS2035 dwelling 
assessment stage have been 
completed. 

Determined by 
Updated Baseline 
Milestone Schedule 

Green – delivered or on track to deliver less 
than 1 month late of Baseline plan date 
Amber - delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 1 month late but less 2 months later 
than of Baseline plan date  
Red – delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 2 month after Baseline plan date 

MS 
4 

Design & coordination 
stage completed 

All steps outlined under the 
PAS2035 Design & 
Coordination stage have been 
completed. 

Determined by 
Updated Baseline 
Milestone Schedule 

Green – delivered or on track to deliver less 
than 1 month late of Baseline plan date 
Amber - delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 1 month late but less 2 months later 
than of Baseline plan date  
Red – delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 2 month after Baseline plan date 

MS 
5 

Procurement activity 
completed 

All necessary procurement 
processes, including the 
execution of contract, for all 
core contractors to deliver the 
scheme as set out in the 
project plan have been 
completed. 

Determined by 
Updated Baseline 
Milestone Schedule 

Green – delivered or on track to deliver less 
than 1 month late of Baseline plan date 
Amber - delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 1 month late but less 2 months later 
than of Baseline plan date  
Red – delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 2 month after Baseline plan date  

MS 
6 

Installation stage 
started 

Installation work, as defined 
under the PAS2035 
Installation stage, has 
commenced. 

Determined by 
Updated Baseline 
Milestone Schedule 

Green – delivered or on track to deliver less 
than 1 month late of Baseline plan date 
Amber - delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 1 month late but less 2 months later 
than of Baseline plan date  
Red – delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 2 month after Baseline plan date 

MS 
7 

Installation stage 
completed 

All steps outlined under the 
PAS2035 Installation stage 
have been completed. 

Determined by 
Updated Baseline 
Milestone Schedule 

Green – delivered or on track to deliver less 
than 1 month late of Baseline plan date 
Amber - delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 1 month late but less 2 months later 
than of Baseline plan date  
Red – delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 2 month after Baseline plan date 

MS 
8  

Handover & data 
lodgement completed 

All installation work has been 
completed and lodged with 
TrustMark or equivalent within 
the Data Warehouse 

Determined by 
Updated Baseline 
Milestone Schedule 

Green – delivered or on track to deliver less 
than 1 month late of Baseline plan date 
Amber - delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 1 month late but less 2 months later 
than of Baseline plan date  
Red – delivered or on track to deliver more 
than 2 month after Baseline plan date 

 
 
84. If the Authority fails to provide their Monthly Report submission on or prior to 

the reporting deadline: The Project team will alert the Authority within 2 working 
days to submit the information. The Authority will be given a further 2 working 
days from this communication to rectify and send the information before the 
Project Team escalates this query to the BEIS Programme Director who will 
contact the agreed escalation point. If there is still no response within a further 
2 working days, the BEIS Programme Director will escalate this further to the 
Authority’s final agreed escalation point, if different. 

 

85. The Project Team will provide a BEIS Privacy Notice (as published on the 
SHDF Wave 1 webpage on gov.uk alongside the Wave 1 competition 
documents)8 and Data Sharing Agreement (in Annex 5 of this MoU) to the 
Authority outlining what data will be collected, how it will be stored and how it 
will be used by the Parties.  

 

 
8 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund/social-housing-
decarbonisation-fund-privacy-notice  

Page 96

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund-privacy-notice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund-privacy-notice


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

20 
 

86. The Authority will need to submit the signed Data Sharing Agreement in 
accordance with Paragraph 115, Table 2 of this MoU. 

 

87. The Authority must show the information on the BEIS Privacy Notice (as 
published on the SHDF Wave 1 webpage on gov.uk alongside the Wave 1 
competition documents)9 to data subjects alongside their own Privacy Notice to 
ensure that data subjects are appropriately informed about the processing of 
their data by RPs and by BEIS. Failure to do so could constitute a breach of UK 
GDPR. A template privacy notice that RPs may choose to use as their own 
privacy notice is included in Appendix F of the DSA. 

 
88. The Authority will notify all relevant parties of their data compliance obligations 

and ensure they are complying with them. 
 

MONITORING, EVALUATION AND AUDIT 
 

89. The Authority will support all activities in relation to monitoring, evaluation and 
audit. The Authority will: 

a. Respond fully, truthfully and promptly to any enquiries the Secretary of State, 
or the Comptroller and Auditor General, or their representatives, may make 
about the Proposal or the use of the Grant and provide any information and 
evidence reasonably requested, including by providing a statement of usage 
of the Grant (at such times, and in such form, as they may reasonably 
specify). 

b. Allow the Secretary of State, the Comptroller and Auditor General, and their 
representatives, access to all relevant documents and records, and 
reasonable access for inspecting any relevant site. 

c. Where requested, ensure that any information or evidence provided to the 
Secretary of State, the Comptroller and Auditor General, or their 
representatives, is audited by an identified and independent reporting 
accountant or otherwise confirmed or verified by a person of such other 
relevant expertise as they may reasonably specify; and 

d. Give reasonable assistance to the Secretary of State or the Secretary of 
State’s contractors to carry out work in connection with the Grant throughout 
delivery of the Proposal and up to two years after completion of the Proposal, 
for example as part of the Secretary of State’s ongoing monitoring and 
evaluation commitments. 

e. Cooperate with BEIS contractors on related evaluation projects (e.g. other 
BEIS economic stimulus projects i.e. SMETERS) and cooperate with the 
Secretary of State’s appointed advisers. 

f. Provide a Monthly Report to the Project Team using the Data Management 
System (DMS), created by BEIS. The Authority will ensure that the template 
spreadsheet (to be provided by BEIS at a later date) is completed and 

 
9 As above 

Page 97



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

21 
 

uploaded via a secure online portal on gov.uk. In the event the Authority, or 
an organisation uploading data on its behalf, is unable to upload the 
completed spreadsheet, the Authority will email the spreadsheet to BEIS as 
detailed on the online portal. 

g. Provide monthly data reporting on the status of their relevant projects. 

h. Include these data collection requirements in all relevant contracts with 
installers and delivery partners, ensuring they understand and accept them. 

i. Make available BEIS’ privacy information (as published on the SHDF Wave 
1 webpage on gov.uk, alongside the Wave 1 competition documents)10 to all 
data subjects, prior to the collection of data, to support compliance with data 
processing transparency requirements. The Authority will also be required to 
issue data subjects with their own privacy information. Appendix F of the DSA 
contains a template Privacy Notice that the Authority can choose to use, 
although they can use their own version if preferred.  Their privacy notice(s) 
must mirror what is documented in the Data Sharing Agreement (provided in 
Annex 5 of this MoU), so that data subjects are notified about both BEIS’, the 
Authority’s and (where relevant) project consortia’s handling of personal data. 
Where explicit consent is required from data subjects for further processing 
(e.g. as part of BEIS’ independent evaluation work), the Authority will be 
expected to use BEIS consent statement (provided in Appendix G of the DSA) 
and maintain logs of this in their data as per the requirements. 

j. Agree and sign a standardised Data Sharing Agreement (see Annex 5 of this 
MoU) between the Secretary of State and the Authority, in accordance with 
Paragraph 115, Table 2 of this MoU and prior to any transfer of personal data. 

k. Demonstrate sufficient staffing resource in funding applications to manage 
the above requirements to an effective level of quality and maintain this level 
of resource for the full project duration. 

l. Attend and participate in regular Learning Community meetings, sharing 
relevant project insights, as agreed between the Parties. 

 

RECORD KEEPING 

90. The Authority will keep for ten years records relating to any spending funded (or 
defrayed) by the Grant. Such records should indicate the below including dates 
for any agreements: 

a. The identity of any third party concerned and their business. 
b. The amounts any third party has been given. 
c. The purpose for which the money was spent. 
d. Evidence that contracts have been awarded, in accordance with public 

procurement law where they are required to be; and 

 
10 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund/social-housing-
decarbonisation-fund-privacy-notice 

Page 98

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund-privacy-notice
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund-privacy-notice


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

22 
 

e. Details of and information relating to any significant sub-contracting by the 
Authority. 

 

 

DATA PROTECTION 

91. In so far as it is possible to do so in accordance with the Data Protection Act 
2018, the UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) and the Market 
Research Society (MRS) Code regarding the collection and use of personal data 
for research and statistical purposes and all other law, the Authority agrees to 
collect information for evaluation and reporting purposes (referred to below as 
“the Information”) in a way which: 

• Allows it to share the Information with BEIS, in accordance with the 
principles set out in the Data Sharing Agreement (See Annex 5) and as 
referenced in the Monitoring, Evaluation and Audit section of this MoU. 

• Allows BEIS to share the Information with any of its research or evaluation 
service providers. 

• Allows BEIS to use the Information for research and statistical purposes 
(this does not include publishing the Information in a way that identifies 
individual households) provided always that BEIS complies with the 
provisions of the Data Protection Act 2018 and UK GDPR.  

• Allows BEIS to keep names and contact details of the Authority and its 
delivery partners on file for use in the in-house CRM system to enable better 
relationship management (see the BEIS privacy notice, as published on the 
SHDF Wave 1 webpage on gov.uk alongside the Wave 1 competition 
documents). 

92. Further guidance on meeting these data protection requirements will be given to 
the Authority at a BEIS-hosted data briefing once funding has been awarded. 
 

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION 

93. The Parties may be obliged to disclose information relating to SHDF– Wave 1, 
the Grant, and the Proposal under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004 or under another requirement of 
law. 

 
94. The Parties will assist and cooperate with each other as reasonably requested 

to facilitate compliance with those requirements. 
 

95. In the event that the Secretary of State provides information in response to a 
request for information under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the 
Environmental Information Regulations 2004, the Secretary of State may make 
that response publicly available for the purposes of transparency. 

Page 99



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

23 
 

 

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

96. In undertaking the Proposal, the Authority will not infringe the intellectual 
property rights of any third party. 

 
97. Where the Proposal gives rise to the generation of any intellectual property, the 

Authority will not subsequently seek to make profit from the use of such 
intellectual property, for example through the grant of licences. 

 

98. Unless otherwise agreed by the Secretary of State, the Authority will allow the 
Secretary of State royalty free use of any intellectual property created whilst 
delivering the Proposal. 

 

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAW 

99. The Authority will comply with all laws and regulatory requirements when 
delivering the Proposal (including, without limitation compliance with all laws and 
regulatory requirements relating to public procurement and subsidy control). 

 
100. In signing this MoU, the Authority confirms that use of the Grant for the purpose 

of the Proposal and in accordance with the MoU is in compliance with all laws 
and regulatory requirements.  

 

ANTI-DISCRIMINATION 

101. The Authority will comply with the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and 
avoid any unlawful discrimination. 
 

RESPONSIBILTY FOR EMPLOYEES, CONTRACTORS, AGENTS AND 
PARTNERS 

102. The Authority will ensure that its employees, contractors, agents, partners and 
other local authorities or organisations it works with in delivering the Proposal 
(whether or not as part of a Consortium) comply with the commitments and 
principles set out in the MoU and will be responsible for any failure by them to 
meet those commitments and principles.  

 

WARRANTIES 

103. The Authority warrants that: 
a. It has full capacity and authority to deliver the Proposal and to enter into 

this MoU. 
b. It will obtain any consents necessary to undertake the Proposal.  
c. The information and evidence in its Proposal remains true, complete and 

accurate, and that its circumstances have not materially changed since 
submitting its Proposal; and 

Page 100



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

24 
 

d. It does not know of the existence of any circumstances which might 
materially and adversely impact on its ability to undertake the Proposal or 
observe the provisions and principles of this MoU. 
 
 
 

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

104. The Authority confirms that the Secretary of State’s liability to the Authority is 
limited to payment of the Grant (subject to the Authority meeting the 
commitments and principles of the MoU and its Annexes and to the Secretary of 
State’s rights set out therein).  The Authority remains entirely responsible for its 
risks and liabilities in undertaking the Proposal, and the Secretary of State will 
have no liability for any consequence, direct or indirect, that may arise through 
the Authority’s undertaking of the Proposal or its use of the Grant. 

 

ASSIGNMENT 

The Authority will not assign or otherwise transfer to any other person the benefit of 
the Grant or any other benefit arising by virtue of this MoU without the approval in 
writing of the Secretary of State.  
 

STATUS 

105. This MoU is not intended to be legally binding, and no legal obligations or legal 
rights shall arise between the Parties from this MoU. The Parties do, however, 
enter into the MoU intending to honour all their commitments under it. 

 
106. Nothing in this MoU is intended to, or shall be deemed to, establish any 

partnership, joint venture or relationship of employment between the Parties, 
constitute either party as the agent of the other party, nor authorise either of the 
Parties to make or enter into any commitments for or on behalf of the other party. 
Accordingly, the Authority will not hold itself out as having any such relationship 
with the Secretary of State. 

 

FURTHER FUNDING 

107. The Secretary of State is under no obligation to provide the Authority with any 
further funding in respect of the Proposal or for any other purpose. 

 

REFERENCES 

108. In this MoU references to legislation are to that legislation as amended or re-
enacted from time to time (including any amendment or re-enactment having 
taken place before the date of this MoU). 

 

NOTICE AND COMMUNICATIONS 

Page 101



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

25 
 

109. The Authority will be able to contact BEIS using the following email address:  

 

 
110. The Authority’s day to day contacts with the BEIS on any working day by email 

between 9am and 5pm are: 

 

 
111. The Authority’s day to day contacts for BEIS are: 

NAME Role EMAIL TELEPHONE 

Jill Craig

   

Project Manager Jill.craig@ricardo.com 01235 750 000 

Eireann 

Harkins 

Deputy Project 

Manager  

Eireann.harkins@ricardo.com 01235 753438 

 

ESCALATION 

112. If Secretary of State or the Authority has any issues, concerns or complaints 

about SHDF – Wave 1, SHDF – Wave 1 Projects, or any matter in this MoU, 

that party will notify the other party and the Parties will then seek to resolve the 

issue by a process of consultation. If the issue cannot be resolved within a 

reasonable period of time, the matter will be escalated to the senior 

management teams of both parties, which will decide on the appropriate course 

of action to take. If the matter cannot be resolved by the senior management 

teams within 60 (sixty) days, the parties will consider mediation as an 

alternative dispute resolution process.  

113. Claims made by a supplier or requests for information made under the 

Freedom of Information Act 2000 in relation to the SHDF – Wave 1 that party 

will promptly inform the Programme Board (or its nominated representatives) of 

the matter. 

  

shdf.wave1.mou@beis.gov.uk 

Page 102

mailto:shdf.wave1.mou@beis.gov.uk


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

26 
 

 

Signed for and on behalf of the Secretary of State. 

Signature 

 

Name: 

   

Position: 

  

Date: 

 

 

Signed for and on behalf of the Authority. 

Signature: 

 

Name: 

 

Position: 

 

Date: 

  

Page 103



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

27 
 

115. DOCUMENTS TO BE PROVIDED 
 
Table 1: Documentation to be provided by the Authority before the Grant will 
be released and as soon as possible or by the 28th February 2022 at the latest, 
once LAs have been notified that their applications have been successful. 

What needs to be provided? Annex/Location 

A signed copy of this MoU This document 

A signed copy of the Section 151 or Section 73 Officer 
declaration  

Annex 1 

A completed Grant Claim Form including Bank Details 
(AP1a Form) 

Annex 3 
Annex 9 

Updated Baseline Milestone Schedule  Annex 6b 

Small Amounts of Funding Exemption Declaration Annex 10 

 
Table 2: Documentation to be provided by the Authority alongside the 
documents in Table 1, unless exceptional circumstances prevail in which case 
this should be returned no later than the 15th April 2022. 

What needs to be provided? Annex 

A signed copy of the Data Sharing Agreement (DSA) Annex 5  

 
Table 3: Documentation to be provided by the Authority alongside the first 
Monthly Report 

What needs to be provided? Annex 

Completed Risk Register Annex 4 

 
Table 4: Additional documentation to be completed or acknowledged by the 
Authority as required. 

What needs to be provided? Annex 

Approved Application Proposal (From the 
Authority’s submission and approved through the 
Assessment Stage of the Grant application process) 

Annex 6a 

Monthly Report Data Requirements Template 
(monthly requirement for Authority as stated in 
paragraph 55) 

Annex 7  

Recovery Plan Template (only if the Project Team 
identifies in the Monthly Report a significant variation in 
Authority performance against their targets stipulated 
in relation to the KPIs, they may, on behalf of the 
Secretary of State, request a recovery plan) 

Annex 8 

 

  

Page 104



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

28 
 

Annex 1: Section 151 or Section 73 Officer Declaration 
 

In my position as the Section 151 or Section 73 Officer for Barnsley Council I 

confirm that: 

1. Barnsley Council will accept the grant funding that has been offered through the 

SHDF – Wave 1 Delivery. 

 

2. The information and evidence pertaining to this grant claim is complete, true and 

accurate. 

 

3. Barnsley Council will ensure the delivery of the Services in accordance with the 

terms of the Proposal; and 

4. Barnsley Council will comply with the provisions of the Memorandum of 

Understanding dated ___/___/2022 in connection with its delivery of the 

Proposal. 

 

SIGNATURE 

 

NAME 

 

POSITION 

 

DATE 

  

Page 105



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

29 
 

Annex 2: Grant Determination  
 
Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund Wave 1 DETERMINATION (22): (No 

31/5919) 

The Secretary of State for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy (“the Secretary of 

State”), in exercise of the powers conferred by section 31 of the Local Government 

Act 2003, makes the following determination: 

Citation 

1) This determination may be cited as the [Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund 

Wave 1] Determination (22) [No 31/5919]. 

Purpose of the grant 

2) The purpose of the grant is to provide support to local authorities in England towards 

expenditure lawfully incurred or to be incurred by them. 

Determination 

3) The Secretary of State determines as the authorities to which grant is to be paid 

and the amount of grant to be paid, the authorities and the amounts set out in Annex 

A. 

Grant conditions 

4) Pursuant to section [31(3) and] 31(4) of the Local Government Act 2003, the 

Secretary of State determines that the grant will be paid subject to the conditions in 

Annex B.  

Treasury consent 

5) Before making this determination in relation to local authorities in England, the 

Secretary of State obtained the consent of the Treasury. 

 

 

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 

*****,  

****,  

Energy Efficiency and Local, Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 

 

Page 106



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

30 
 

 

ANNEX A of the Grant Determination 

Authority to which      Amount of grant.  

grant is to be paid      to be paid. 

Barnsley Council        

 

ANNEX B of the Grant Determination 

GRANT CONDITIONS 

GRANT CONDITIONS 

  

1.  Grant paid to a local authority under this determination may be used only for the 

purposes that a capital receipt may be used for in accordance with regulations made 

under section 11 of the Local Government Act 2003. 

2.  The Chief Executive and Chief Internal Auditor of each of the recipient authorities 

are required to sign and return to the team leader of the Energy Efficiency and Local 

Division of the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy a 

declaration, to be received no later than 28th February 2022, in the following terms: 

 “In our opinion, in all significant respects, the conditions attached to Social Housing 

Decarbonisation Fund Wave 1 DETERMINATION (22): (No 31/5919) will be 

complied with to the best of our knowledge and belief with ongoing appropriate 

investigations and checks”. 

 3.  If an authority fails to comply with any of the conditions and requirements of 

paragraphs 1 and 2, the Secretary of State may- reduce, suspend or withhold grant; 

or by notification in writing to the authority, require the repayment of the whole or any 

part of the grant. 

 4. Any sum notified by the Secretary of State under paragraph 3(b) shall 

immediately become repayable to the Secretary of State. 

 

Date:  
  

Page 107



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

31 
 

Annex 3: Grant Claim Form 
 

SECTION 1 REQUESTER DETAILS 

LOCAL AUTHORITY 
 

Barnsley Council 

BANK DETAILS  
• Bank name & address 

• Sort code 

• Account number 

• Account name 

 

PURCHASE ORDER NUMBER 
 

(to be filled in by BEIS once returned) 

CONTACT NAME 
 

 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 
 

 

EMAIL ADDRESS 
 

 

 

SECTION 2 CLAIM DETAILS 

SOCIAL HOUSING 
DECARBONISATION FUND WAVE 1 - 
TOTAL TO BE CLAIMED 

 

DATE OF CLAIM  

 
Claims may include VAT that the authority is not able to reclaim from HM Revenue & 
Customs or not likely to become able to claim. 

 

SECTION 6: SENIOR LOCAL AUTHORITY OFFICER’S DECLARATION 

 
I confirm that I have considered the Authority’s Proposal (included as Annex 6a of the 
MoU) against which this Grant claim is made, as well as the principles set out in the 
Memorandum of Understanding for the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund Wave 1, 
and that: 
 

a. The information and evidence pertaining to this Grant claim is complete, true 
and accurate. 

 
b. We will comply with the principles set out in the Memorandum of 

Understanding. 
 
Signed 
 
Printed name 
 
Position 
 
Date 

Page 108



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

32 
 

Annex 4: Risk Register 
The template for this is attached separately as an Excel spreadsheet to enable 

completion. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 109



 

Month 2022 < BEIS TO COMPLETE > 

Annex 5: Data Sharing Agreement 

(DSA) 

Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund 
(SHDF) – Wave 1 

 
Between the Secretary of State for Business, Energy & Industrial 
Strategy (BEIS)  
 
and  
 
Barnsley Council 

 

 

 

Page 110



 

DSA - 1 
 

Contents 
 

Glossary of key terms ................................................................................................ 2 

Signatory Details ........................................................................................................ 3 

Introduction ................................................................................................................ 4 

Principle 1 - Lawfulness, fairness & transparency ...................................................... 6 

Principle 2 – Purpose Limitation ............................................................................... 11 

Principle 3 – Data minimisation ................................................................................ 13 

Principle 4 – Accuracy .............................................................................................. 13 

Principle 5 – Storage limitation ................................................................................. 14 

Principle 6 – Integrity and confidentiality .................................................................. 15 

Principle 7 – Accountability ...................................................................................... 16 

Appendix A – Summary of Processing ..................................................................... 23 

Appendix B – Performance Data Sharing Diagram .................................................. 24 

Appendix C – Personal Data Sharing Diagram ........................................................ 25 

Appendix D – Personal Data Journey ...................................................................... 26 

Appendix E – List of Data Items to be Shared with BEIS ......................................... 27 

Appendix F – Privacy Notice Template .................................................................... 34 

Appendix G – Consent Form to Issue to Data Subjects ........................................... 38 

Appendix H – Key Contact Details ........................................................................... 39 

Appendix I – Signatories .......................................................................................... 40 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 111



 

DSA - 2 

 

Glossary of key terms 

In this Data Sharing Agreement (DSA) the following words and phrases will 

have the following meanings: 

Term Explanation 

“Authority”  
means the local authority that is to sign 
this Agreement, that is: Barnsley Council 

“BEIS”  
means the Department for Business, Energy & 
Industrial Strategy  

“Consortium”  

means a group of local authorities, 
housing associations and or private 
companies working together to deliver the Social 
Housing Decarbonisation Fund – Wave 1 under 
the MoU  

“Controller”  
has the meanings set out in Article 4 of 
the UK GDPR  

“Data Subject”  
has the meanings set out in Article 4 of 
the UK GDPR  

“DPA”  means the Data Protection Act 2018  

“DSA”  means Data Sharing Agreement  

“Funding 
Period”  

has the meaning given to it in the MoU  

“Government 
Social Research 
Publication 
protocol”  

means the “Government Social Research 
Publication protocol”, which are the principles for 
the publication of all government social research 
that is not regulated by the UK Statistics Authority  

“MoU”  

means the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund 
– Wave 1 Memorandum of Understanding 
between the Secretary of State for Business 
Energy and Industrial Strategy and Barnsley 
Council dated  
[BEIS insert date once signed]  

“Partners”  
means partners to this Agreement, namely 
the Secretary of State for Business, Energy & 
Industrial Strategy and: Barnsley Council 

“Personal data”  
has the meanings set out in Article 4 of 
the UK GDPR  

“Processing”  
has the meanings set out in Article 4 of 
the UK GDPR  

“Processor”  
has the meanings set out in Article 4 of 
the UK GDPR  

“Project Team”  

means the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund 
– Wave 1 project team within BEIS responsible for 
the delivery of the scheme, supported by their 
appointed delivery partner  

Page 112



 

DSA - 3 
 

“SHDF”  means Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund  

“SHDF – Wave 
1” 

Means Wave 1 of the Social Housing 
Decarbonisation Fund 

“Special 
Category data”  

means the types of data listed in Article 9(1) of the 
UK GDPR  

“The Code of 
Practice 
for Official Statistics
”  

means the Code of Practice 
for Official Statistics edition 2.0 (February 2018) 
published by the UK statistics authority  

FoIA  means the Freedom of Information Act 2000  

UK GDPR  
means UK - General Data Protection 
Regulation (EU 2016/679), as retained in UK law 
and tailored by the Data Protection Act 2018  

 

Signatory Details 

The following are the agreement owners (herein: Partners) for this document: 

BEIS Agreement Owner 

Name Matt Harrison 

Role 
Programme Director, Social Housing Decarbonisation 
Fund 

Email matt.harrison@beis.gov.uk 

  

The Authority Agreement Owner 

Name 
 
 

Role 
 
 

Email 
 
 

  

Page 113



 

DSA - 4 
 

Introduction 

1. This Data Sharing Agreement (herein: DSA) sets out an agreement between the 

Partners, which consists of Barnsley Council (herein: the Authority) and the 

Secretary of State from the Department for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 

(herein: BEIS), on how data will be shared in relation to Wave 1 of the Social 

Housing Decarbonisation Fund (herein: SHDF – Wave 1). 

 

2. The Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (herein: SHDF) is a 2019 Conservative 

Manifesto commitment for a £3.8bn fund set up over a 10-year period to improve 

the energy performance of social rented homes, on the pathway to Net Zero 2050. 

The SHDF will upgrade a significant amount of social housing stock currently 

below, and on an ‘infill’ based at or above, EPC Band C up to that standard; 

delivering warm, energy efficient homes, reducing carbon emissions and fuel bills, 

tackling fuel poverty, and supporting green jobs. 

  

3. The SHDF will be delivered through a series of individual projects (herein: Waves). 

The first wave of the programme (SHDF - Wave 1) will provide around £178m to 

England only projects to support Registered Providers of Social Housing, 

including Private and Local Authority Providers, to improve the energy 

performance of their social housing stock by installing Eligible Measures. The 

approximately £178m of funding is to be awarded in FY2021/22 and delivered 

through to March 2023.  

 

4. We expect the SHDF to result in the following outcomes:  

 

• Fuel Poverty: Reduce the numbers in Fuel Poverty by improving the energy 

efficiency rating of social homes below EPC Band C and reducing energy bills. On 

this basis, tenant energy bills should not increase for equivalent home warmth, and 

it is expected that bills will reduce.  

• Carbon: Deliver cost effective carbon savings to contribute to carbon budgets, and 

progress towards the UK’s target for Net Zero by 2050 by reducing CO2 emissions 

from Social Housing.  

• Green Economy: Support economic resilience and a green recovery in response 

to the economic impacts of Covid-19, supporting thousands of jobs.  

• Tenants: Improve the comfort, health, and well-being of Social Housing tenants 

by delivering warmer and more energy-efficient homes. 
 

5. Under the Memorandum of Understanding (herein: MoU), the Authority agreed 

to: 

a. Put a system in place to collect data, as set out in the MoU, for 

performance reporting, research, and evaluation purposes (herein: the 

Data). 

Page 114



 

DSA - 5 
 

b. Ensure the Data is collated, quality assured and shared with BEIS in 

such a way as to meet the required reporting periods and date standards 

set out in the MoU. 

6. Additionally, under the MoU, the Authority agreed to collect the Data in a way 

that: 

a. Allows it to be shared with BEIS, in accordance with the principles set out 

in this Data Sharing Agreement and as referenced in the Monitoring, 

Evaluation and Audit section of the MoU. 

b. Allows BEIS to share it with any of its research or evaluation service 

providers. 

c. Allows BEIS to use it for research and statistical purposes (this does not 

include publishing the information in a way that identifies individual 

households) provided always that BEIS complies with the provisions of the 

Data Protection Act 2018 and UK GDPR.  

d. Allows BEIS to keep names and contact details of the Authority and its 

delivery partners on file for use in the in-house CRM system to enable 

better relationship management (see the BEIS privacy notice, as published 

on the SHDF Wave 1 webpage on gov.uk alongside the Wave 1 

competition documents). 

 

7. This DSA documents the lawful basis for this data sharing initiative, what 

information will be shared and how. The Partners have entered into this DSA to 

demonstrate that data protection and privacy requirements have been taken into 

account, to set out how use of information meets the data protection principles 

under UK General Data Protection Regulation (herein: UK GDPR), as defined in 

Section 3(10) of the Data Protection Act 2018 (herein: DPA 2018), and how the 

rights of data subjects are protected.  

 

8. This DSA is not a contract and is not legally binding. It does not create a legal 

power for either Partner to lawfully exchange and process personal information, 

and it does not provide indemnity from action under any law.  It does not remove 

or reduce the legal obligations or responsibilities on any Partner. 

 

9. The Partners enter this DSA intending to honour all provisions outlined 

within. 

 

10. This is a new DSA that relates to the collection and processing of data created as 

a result of the SHDF - Wave 1.  This DSA will commence when it has been signed 

by all Partners and will terminate on 31st March 2025. 

 

Page 115



 

DSA - 6 
 

Principle 1 - Lawfulness, fairness & 
transparency 

11. The contact details of delivery teams and property information are personal data, 

as individuals may be personally identifiable. BEIS requires this data to monitor, 

facilitate and support the delivery of SHDF – Wave 1, to perform a task in the public 

interest. Aggregated delivery data shared will also support statistical reporting and 

evaluation of the SHDF – Wave 1 and the overarching SHDF programme, to 

provide accountability in the use of public funds. As such, both are necessary to 

share with BEIS on the legal basis of public task, as defined under Article 6(1) of 

UK GDPR. 

 

12. BEIS also request the personal data of delivery teams, installers and tenants for 

evaluation research purposes. This research enables BEIS to report the 

effectiveness of SHDF – Wave 1. It enables BEIS to evaluate whether SHDF – 

Wave 1 has delivered value-for-money, realised its intended benefits and inform 

future policymaking in the fields of energy efficiency, fuel poverty and health. This 

personal data should only be shared with BEIS for evaluation purposes on a 

consent basis. 

 

13. BEIS’ data sharing with Partners under this DSA does not involve the processing 

of personal data relating to criminal convictions, offences or related security 

measures, nor does it involve the processing of Special Category data.  

 

Data to be shared 

14. The Authority has agreed to provide BEIS with the data as described below and 

set out in the relevant paragraphs, sections and or annexes within the MoU: 

 

a. SHDF – Wave 1 project performance data (herein: Performance Data), 

as defined by the Governance section (paragraphs 54 to 63), 

Performance section (paragraphs 79 to 88) and Annex 7 of the MoU. Per-

property information may be personally identifiable, and as such be 

categorised as personal data. This data includes but is not limited to: 

i. An overview of monthly progress on the project. 

ii. An update of the Authority's progress against Key Performance 

Indicators (KPIs) and project milestones 

iii. Top risks, issues and or concerns that could impact the project 

iv. Any incidents of fraud. 

Page 116



 

DSA - 7 
 

v. Specific per property information, including but not limited to 

requirements outlined in Annex 7 of the MoU. 

vi. Any other items the Authority wishes to escalate to BEIS. 

 

b. SHDF – Wave 1 monitoring and evaluation data (herein: M&E 

Data), as covered by the Monitoring, Evaluation & Audit section 

(paragraph 89) of the MoU. This data may contain personal 

information data as defined by UK GDPR. This data includes but is not 

limited to: 

i. Qualitative and or quantitative data obtained through the 

delivery team’s participation in research led by an evaluation 

partner appointed by BEIS. This research will ensure that wider 

insights can be provided on the experience of delivering SHDF 

– Wave 1. BEIS will confirm plans for delivery team participation 

in the evaluation research during the spring of 2022. 

ii. Contact details and consent of households and installers 

engaged in the scheme to be contacted for feedback on the 

scheme.  

iii. Data from households receiving measures and installers 

delivering them, as set out in Annex 7 of the MoU, including but 

not limited to installation data, household engagement data, 

installer data and project delivery data. 

 

15. The data provided by the Authority maybe linked to and or compared against other 

existing datasets or models within BEIS for compliance, evaluation, and 

performance reporting purposes. 

 

How data will be shared 

16. BEIS will provide a system for projects to securely transfer the Data they have 

collected under this DSA to share with BEIS. Diagrams visualising the data sharing 

process are available in Appendices B-D – BEIS’ Data Sharing Process of this 

DSA.  

17. The Authority is responsible for ensuring there is a system in place to securely 

collect and store this Data. This system must include data supplied from other 

participating local authorities, housing associations, or partners where they are 

forming a Consortium. It must also put measures in place to ensure consent for 

data subjects to enable data sharing on this legal basis.    

18. The Authority, or its appointed third party, will share this data with the SHDF – 

Wave 1 Project Team via a password-protected report, for example using Egress, 

a secure file transfer protocol and or restricted folders on SharePoint, or through 

Page 117



 

DSA - 8 
 

an alternative data collection system that has been approved by the SHDF – Wave 

1 Project Team and the BEIS Chief Information Security Officer (CISO) as being 

suitable for the transfer and storage of personal data. 

 

19. Data sharing under this DSA will be shared from execution and up to 31st March 

2025 to enable the successful delivery of scheme evaluation activity. 

 

20. BEIS will share the contact details of the Authority’s delivery team with its SHDF 

delivery partners, such as the SHDF Wave 1 – Scheme Administrator (Ricardo), 

as necessary to deliver BEIS’ energy efficiency schemes.  

 

21. BEIS will share M&E Data with its SHDF research, evaluation partners as 

appropriate. There are also circumstances under which BEIS may share M&E Data 

with other Government Departments. These circumstances are detailed further 

below in paragraphs 45-50, under Principle 2 – Purpose Limitation. 

 

22. Where BEIS decides to share personal data received under this DSA, it will ensure 

the data transfer is performed using a method approved by the BEIS Chief 

Information Security Officer (CISO), the preferred mechanism being restricted 

areas on MS Egress. 

 

23. At all times, BEIS and the Authority will ensure all personal data shared under this 

DSA is stored in restricted folders held on restricted access secure servers.  

 

24. Further information about the safekeeping of the data is set out further below under 

Principle 6 – Integrity & Confidentiality. 

 

 

Legal gateways 

25. The Partners of this DSA share Performance Data and the personal data of the 

delivery team on the legal basis of public task, as defined by Article 6(1)(e) of UK 

GDPR. It is necessary for the performance of a task carried out in the public 

interest. This does not require consent. 

 

26. The Partners of this DSA process and share the M&E Data on a consent basis 

only, as outlined by Article 6(1)(a) of UK GDPR.  

 

27. Specifically, the data sharing and or processing is required in order to: 

a. Enable BEIS to evaluate the effectiveness of existing and future policies 

Page 118



 

DSA - 9 
 

b. Support BEIS’s functions and departmental responsibilities relating to 

carbon reduction and Net Zero as defined by the Climate Change Act 

(2008). 

c. Enable the Partners to carry out their responsibilities as regards to 

effectively managing the spending of public funding, including but not 

limited to BEIS reviewing how and where SHDF – Wave 1 funding has been 

spent and assessing whether this expenditure has enabled it to meet its 

objectives under the scheme. 

d.  

 

28. Principle 2 – Purpose Limitations provides further information for which processing 

of data under this DSA is needed. 

 

Data controller relationship 

29. The Authority and BEIS act as joint data controllers for personal data covered 

by this DSA. This includes when they collect data, are in receipt of it or share the 

data with others. 

 

30. For all other personal data shared under this DSA, the Authority and BEIS act 

as independent controllers, and becomes an independent controller of that 

personal data on receipt of it.  BEIS’ limitations on onward disclosures in data 

processing are covered under Forward Use - Onward Disclosure, paragraphs 45-

50 of this DSA. 

 

Transparency 

31. The Authority accepts responsibility for ensuring that both BEIS’ Privacy Notice 

and their own Privacy Notice are provided to all households, installers and, 

Page 119



 

DSA - 10 
 

where applicable, Consortium Members in compliance with the DPA 2018 and UK 

GDPR.  

 

32. The Authority will ensure that their Privacy information includes content that alerts 

the data subject to the fact that their personal data will be passed from to the 

Authority and then from the Authority to BEIS. 

 

33. Furthermore, the privacy information will inform the data subject that their data 

might be used either in full or in part by BEIS for: 

 

a. The management and delivery of the scheme. 

b. Evaluation, auditing, research, statistical and fraud prevention purposes; 

Or 

c. Be linked to other data sources held by BEIS, other Government 

Departments, contractors appointed by BEIS and or other third parties for 

any of these reasons aforementioned. 

d. With their consent, be used by a third-party to invite them to participate in 

research about their experiences with the project.   

 

34. BEIS have provided the Authority with BEIS’ SHDF Privacy Notice, as published 

on the SHDF Wave 1 webpage on gov.uk alongside the Wave 1 competition 

documents. The Authority is ultimately responsible for ensuring that all 

households, installers, and Consortium Members are provided with this 

BEIS privacy notice. 

 

35. The Authority must also ensure data subjects are informed of any of their own or 

their consortia organisations’ processing of personal data, via their own Privacy 

Notice. The Authority may use the template Privacy Notice provided as guidance 

(see Appendix F of this DSA) or their own version. If the Authority decides to use 

their own version, they must ensure that it includes the information mentioned 

under paragraphs 31 to 33 of this DSA. 

 

36. By agreeing to this DSA and the MoU, the Authority accepts responsibility for 

seeking valid consent, as defined by Article 4(11) of UK GDPR, from households, 

installers, and Consortium Members to be recontacted for the purposes of 

evaluation of SHDF – Wave 1 and, where appropriate, any further research and 

evaluation therein. A consent form is provided in Appendix G of this DSA and 

should be used by the Authority to seek consent.  

 

37. The Authority will maintain records of informed consent and share Data with 

BEIS in accordance with their data reporting requirements. These 

requirements are set out under the Governance section (paragraphs 54 to 63), 

Performance section (paragraphs 79 to 88), Monitoring, Evaluation and Audit 

Page 120



 

DSA - 11 
 

section (paragraph 89) and Annex 7 of the MoU. The exact data items and formats 

requested are detailed under Appendix E – List of Data Items to be Shared with 

BEIS.  

 

38. If a data subject informs either Partner and or its service providers, where 

applicable, that they are withdrawing consent, the Partner is responsible for 

communicating the withdrawal of consent to the other Partner. In this scenario, 

BEIS will be responsible for ensuring the data subject is no longer contacted by 

BEIS and or its service providers, for the purpose of evaluation of SHDF – Wave 

1 and related further research and evaluation.  

 

39. Where consent has been withdrawn by the data subject, BEIS will seek to cease 

contact with the data subject as soon as reasonably practicable. 

 

40. BEIS and the Authority, as part of their ongoing requirements to comply with UK 

GDPR or its successor legislation, where applicable, will keep their Privacy Notices 

under ongoing review. Where legislative changes are made, BEIS and the 

Authority will communicate these to the data subject as soon as reasonably 

practicable to ensure that the data subject’s rights are maintained and complied 

with. 

 

Principle 2 – Purpose Limitation 

41. The Authority will, where necessary, disclose personal data to BEIS as part of its 

data reporting requirements, as set out in the MoU and this DSA. The primary 

purposes for sharing and processing this data are to support: 

 

a. The administration of SHDF – Wave 1. 

b. An assessment of whether SHDF – Wave 1 has achieved its objectives. 

c. BEIS to effectively publish statistical reports relating to SHDF – Wave 1. 

d. An evaluation of SHDF – Wave 1 and any associated home energy or 

carbon reduction policies, where applicable. 

e. Effective management of fraud and non-compliance under SHDF – Wave 

1. 

 

42. Additionally, BEIS may use all or some of the data shared by the Authority: 

 

a. To review and develop existing or future Government policy. 

b. For research, evaluation, and statistical purposes.  

 

43. Where BEIS uses all or some of the data for research, evaluation, and statistical 

purposes this may be linked with data from other data sources held by BEIS or 

other Government Departments.  

Page 121



 

DSA - 12 
 

  

44. The analysis and research expected to be undertaken may include, but is not 

limited to: 

 

a. Analysing whether the presence of measures installed under SHDF – 

Wave 1 has led to a significant change in energy consumption. This may 

be done by comparing SHDF – Wave 1 measures data to other databases, 

including but not limited to: the National Energy Efficiency Database, Cavity 

Insulation Guarantee Agency and or other related similar operational 

databases. 

b. Linking and or comparing the SHDF – Wave 1 data to other datasets from 

other BEIS or HM Government administered energy efficient programmes 

to enable BEIS to assess the following without double counting properties: 

i. Progress against fuel poverty targets. 

ii. Insulation levels for the overall housing stock in Great Britain, 

and impact on remaining potential for cavity wall, solid wall, and 

loft insulation. 

iii. The characteristics of recipient (e.g., location, property type, 

tenure, and vulnerability group) to inform future policy making. 

c. Address matching SHDF – Wave 1 installations through the National 

Energy Efficiency Data-Framework to maintain a central database of 

property characteristics, household characteristic, energy consumption 

and or Energy Performance Certificates (EPCs). 

Further use and onward disclosure 

45. To deliver SHDF, BEIS may need to share the Data with the SHDF – Wave 1 

Scheme Administrator (Ricardo). Ricardo will be subject to UK GDPR compliance 

via commercial contract clauses, and only permitted to process personal data to 

execute a public task on BEIS’ behalf.   

 

46. To effectively audit and manage SHDF – Wave 1 and other Government schemes, 

BEIS may need to share SHDF – Wave 1 data with delivery partners of other 

current or future energy efficiency or low carbon heating government support 

schemes. This is to ensure that SHDF – Wave 1 funded installations are not 

already or subsequently subsidised under other Government schemes. 

47. Where BEIS needs to share SHDF – Wave 1 data with delivery partners of current 

or future energy efficiency or low carbon heating government support schemes, 

BEIS will seek to use primarily anonymised or pseudonymised data to limit the use 

of personal data. Where this data sharing is necessary BEIS will put a data sharing 

agreement in place with the relevant delivery partner to support the sharing of the 

data. 

Page 122



 

DSA - 13 
 

 

48. BEIS will share SHDF – Wave 1 data with its third-party monitoring and evaluation 

contractor to support the delivery of research, evaluation, and auditing activities. 

This will be primarily to confirm that projects under SHDF – Wave 1 are complying 

with the scheme’s guidance and objectives. BEIS will put in place a DSA with its 

monitoring and evaluation contractor to support the sharing of data for this 

purpose. 

 
49. Items included within onward disclosures are limited to those already outlined in 

this DSA (Appendix E – List of Data Items to be Shared with BEIS).  

 

50. At all times, BEIS will comply with the ‘data minimisation’ principle set out in 

this DSA, in accordance with Article 5(1)(c) of UK GDPR. Wherever possible, BEIS 

will use aggregated, pseudonymised or anonymised data to limit onward 

disclosure of personal data. Where onward disclosure is required, BEIS will ensure 

that there is a DSA or contract in place to outline the legal basis for sharing the 

data, and that any onward disclosure of data is restricted to only the data that is 

required by the third party to support the purpose for which the data is being 

shared. 

 

Principle 3 – Data minimisation 

51. By agreeing to this DSA, each Partner confirms that the data being shared under 

this agreement is the minimum amount of personal data that is necessary to 

achieve the purposes for which it is being shared, as outlined by Article 5(1)(c) of 

UK GDPR. 

 

Principle 4 – Accuracy 

52. In accordance with the Governance section (paragraphs 54 to 63), Performance 

section (paragraphs 79 to 88), Monitoring, Evaluation and Audit section (paragraph 

89) of the MoU, the Authority agrees to carrying out a series of quality assurance 

checks on the Data it generates. 

 

53. These accuracy checks will include: 

 

a. Checks to ensure that the installation data is for an eligible household and 

that the installer meets the necessary standards (either through Trustmark 

or an alternative) as part of the grant award. 

b. Data completeness checks to ensure that all mandatory and required data 

fields are completed in any data return sent to BEIS. 

Page 123



 

DSA - 14 
 

c. Data validation checks, such as, checking field formats (e.g., a date field is 

in a date format) or that an entry is valid (e.g., a postcode is alphanumeric) 

before returning any data sent to BEIS.  

 

54. BEIS will also conduct checks on the Data it receives from the Authority to identify 

any reporting errors, double counting, or ineligible households and or installers. 

The processes for these are outlined in Appendices B and C to this DSA.  

 

55. If, after the Data has been either passed from the Authority to BEIS, or from BEIS 

to the Authority, either Partner identifies an error in that information then the 

following process should be undertaken to correct the error: 

 

a. The Partner that identifies the error should, as soon as reasonably 

practicable but within a period exceeding that of five working days, alert the 

other Partner to the error. 

b. The Authority will then liaise with the relevant delivery partner, installer, or 

Consortium Member, where appliable, to clarify and correct the data; And 

c. Promptly notify BEIS of any correction to the data required. 

 

Principle 5 – Storage limitation 

56. BEIS will retain personal data until 31st March 2025 for the purposes outlined 

in this DSA. The remaining project data is not subject to a specified retention period 

since it does not contain personal data 

 

57. In line with the storage limitation principle outlined under Article 5(1)(e) of UK 

GDPR BEIS will review the data it holds at regular periods to ensure that personal 

data is only retained for as long as it is needed up to 31st March 2025.  

 

58. The Authority will retain any personal data created or collected, for reporting 

purposes under SHDF – Wave 1, in accordance with its own retention and disposal 

policies. 

 

59. All Partners will destroy or delete all personal data at the end of the relevant 

retention periods using a process that is in line with their data destruction 

processes. 

 

60. In order to achieve the purposes outlined under Principle 2 – Purpose Limitation, 

identifiable personal data, rather than anonymised or pseudonymised data is 

required to be processed by the designated BEIS Teams outlined in paragraph 62 

of this DSA. As outlined by paragraph 64 of this DSA, non-designated BEIS Teams 

will only have access to anonymised data. 

 

Page 124



 

DSA - 15 
 

Principle 6 – Integrity and 
confidentiality 

61. The following information security measures will be put in place by BEIS and the 

Authority to ensure the safekeeping of the data shared under this DSA, including, 

and with particular reference to, personal data. The Partners agree to work and 

comply with their respective information assurance and data protection policies, 

while following the security measures outlined below. 

 

62. BEIS will hold SHDF – Wave 1 monitoring and evaluation data in a secure 

SharePoint folder with access controls or on a dedicated analyst server (CBAS) 

that limit access to those on the SHDF – Wave 1 data access list. Only designated 

BEIS Team and nominated third parties will be able to access this data.  

 

63. By agreeing to this DSA, BEIS acknowledges and agrees that: 

 

a. The designated BEIS Teams will be named in an internally held SHDF – Wave 1 

access list and kept to a reasonable minimum. 

b. It will maintain the SHDF – Wave 1 access list and share it with the Authority as 

requested on request. 

c. BEIS will require that the mandatory annual UK GDPR eLearning training, or its 

successor where applicable, is completed by all staff, including personnel named 

on the access list. 

 

64. Non-designated teams within BEIS may use an anonymised version of the SHDF 

– Wave 1 M&E data, that excludes address, and any record-level identifies, for 

internal analysis only. BEIS will only publish aggregate results that meet the 

requirements of Principle T6.4 of the Code of Practice for Official Statistics on 

confidentiality.  

 

65. Generally, the underlying data will not be published by BEIS, however, in order to 

comply with the Government Social Research Publication Protocol, BEIS may 

publish datasets resulting from M&E Data. The publication of this data may require 

inclusion of data extracted from the M&E data, however, publication in this instance 

would only be conducted where the data could be fully anonymised and complies 

with Principle T6.4 of the Code of Practice for Official Statistics on confidentiality.   

 

66. Matt Harrison, the Programme Director for SHDF (or successor) has been 

appointed as the BEIS Information Asset Owner of the SHDF – Wave 1 monitoring 

and evaluation data and, as such, is ultimately responsible for the security of the 

data provided by the Authority. 

 

Page 125



 

DSA - 16 
 

 

67.    

 

 (or successor) has been appointed as the Authority’s Information Asset Owner of the 

SHDF – Wave 1 monitoring and evaluation data and, as such, is ultimately 

responsible for the security of the personal data provided to BEIS under this DSA. 

 

68. All Partners confirm that, as a minimum, they have considered the risks of the 

accidental or unlawful destruction, loss, alteration, unauthorised disclosure of, or 

access to any personal data processed under this DSA and have arrangements in 

place to manage or mitigate these risks accordingly. 

 

Principle 7 – Accountability 
69. BEIS confirms that it can demonstrate compliance with the data protection 

principles outlined in this DSA, the DPA 2018 and UK GDPR. BEIS has completed 

a Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) outlining how it will process data 

under this DSA. This DPIA is available on request. BEIS demonstrates UK GDPR 

compliance to data subjects in the information provided on the BEIS SHDF Privacy 

Notice. All BEIS staff are required to complete annual training in UK GDPR. All 

BEIS staff on the access list for data shared under this DSA will attend a briefing 

on handling datasets shared under SHDF - Wave 1. 

70. BEIS confirms that the processing of the Performance Data and M&E Data covered 

in this DSA will be added to BEIS’s existing central record of processing. 

 

71. The Authority confirms that it can demonstrate compliance with the data protection 

principles outlined in this DSA, the DPA 2018 and UK GDPR. The Authority 

demonstrates GDPR compliance by: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 126



 

DSA - 17 
 

 

72. The Authority confirms that the processing of personal data covered in this DSA 

will: 

 

 

 

 

 

Rights of data subjects 

73. The rights of data subjects are set out in the following table: 
Right to under UK 

GDPR: 
Applies? 

If yes, are any additional actions required. 

If no, why this right does not apply. 

Transparent 

information (Article 

12) 

Y 

The Authority takes responsibility for 

ensuring that appropriate fair processing and 

privacy notices are provided to data subjects. 

Information when data 

collected from data 

subject (Article 13) 

Y 

The Authority takes responsibility for 

ensuring that appropriate fair processing and 

privacy notices are provided to data subjects. 

Information when data 

collected from 

elsewhere (Article 14) Y 

The Authority takes responsibility for 

ensuring that appropriate fair processing and 

privacy notices are provided to data subjects, 

either by itself or by the relevant participating 

Consortium Members or installer. 

Access by data 

subject 

(Article 15) 
Y 

Where either Partner receives a data access 

request from a data subject, this will be actioned 

in line with the relevant Partner’s existing policies 

for handling such requests. 

Rectification 

(Article 16) 

Y 

Where a Partner receives a rectification request 

from a data subject, this will be communicated to 

the other Partner within 5 working days. Where 

this request results in concluding there is an error 

in the original data, this will be notified to the 

other Partner within 5 working days. 

Erasure 

(Article 17) 

Y 

Where a Partner receives an erasure request 

from a data subject, this will be communicated to 

the other Partner within 5 working days. The 

eligibility of each erasure request will be reviewed 

by each Partner in line with article 17 of the UK 

GDPR and a decision made regarding the nature 

of the processing undertaken by that Partner. 

Restriction of 

processing (Article 18) 
Y 

Data subjects may request a restriction of 

processing of their data, but their request may be 

Page 127



 

DSA - 18 
 

refused if it would prevent the administration and 

auditing of the scheme and processing for fraud 

prevention. Where a Partner receives a 

restriction of processing request from a data 

subject, this will be communicated to the other 

Partner within 5 working days. 

Notification regarding 

rectification, erasure, 

or restriction 

(Article 19) 
Y 

BEIS will notify any parties with whom it has 

shared the data within 5 working days of an 

action being taken under a request for 

rectification, erasure, or restriction, unless this 

proves impossible or involves disproportionate 

effort. 

Data portability 

(Article 20) 

N 

The personal data processed by BEIS under this 

DSA is not provided by the data subject to BEIS 

and is not processed by BEIS on the basis of 

consent (other than for re-contact purposes) or 

for the performance of a contract. 

Object to processing 

(Article 21) 

Y 

Data subjects may object to the processing of 

their data, but the request may be refused if it 

would prevent the administration and auditing of 

the scheme and use of the data for fraud 

prevention and/or statistical purposes. Data 

subjects will be notified of their right to object via 

the fair processing and privacy notices mentioned 

above in relation to articles 12, 13 and 14 of the 

UK GDPR and for which the Authority takes 

responsibility.  Where a Partner receives an 

Object to Processing request from a data subject, 

this will be communicated to the other Partner 

within 5 working days. 

Automated decision-

making and profiling 

(Article 22) 

N 

It is not expected that automated decision-

making or profiling will be required under this 

DSA. 

 

Governance and administration 

Data Protection Impact Assessments 

 

74. BEIS has completed a Data Protection Impact Assessment (herein: DPIA) for the 

processing that it will undertake in relation to this DSA. The DPIA considers BEIS’ 

processing activities including the analysis and publication of data for statistical 

reasons and the sharing of data with its third-party contractors and delivery 

partners of relevant schemes. The DPIA is available upon request. 

 

 

Page 128



 

DSA - 19 
 

 

 

75.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Offshoring 
 

76. It is not expected that any processing under this DSA will involve processing from 

any third countries. 

 

Data processors and sub-processing 
 

77. BEIS may share personal data with its third-party contractors, to support the 

monitoring, evaluation and auditing of SHDF – Wave 1 as well as for statistical, 

research and fraud prevention purposes. BEIS remain the controller in all 

instances of sharing data with its third-party contractors and the third-party 

contractors will be processors.   

 
78. BEIS may share personal data with other scheme delivery partners or other 

Government Departments to prevent the duplication of support under other 

government schemes that may breach scheme rules or help to prevent fraud. In 

this scenario, BEIS and the scheme delivery partners, or other Government 

Departments would both be the controllers for the personal data. Where this data 

sharing is necessary, BEIS will put a data sharing agreement in place with the 

relevant delivery partner to support the sharing of the data. 

 

79. The use of any new data processors by a Partner for processing covered by this 

Agreement will be notified to the other Partners, and follow the procedures noted 

in paragraphs 45-50 of this DSA. 

 

 

Page 129



 

DSA - 20 
 

Consultation 
 

80. BEIS have consulted with the BEIS Data Protection Officer in the process of 

completing a DPIA. Data subjects will not be consulted before the processing 

covered by this DSA commences, however, data subjects will be notified of the 

data processing as per paragraph 73.  

 

81.  

 

 

 

 

 

Automated decision making and profiling 

 

82. It is not expected that any automated decision making, or profiling will be 

undertaken by BEIS with any data collected under this DSA. 

 

Necessity and proportionality 
 

83. BEIS has completed a DPIA regarding the processing covered by this DSA, this 

included a consideration of necessity and proportionality. The proposed 

processing was deemed as necessary and proportionate.    

    

Freedom of Information requests 
 

84. Partners subject to the requirements of the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or 

the Environmental Information Regulations 2006, will assist and cooperate with 

each other, to enable each to comply with its information disclosure obligations.  

 

85. Where a Freedom of Information request or the Environmental Information 

Regulations 2006 is received by a Partner to this agreement, which relates to data 

that has been provided by another Partner, the Partner receiving the request will 

take reasonable steps, where appropriate, to give the other Partner advance notice 

to allow it the opportunity to make representations on the potential impact of 

disclosure, or failing that, to draw the disclosure to the other Partner's attention 

after any such disclosure.  

 

Page 130



 

DSA - 21 
 

86. Each Partner shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion and 

notwithstanding any other provision in this DSA or any other agreement whether 

any information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the 

Freedom of Information Act or the Environmental Information Regulations 2006.  

 

Personal data breaches 
 

87. The Partners will follow their own internal processes on the discovery of a personal 

data breach and advise their own security teams. 

 

88. In addition, they will notify other Partners of any personal data breach that relates 

to this DSA, via direct contact with the project leads named in Appendix H – Key 

Contact Details of this DSA within 72 hours of discovering the personal data 

breach. 

 

89. In the event of a personal data breach (or where there is reasonable cause to 

believe that such an incident may arise), the Partners will delay data transfers until 

the cause or incident is resolved, as authorised by the signatories to this 

agreement.  If the breach cannot be resolved or if - in the view of the Partners - it 

is very serious, data transfers will stop and will not resume until the signatories to 

this agreement are satisfied with the security arrangements.   

 

90. Any Partner who decides that a personal data breach that affects, or is relevant to, 

the processing under this Agreement must be self-reported to the ICO and shall 

ensure that the other Partners are notified of this. 
 

Dispute resolution 
 

91. Disputes between the Partners regarding the operation of this agreement will be 

resolved in the following way: 

 

a. In the first instance a material breach will be reported between the project leads on 

each side, named in Appendix H of this DSA. An assessment by the breaching 

party will be conducted promptly to identify if the breach is ongoing or was a one-

off, and the potential impact of the breach.   

b. All material breaches will be notified to the Data Protection Officers in BEIS and 

the Data Protection Officers within the Authority. The outcomes of the assessment 

conducted by the project leads on each side, named in Appendix H of this DSA, 

will be discussed and actions identified. 
 

 

Page 131



 

DSA - 22 
 

Review 
 

92. Scheduled formal reviews of this DSA are not expected to take place to assess the 

ongoing effectiveness of this data sharing initiative and this DSA. This DSA will 

only be reviewed if the purpose of the processing changes, or the processing 

otherwise changes in a way that affects the rights of data subjects. 

 

Termination 
 

93. The terms and conditions of this DSA will apply until the 31st March 2025.  In the 

event of termination of the MoU, personal data will cease to be shared under the 

terms of this DSA. 

 

94. Any Partner can terminate this DSA, without giving a reason, on expiry of one (1) 

month's written notice to the others.  Termination of the notice would trigger a 

formal review of the SHDF – Wave 1 grant funding provided to the Authority.  

 

95. Any Partner can terminate this DSA with immediate effect, where another Partner 

breaches any of its obligations to this DSA. Termination notices should be 

addressed to the Information Asset Owners at BEIS and the Authority. 

 

Press enquires 

96. Press and media enquiries should be directed by email at: 

SHDF.Enquiries@beis.gov.uk. 

 

Appendices 

  

Description Appendix 

Summary of Processing A 

Performance Data Sharing Diagram B 

Personal Data Sharing Diagram C 

Personal Data Journey D 

List of Data Items to be Shared with BEIS E 

Privacy Notice Template F 

Consent Form to Issue to Data Subjects G 

Contact Details for Key Members of Staff H 

Signatories I 

 

 

Page 132



 

DSA - 23 
 

Appendix A – Summary of 
Processing 
Description Details 

Subject matter 
of the 
processing 

The processing relates to the delivery of the SHDF 
– Wave 1 scheme. 

Duration of 
the 
processing 

Processing will commence on and from the date on 
which this DSA is signed by, or on behalf of, both 
Partners. Personal data will be retained only for as 
long as it is needed and, in any case, up to 31st 
March 2025. 

Nature and 
purposes of 
the 
processing 

The Authority will ensure that personal data relating 
to delivery of the SHDF – Wave 1 scheme is shared 
with BEIS. BEIS will process the data, including 
matching it with other datasets and onward sharing 
with other parties, to effectively manage and review 
the use of public funds and to support further 
research, evaluation, and statistical reporting. 

Type of 
Personal Data 
that will be 
processed 

The delivery of the SHDF – Wave 1 scheme is 
expected to reach over 15,000 properties, from these 
properties it is expected that the Authority and/or 
Monitoring & Evaluation Contractor will collect 
personal data including (but not limited to): 

Professional contact details of key staff in the 

Authority’s project team 

Name, address, phone, email of the property owner 

Details of the property and installation undertaken 

Details and contact information of the installer  

Categories of 
Data Subject 

Authorities and consortia leading SHDF– Wave 1 

projects 

Residents of properties eligible for the SHDF– Wave 

1 scheme 

Installers of home retrofits under SHDF – Wave 1 

scheme 

Third parties providing additional funding for SHDF – 

Wave 1 

Third parties involved in the retrofit supply chain 

Special 
Category Data 

The data collected and shared under this DSA does 
not constitute Special Category data or criminal-
orientated data (Article 10 of the UK GDPR) 

  

Page 133



 

DSA - 24 

 

Appendix B – Performance Data Sharing Diagram 

 
Please note: BEIS are trialling a new DMS. Aspects of this are subject to change.  

                                        

                   
            
                   
                        

                 

                    
                            
                              
                         

                               
                             

                             

                   

                                 
                                           
                                            
                                          

                                            
                                           

                                        

                             

              
                  
                    

                    
                       
                   

                     
                       
                   
                  

             
                 

               

               

              
                   

             

    
                             
                              
                            

                
                
                  
                  

                      
                        
        

                                         
                          

              
                     
                     

             
                  
                  
               
                
              

P
age 134



 

DSA - 25 
 

Appendix C – Personal Data Sharing Diagram 

 

Please note: BEIS are trialling a new DMS. Aspects of this are subject to change.  

                                     

                   
                     
                        
                
            

                       

                          
                             
                

                                      
                                    
                                           
    

             
                  
                  
               
                
             

          
                    
                    
                    
               
         

              
                 
               
               
                 

     
                             
                              
                    
                            

                          
                              
                       
                        
                             
                         
              

                          
                              
                                
                   
                          
                           
                              

                                 
                                       
                                         

                                            
                                          
                                       
                                        
                                        

                   
                  
                
                      

                
                      
              

P
age 135



 

DSA - 26 
 

Appendix D – Personal Data Journey 

 

Please note: BEIS has yet to appoint an evaluation contractor to finalise the design of the M&E framework for SHDF – 

Wave 1. Aspects of this are subject to change.  

P
age 136



   

  

 
DSA - 27 

 

Appendix E – List of Data Items to 
be Shared with BEIS 
SHDF – Wave 1 
Data Collection 

Data Type Definition 

Project Summary - Monthly 

Name of Lead LA Text Name of Lead Local Authority, 
whether it is a consortium 
application and if so all other 
Registered Providers of Social 
Housing involved in the application. 

Summary of status Drop-down Please provide a RAG rating on how 
the project is performing 

Activities this 
period 

Text Describe the current state of play of 
the project. Outline activities 
undergone by the LA during this 
reporting period 

Plan for next 
period 

Text Outline what activities are planned 
for the next reporting period  

Estimated Project 
Completion date 

Date Insert when you estimate the project 
will be complete. 

Date at which 
project team was 
appointed 

Date MS1 - Insert the date when the full 
project team was appointed 

PAS2035 Risk 
Assessment stage 
completion date 

Date MS2 - When did all your projects 
complete the PAS2035 risk 
assessment stage 

PAS2035 Dwelling 
Assessment stage 
completion date 

Date MS3 - When did all your projects 
complete the PAS2035 dwelling 
assessment stage 

Design & 
Coordination 
completion date 

Date MS4 - When did all your projects 
complete the design and 
coordination stage 

Procurement 
activity stage 
completion date 

Date MS5 - When did all your projects 
complete their procurement activity 

Installation stage 
started  

Date MS6 - Insert the date that installation 
started 

Installation stage 
completed 

Date MS7 - Insert the date that all your 
projects finished installing their 
measures 

Handover and 
Lodgement Stage 
completed 

Date MS8 - Insert the date that all your 
projects finished the handover and 
lodgement stage 

Top 5 Risks  Text Risks descriptions, category, 
mitigation, RAG of the top 5 risks 

Page 137



   

  

 
DSA - 28 

 

Instances of Fraud Text Instances, mitigation, RAG 

Total Number of 
Installers  

Number Provide the total number of installers 
cumulatively that have worked on 
the project 

Total Number of 
Apprentices  

Number Provide the total number of 
apprentices cumulatively that have 
worked on the project 

 

Performance Monitoring - Monthly 

% of Project Team 
Appointed 

% Outline the percentages of the project 
team that has been appointed, 
including the Retrofit Coordinator 

PAS 2035 Risk 
Assessment 
Completed 

Number KPI1 - Outline the number of homes 
that have passed the PAS2035 Risk 
Assessment stage 

PAS 2035 
Dwelling 
Assessment  

Number KPI2 - Outline the number of homes 
that have passed the PAS2035 
Dwelling Assessment stage 

Design & 
coordination stage 

Number KPI3 - Outline the number of homes 
that have passed the Design & 
Coordination stage 

Procurement 
Activity Completed 

% Outline the percentage of 
procurement activity completed to 
deliver all the projects being funded 

Number of 
completed 
properties 

Number Outline the number of homes that 
have had measures installed 

Handover & Data 
Lodgement 
Completed 

Number Outline the number of homes that 
have passed the Handover & Data 
Lodgement stage 

Privacy notices 
issued to tenants 

Number KPI4 - Outline the total amount of 
privacy notices issued to tenants 

Privacy notices 
issued to installers 

Number KPI4 - Outline the total amount of 
privacy notices issued to installers 

Ancillary and 
Admin costs 

£ KPI 6 - This is the value spent within 
your allocated A&A budget 

Capital costs £ KPI 6 - This is the value spent from 
your grant excluding your A&A costs 

Total spend this 
month 

£ KPI 6 - How much funding (received 
from BEIS), for this project, has been 
spent this month. This should not 
include any other sources of funding 
such as co-funding contributions.  

   

Property Details – Frequency TBC 

Unique Property 
Reference Number  

Number Please input the properties UPRN 

Page 138



   

  

 
DSA - 29 

 

First line of 
address 

Text Please input the first line of address 
for this property  

Town Text Please input the town for this property  

Postcode  Text Please input the postcode of this 
property  

Fuel Poor 
Household 

Yes/No Answer yes, if the household income 
less than 60% of the median 

Property Type Drop-down Provide the type of premises the 
measure was installed to. 

Property Year Built Date Provide the year the property was 
built in, to aid with broader 
understanding of the energy 
efficiency and use of the property 

Property Floor 
Space (metres 
squared, m2) 

Number Provide the usable area of the 
internal flooring of the building in 
metres squared. This should cover 
the total of all room areas, hallways 
and circulation space, excluding 
staircases. Loft space is not included, 
unless the loft is habitable with a fixed 
stairway to access it. This definition is 
taken from the English Housing 
Survey, Floor Space in English 
Homes technical report 2018 by 
DHLUC (formerly MHCLG). 
https://www.gov.uk/government/public
ations/floor-space-in-english-homes 

Property Number 
of Floors 

Number Provide the number of floors that exist 
on the property. This should exclude 
the loft. 

Property Number 
of Rooms 

Number Provide the number of usable rooms 
that exist in the property. This should 
include living rooms, kitchen, 
bathrooms, bedrooms. It should 
exclude the loft, unless this is a 
liveable space with a fixed stairway 

Smart Meter 
Installed? 

Yes/No Indicate whether the property has a 
smart meter installed 

On or off gas grid 
property 

Yes/No Identify whether the property is 
connected to the gas grid network or 
is an off gas grid property.  

Current Heating 
System Type 

Text Indicates the main space heating 
system of the premises prior to 
installation of the measure 

Number of 
measures to install 

Number Identify the number of measures 
planned for installation at the property 
and covered by this application 

Total Cost of 
Application 

Number The application should include a total 
proposed cost for the project.  
The total application cost should 

Page 139



   

  

 
DSA - 30 

 

include the cost of the equipment, 
labour, repairs and maintenance 

Number of 
Installers 

Number Input the total amount of installers, 
including apprentices, that are 
working to install measures in the 
property 

Number of 
Apprentices 

Number Input the total amount of apprentices 
that are working to install measures in 
the property 

Current EPC 
Rating 

Drop-down The EPC rating of the property before 
any measures were installed 

Post Measures 
Installed EPC 
Rating 

Drop-down The EPC rating of the property post 
measures being installed 

Current SAP Box 
39 value 

Number Insert in numerical format the SAP 
Box 39 value for the property before 
measures were installed. Should be 
supplied using full SAP 

Post Measures 
Installed SAP Box 
39 value 

Number Insert in numerical format the SAP 
Box 39 value for the property after 
measures were installed. Should be 
supplied using full SAP 

Current SAP Box 4 
value 

Number Insert in numerical format the SAP 
Box 4 value for the property before 
measures were installed. Should be 
supplied using full SAP 

Post Measures 
Installed SAP Box 
4 value 

Number Insert in numerical format the SAP 
Box 4 value for the property after 
measures were installed. Should be 
supplied using full SAP 

Current Measures 
Installed SAP Box 
99 value 

Number Insert in numerical format the SAP 
Box 99 value for the property before 
measures were installed. Should be 
supplied using full SAP 

Post Measures 
Installed SAP Box 
99 value 

Number Insert in numerical format the SAP 
Box 99 value for the property after 
measures were installed. Should be 
supplied using full SAP 

Current 
Airtightness Test 
value 

Number Insert in numerical format the 
airtightness test value for the property 
before measures were installed 

Post Measures 
Installed 
Airtightness Test 
value 

Number Insert in numerical format the 
airtightness test value for the property 
after measures were installed 

Trustmark 
Measure 
Reference Number 

Number When a measure is lodged with 
TrustMark a unique TrustMark 
measure reference will be generated. 
Supplier must have this number 
before notifying the measure to the 

Page 140



   

  

 
DSA - 31 

 

Administrator. This field will be 
validated against TrustMark’s Data 
Warehouse. Auto generated from 
installer details. 

TrustMark 
Lodgemark 
Certificate Number 

Number Provide a TrustMark lodged certificate 
ID which will be issued by TrustMark 
for the measure. This field will be 
validated against TrustMark’s Data 
Warehouse. 

PAS Certification 
Number 

Number Provide installer’s PAS certification 
number. This must be the PAS 
certification number relevant to the 
annex of the measure being installed. 
PAS certification number is required 
as evidence that a measure has been 
installed by a PAS-certified installer. 
Auto generated from installer details. 

Date of Starting 
Installation 

Date The date of started installation (DOSI) 
indicates the date on which the 
installation of the measure began. 
This is the point at which the installer 
begins working on site to install the 
measure. It includes any preparatory 
work before commencing the 
measure installation.  

Date of Completed 
Installation 

Date The date of completed installation 
(DOCI) indicates the date on which 
the installation of the measure was 
'complete'. By complete, this is the 
point of handover, when the measure 
must be able to deliver savings at a 
level expected for that measure. This 
will typically be the point at which the 
installer has finished the installation, 
with handover being the installer 
providing any explanation on the safe, 
efficient operation of the system, as 
well as any guidance on care and 
maintenance. N.B. All paperwork and 
updated EPC-band must be 
completed prior to recording date 
completed. 

Measure Type Drop-down This describes the measure type 
installed at the premises (each 
measure installed is to be reported in 
a separate row). Please see the 
guidance page on the measures that 
should be reported against 

Other Measure Text If other measure is selected from the 
dropdown please specific it here 

Total cost of 
measure (£) 

£ The cost should include a total cost 
for the measure.  

Page 141



   

  

 
DSA - 32 

 

Of the total cost, 
how much is 
SHDF - Wave 1 
funding from 
government for 
this measure (£) 

£ The total amount of funding that came 
from SHDF – Wave 1 from 
government for this measure. 

Of the total cost, 
how much is 
funding from other 
LA sources (non-
SHDF – Wave 1) 
for this measure 
(£) 

£ The total amount of funding that came 
from other LA sources (not SHDF – 
Wave 1 funding) for this measure. 

Of the total cost, 
how much is self-
funding for this 
measure (£) 

£ The total amount of funding 
contributed by the household where a 
measure took place. 

 

   

Installer Details - Quarterly 

LA Installer ID 
number 

Text Links back to lodgement number 
within TrustMark 

Installer Name Text Provide the name of the company 
that carried out the installation of the 
measure at the premises. This should 
not be the name of the managing 
agent unless they carried out the 
installation.  

Installer Email 
Address 

Text Email address of the installer. This 
should be the email address of a 
named contact, and not a generic 
business address. 

Installer Phone 
Number 

Number Phone number for the installer, either 
landline or mobile number. This 
should be the phone number of a 
named contact, and not a generic 
business phone number. 

Installer Consent 
to Contact 

Yes/No Provide Y/N response as to whether 
the installer consents to future contact 
regarding the installation and scheme 

Privacy Notice 
Issue Date 

Date Indicate the date when the LA issued 
the Installer with a Privacy Notice 

Trustmark 
Business ID 
number 

Number All measures must be delivered by a 
TrustMark registered business (or 
equivalent). This field will be validated 
against TrustMark’s Data Warehouse. 

Was the installer 
Trustmark 
accredited before 
SHDF – Wave 1 
project 

Yes/No 
 

Page 142



   

  

 
DSA - 33 

 

Companies House 
Company 
Registration 
Number 

Number Registration number 

PAS Certification 
Number 

Number Provide installer’s PAS certification 
number. This must be the PAS 
certification number relevant to the 
annex of the measure being installed. 
PAS certification number is required 
as evidence that a measure has been 
installed by a PAS-certified installer.  

 
Tenant Details - Quarterly 

Unique Property 
Reference Number  

Number Please input the properties UPRN 

Tenant Name Text Name of the Tenant 

Tenant Email 
Address 

Text Email address of the applicant 

Tenant Contact 
Number 

Text Phone number for the applicant, 
either landline or mobile number 

Contact Consent Yes/No Provide True/False response as to 
whether the applicant consents to 
future contact regarding the 
installation and scheme 

Privacy Notice 
Issue Date 

Date Indicate the date when the LA issued 
the tenant with a Privacy Notice 

Tenant dropout Yes/No Provide YES/NO as to whether 
tenant has dropped out of project 

Reason for tenant 
dropout 

Drop-down State the reason for tenant dropout 

Reason for tenant 
dropout - Other 
reason 

Text If 'Other' selected please outline the 
reason for tenant dropout in the text 
box 

 

Page 143



   

  

 

Appendix F – Privacy Notice 
Template 

SHDF Privacy Notice 

This notice sets out how 

 

use your personal data, and your rights. It is made under Articles 13 and/or 14 of the 

UK General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR). This notice relates to data 

collected under the Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund scheme (SHDF) operated 

by  

 

and run by BEIS. For further information on how BEIS uses your personal data, please 

see BEIS’ SHDF Privacy Notice (Available here).  

What personal data do we hold? 

In order to deliver energy efficiency improvements, it is necessary for us to collect and 

hold personal information.  

If you are a tenant, we will process the following personal data: 

- Basic personal information such as your name, address, telephone number and email 
address for arranging works 

- Details about the works installed at the property, including size, type and cost 
- Household income and any other scheme eligibility information 
- Expected energy, carbon and cost savings expected from the works 
- Your name and preferred means of contact if you’d like to take part in BEIS’ scheme 

evaluation (optional) 

 
If you are an installer, we will process the following personal data: 

- Your name and preferred means of contact for arranging the works 
- Relevant accreditation and registration information 
- Business contact address 
- Details of SHDF installations you delivered (including location) 
- The number of employees in your organisation 
- Your name and preferred means of contact if you’d like to take part in BEIS’ scheme 

evaluation (optional)  
 

If you are a delivery partner in a project, we will process the following personal data: 

- Your name, role, and professional contact details  

  

Page 144

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund/social-housing-decarbonisation-fund-privacy-notice


   

  

 

How will we use the Information we hold about you? 

We collect information about you (where applicable): 

- To support the delivery and administration of energy efficiency schemes. This may 

require linking of your data to other datasets held by BEIS and other government 

departments 

- With your consent, to invite you to take part in scheme evaluation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

What is the legal basis for us to process your data? 

We process your information as above because it is necessary for compliance with 

legal obligations under  

 

 

 

to which we are subject. Some processing will be necessary to perform tasks carried 

out in the public interest or in the exercise of official authority vested in us. Other 

processing will be necessary for the performance of our contractual obligations, e.g. 

under any tenancy or lease. 

BEIS process data necessary for the performance of tasks in the public interest to 

deliver SHDF. The data will support a detailed evaluation of the overall scheme, 

including the types of properties, households and measures delivered through the 

SHDF, in order to ensure use of public funds has delivered value for money, and 

realised intended benefits, including to inform policy making in the fields of energy 

efficiency, fuel poverty, and health. It will also support BEIS’ functions relating to 

carbon reductions under the Climate Change Act 2008.  Your data may also be used 

for statistical, research and fraud prevention purposes.  

BEIS will be conducting an evaluation of the Scheme. This may include you being 

contacted to take part in further research. Use of your personal data to contact you to 

take part in further evaluation research will be subject to your consent. BEIS will only 

process your personal data for this purpose with your opt-in consent, and a consent 

form will be provided to you. Note that you can withdraw consent at any time, and it 

will not impact the delivery of any works. 

 

Page 145



   

  

 

Who we will share your information with 

We may share your information with partner organisations, including: 

- The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS), its 

delivery partners and contractors, and their data processors Microsoft and 

Amazon Web Services  

-  

 

We will not normally share your information with organisations other than our partner 
organisations without your consent, however, there may be certain circumstances 
where we would share without consent such as where we are required to do so by 
law, to safeguard public safety, and in risk of harm or emergency situations. Any 
information which is shared will only be shared on a need to know basis, with 
appropriate individuals. Only the minimum information for the purpose will be shared. 

How long do we keep your records 

 

International transfers 

 

 

Your rights 

You have a number of rights under UK GDPR, including the right to request your 
information and the right to request your information be erased or amended if incorrect. 
 
To request your records, request changes to your records, or to object to the 
processing of your data, you will need to put your request in writing and provide a proof 
of identification to  
 

 
 

 
You have the right to withdraw consent for the processing of your personal data, 
where processing is based on consent, such as the BEIS research and evaluation. To 
withdraw consent, you can choose to contact  

 
 

 
You may also contact BEIS’ Data Protection Officer at the Department for Business, 
Energy and Industrial Strategy, 1 Victoria Street, London, SW1H 0ET, or via email, 
dataprotection@beis.gov.uk.  
 

Page 146

mailto:dataprotection@beis.gov.uk


   

  

 

You also have a right to make a complaint about our handling of your personal data 

to the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO), an independent regulator. You can 

contact the ICO at Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire, SK9 5AF, or via 

email, casework@ico.org.uk. Any complaint to the ICO is without prejudice to your 

right to seek redress through the courts.  

Further information 

If you have any questions or concerns about how your information will be used, please 

contact the Data Protection Officer at  

 

 

  

Page 147

mailto:casework@ico.org.uk


   

  

 

Appendix G – Consent Form to 
Issue to Data Subjects  
I have read and understood this Privacy Notice and BEIS’ Privacy Notice.   
  
Yes □    No □   

 

Do you consent to BEIS, or their appointed contractors, to recontact you for the 
purpose of research and evaluation related to the installation received under 
SHDF-Wave 1?   
  
Yes □    No □   
  
Participation is entirely voluntary and you may withdraw consent at any time. 
Personal data necessary to deliver work on your property will continue to be 
collected. Your installation and the work on your property will not be affected if, 
at any time, you choose not to take part. 
  

Full Name  

Signature  

Address  

Telephone/Mobile  

Email Address  

Preferred contact 
method 

 

Date  

 

 

  

Page 148



   

  

DSA - 39 
 

Appendix H – Key Contact Details 
BEIS Key Contacts: 

Programme 
Director 

Name Matt Harrison 

Email matt.harrison@beis.gov.uk 

Data Protection 
Officer 

Name BEIS Data Protection Officer 

Email dataprotection@beis.gov.uk 

Name 
Head of Information Rights 
Team 

Email FOI.Requests@beis.gov.uk 

Data Lead 
Name Darren Cartwright 

Email darren.cartwright@beis.gov.uk 

 

The Authority Key Contacts: 

Project Lead 

Name  

Email  

Telephone  

Data Protection 
Officer 

Name  

Email  

Telephone 
(optional) 

 

FOIA Lead 

Name  

Email  

Telephone 
(optional) 

 

Data Lead 

Name  

Email  

Telephone 
(optional) 

 

 

 

  

Page 149



   

  

DSA - 40 
 

Appendix I – Signatories 

BEIS Signature 

 
Signed: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Secretary of State for Business, Energy & Industrial Strategy 

 

Name  

Role  

Address  

Email  

Date of signature  

 

The Authority Signature 

 
Signed: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
On behalf of [Insert Local Authority and other consortium members] 

 

Name  

Role  

Address  

Telephone 
(optional) 

 

Email  

Date of signature  

 

 

 

Page 150



   

  

 75 
 

Annex 6a: Approved Application Proposal (the Proposal)  
For the purposes of SHDF – Wave 1, the Proposal is the approved application 
submitted on or before 15 October 2021 as part of the SHDF – Wave 1 
competition. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 151



   

  

 76 
 

Annex 6b: Updated Baseline Milestone Schedule 
For the purposes of SHDF – Wave 1, the updated Baseline Milestone Schedule is a revised version of table 5a in the SHDF – Wave 1 

application form, with dates updated to reflect the new competition award date.  

Updated Baseline Milestone Schedule 

Milestone Date 
completed 

Units Jan-
22 

Feb-
22 

Mar-
22 

Apr-
22 

May-
22 

Jun-
22 

Jul-
22 

Aug-
22 

Sep-
22 

Oct-
22 

Nov-
22 

Dec-
22 

Jan-
23 

Feb-
23 

Mar-
23 

MS1 – Project Team 
Established 

 % 
completed 

               

MS2 – PAS 2035 Risk 
Assessment stage 
completed 

 No. 
homes 

               

MS3 – Dwelling 
Assessment stage 
completed 

 No. 
homes 

               

MS4 – Design and 
Coordination Stage 
completed 

 No. 
homes 

               

MS5 – Procurement 
Activity completed 

 % 
completed 

               

MS6 & MS7 – Installation 
started and completed 

 No. 
homes 

               

MS8 – Handover & Data 
Lodgement Completed 

 No. 
homes 

               

  

P
age 152



   

  

 77 
 

Annex 7: Data Requirements 
In accordance with the Governance and Performance sections of this MoU, the 
Authority will be responsible for supplying the Project Team with the required 
monthly data on or before the 10th working day of each month. The requirements for 
this reporting, which will form the Monthly Report by the Authority, are as follows: 

Monthly Data Requirements Quarterly Data Requirements 

(for ongoing Monitoring & 

Evaluation) 

Per Property or One-off Data 

Requirements 

Monthly Summary 
• Summary of status 

• Activities this period 

• Plan for next period 

• Estimated Project Completion date 

• Top 5 Risks  

• Instances of Fraud 

Milestone updates 

• MS1 Date at which project team 

was appointed 

• MS2 PAS2035 Risk Assessment 

stage completion date  

• MS3 PAS2035 Dwelling 

Assessment stage completion date 

• MS4 Design & Coordination 

completion date 

• MS5 Procurement activity stage 

completion date 

• MS6 Installation stage started  

• MS7 Installation stage completed 

• MS8 Handover and Lodgement 

Stage completed 

 

KPI Performance  

• KPI 1 PAS 2035 Risk Assessment 

Completed 

• KPI 2 PAS 2035 Dwelling 

Assessment 

• KPI3 Design & coordination stage 

Completed 

• KPI4 Number of Privacy notices 

issued to tenants and Installers 

• KPI5 Number of completed 

properties 

• KPI6 – Total project spend 

Project additional info 

• No. of tenants & installers who have 

consented to be invited to take part 

in BEIS evaluation 

• Procurement activity – percentage 

of all procurement activity 

completed to deliver all projects 

being funded 

• Number of Installers  

• Number of Apprentices 

•  

• Unique Property Reference Number 

• Tenant Name 

• Tenant Email Address 

• Tenant Contact Number 

• Contact Consent 

• Privacy Notice Issue Date 

• Tenant Dropout 

• Reason for Tenant Dropout 

• LA Installer ID number 

• Installer Name 

• Installer Email Address 

• Installer Phone Number 

• Installer Consent to Contact 

• Privacy Notice Issue Date 

• Trustmark Business ID number 

• Was the installer Trustmark 

accredited before SHDF project 

• PAS Certification Number 

• Companies House Company 

Registration Number 

Per property 

• Unique Property Reference Number 

• Property Address (first line) 

• Town  

• Postcode  

• Fuel Poor Household 

• Property Type 

• Property Year Built 

• Property Floor Space (metres squared, 

m2) 

• Property Number of Floors 

• Property Number of Rooms 

• Smart Meter Installed? 

• On or off gas grid property 

• Current Heating System Type 

• Number of measures to install 

• Type of measure installed 

• Total Cost of Application 

• Current EPC Rating (pre-measures 

installed) 

• Post Measures Installed EPC Rating 

• Current SAP Box 39 value (pre-

measures installed) 

• Post Measures Installed SAP Box 39 

value 

• Current SAP Box 4 value (pre-measures 

installed) 

• Current Installed SAP Box 4 value 

• Post Measures Installed SAP Box 99 

value (pre-measures installed) 

• Post Measures Installed SAP Box 99 

value 

• Current Airtightness Test value (pre-

measures installed) 

• Post Measures Installed Airtightness Test 

value 

• Date of Starting Installation 

• Date of Completed Installation 

• Trustmark Measure Reference Number 

• TrustMark Lodgemark Certificate Number 

• Total cost of measure (£) 

• Of the total cost, how much is SHDF 

grant funding for this measure (£) 

• Of the total cost, how much is LA funding 

for this measure (£) 

• Of the total cost, how much is self-

funding for this measure (£) 

Page 153



   

  

 78 
 

Annex 8: Recovery Plan (draft – final template to be provided to 

the Authority) 
 

Local Authority Grant Reference Grant 

Name 

Local Authority 

Lead 

Report Date 

INSERT FULL 

NAME 

INSERT 

REFERENCE  

SHDF 

Wave 1 

INSERT LEAD 

OFFICIAL 

INSERT DATE 

 

 

     

# Interventions Target 

Date 

 Status Owner 

1      R/A/G   

2      R/A/G   

3      R/A/G   

4      R/A/G   

5      R/A/G  

 

 

 

 

  

Page 154



   

  

 79 
 

Annex 9: AP1a form 
The template for this is attached separately as a Word document to enable 

completion. 

 

  

Page 155



   

  

 80 
 

Annex 10: Small Amounts of Funding Exemption Declaration 
 

Guidance: use this Annex where funding is awarded as a small amount of financial 
assistance which is an exempted subsidy under the UK-EU Trade and Cooperation 
Agreement. Please note for the purpose of calculating whether a subsidy falls within 
the 325,000 Special Drawing Rights threshold, the Authority should include any: 

o De Minimis State Aid granted in the relevant 3 fiscal year period under 
the De minimis Regulation prior to 1 January 2021; 

o De Minimis State Aid granted in the relevant 3 fiscal year period under 
the De minimis Regulation on or after 1 January 2021 by virtue of the 
application of the Northern Ireland Protocol; 

o Small Amounts of Financial Assistance granted in the relevant 3 fiscal 
year period by virtue of the application of the Trade and Cooperation 
Agreement  

but should not include: 

o any State aid or subsidy granted in the relevant period in reliance on 
any other exemption (e.g. State aid granted under the General Block 
Exemption Regulation) or on any other basis irrespective of whether 
granted prior to or after 1 January 2021  

 

1. Funding in respect of leaseholder or freeholder (right to buy) properties, 
including those that are privately rented, is awarded in accordance with Article 
364(4) of the Trade and Cooperation Agreement, which enables the Authority 
to receive up to a maximum level of subsidy without engaging Articles 363-
375 (except where a subsidy is prohibited under Article 367 (8-12)) of the 
Trade and Cooperation Agreement (a “Small Amount of Financial 
Assistance”). The current threshold is 325,000 Special Drawing Rights to a 
single economic actor over any period of three fiscal years. 

2. The Authority acknowledges and accepts that the relevant limit for a Small 
Amount of Financial Assistance comprises other Small Amounts of Financial 
Assistance and De Minimis State Aid, irrespective of whether such subsidy or 
aid was provided by other public authorities and their agents, related to other 
projects or was made by means other than grants (for instance, foregone 
interest on loans) awarded to the Authority over any period of three fiscal 
years  

3. The award of this funding will be conditional upon the Authority providing the 
Secretary of State with the Small Amount of Financial Assistance declaration 
form confirming how much Small Amount of Financial Assistance subsidy or 
De Minimis State Aid, if any, it has received in the current and previous 2 year 
fiscal period. 

4. The Secretary of State may not pay the Authority the funding if, added to any 
previous Small Amount of Financial Assistance subsidy or De Minimis State 
Aid the Authority has received during the current and last two fiscal years, the 
funding causes Authority to exceed the relevant limit for a Small Amount of 
Financial Assistance. 

5. For the purposes of that declaration: 

Page 156



   

  

 81 
 

a. the fiscal year is the fiscal year used by its business;  

b. a single economic actor means a “single undertaking” within the 
meaning of the De Minimis Regulation; and 

c. subsidy is Small Amounts of Financial Assistance and De Minimis 
State Aid granted to a single economic actor. 

6. The Authority must return the MoU and the completed Small Amount of 
Financial Assistance declaration form to the Secretary of State in accordance 
with Paragraph 115 of the MoU. 

7. The Authority acknowledges that it is Authority’s responsibility to read Chapter 
3 of the Trade and Cooperation Agreement (and implementing legislation) in 
its entirety, and seek advice (including legal advice) on its application to the 
Authority’s business if appropriate. 

8. The Authority acknowledges that the Secretary of State and the Authority are 
jointly and severally responsible for maintaining detailed records with the 
information and supporting documentation necessary to establish that all the 
conditions set out in this MoU are fulfilled.  

9. Such records must be maintained by the Authority and the Secretary of State 
for 10 years following the granting of the subsidy. 

 

 

SMALL AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE DECLARATION FORM  

Please tick the statement that applies: 

 
The Authority, and any other economic actor forming a single 
economic actor with the Authority, have not received any Small 
Amount of Financial Assistance subsidy or De Minimis State 
Aid (whether from or attributable to the Authority or any other 
public authority) during the current and two previous fiscal years.  

 
The Authority, and/or any other economic actor forming a single 
economic actor with the Authority, have received one or more 
grants of De Minimis State Aid or Small Amounts of Financial 
Assistance during the current and two previous fiscal years 
particulars of which are set out in the table below.  

 

Please insert the Authority’s fiscal year____________________________ 

 

 

 

 

Page 157



   

  

 82 
 

Particulars of any De Minimis State Aid or Small Amounts of Financial Assistance 
received during the current or previous two fiscal years: 

Public 
Authority 

Date 
Awarded 

Total amount 
of subsidy11 

Description of 
subsidy12 

Recipient13 Date(s) 
received14 

 

Signed__________________________________ 

 

For and on behalf of _______________________ 

 

Position_________________________________ 

Date__________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 
11 This should be the amount of subsidy awarded. However, please also inform us if the amount received differed. 
12 Please confirm the nature of the subsidy (e.g. a grant or a loan etc) and the purpose for which it was awarded (e.g. any 
project funded by it). 
13 Please confirm the identity of the recipient of the subsidy if this is a separate entity forming part of a single economic actor 
with you. 
14 Please inform us if the subsidy was paid by instalments. 

 

Page 158



Document is Restricted

Page 159

Cab.28.6.2023/10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 171

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 173

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 175

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 269

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 271

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 277

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 279

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 299

Cab.28.6.2023/11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 309

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 June 2023 (Cab.28.6.2023/3)
	6. Barnsley's Children and Young People's Plan (2023-26)  (Cab.28.6.2023/6)
	Appendix 1 - Barnsley Children and Young People's Plan 2023-26
	Appendix 2 - Equality Impact Assessment

	7. Asset Management Strategy 2023/24 to 2027/28  (Cab.28.6.2023/7)
	Appendix 1 - Asset Management Strategy and Plan

	8. Social Housing Decarbonisation Fund (SHDF) Wave 2 Acceptance of Funding  (Cab.28.6.2023/8)
	Appendix A - Financial Implications
	Appendix B - Sample Memorandum of Understanding

	10. Goldthorpe Housing Retrofit Project (Towns Fund Project M)  (Cab.28.6.2023/10)
	EXEMPT Appendix A - Goldthorpe Retrofit
	EXEMPT Appendix 1 - Red Line Boundary
	EXEMPT Appendix 2 - Full Business Case
	EXEMPT Appendix 3 - Risk Register
	EXEMPT Appendix 4 - Equality Impact Assessment
	EXEMPT Appendix 5 - Sustainability Wheel
	EXEMPT Appendix 6 - DPIA

	11. Town Centre Improvements Update (Cab.28.6.2023/11)
	EXEMPT Appendix A – Financial Implications




